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MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.

As used in this report, the terms "Company", "Mueller", and "Registrant" mean
Mueller Industries, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries taken as a whole,
unless the context indicates otherwise.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Part I
Item 1. Business 4
Item 1A. Risk Factors 12
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 15
Item 2. Properties 16
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 19
Item 4 Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 22
Part II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 22
Item 6. Selected Financial Data 25
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations 26
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About
Market Risk 26
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 26
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on
Accounting and Financial Disclosure 26
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 26
Item 9B. Other Information 31
Part III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 31
Item 11. Executive Compensation 31
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters 31
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,
and Director Independence 33
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 33
Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 34
Signatures 39

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements F-1



PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Introduction

The Company is a leading manufacturer of copper, brass, plastic, and
aluminum products. The range of these products is broad: copper tube and
fittings; brass and copper alloy rod, bar, and shapes; aluminum and brass
forgings; aluminum and copper impact extrusions; plastic fittings and
valves; refrigeration valves and fittings; and fabricated tubular products.
The Company also resells imported brass and plastic plumbing valves,
malleable iron fittings, steel nipples, faucets and plumbing specialty
products. Mueller's operations are located throughout the United States,
and in Canada, Mexico, Great Britain, and China.

The Company's businesses are aggregated into two reportable segments:
the Plumbing & Refrigeration segment and the Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEM) segment. Prior to 2005, the Company disclosed its
reportable segments as Standard Products and Industrial Products.

Additional operating segments have been recognized following internal
reorganizations in 2006 and 2005. For disclosure purposes, as permitted
under SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information", certain operating segments are aggregated into reportable
segments. The Plumbing & Refrigeration segment is composed of the Standard
Products Division (SPD), European Operations, and Mexican Operations. The
OEM segment is composed of the Industrial Products Division (IPD) and
Engineered Products Division (EPD). These reportable segments are described
in more detail below. SPD manufactures and sells copper tube, copper and
plastic fittings, and valves in North America and sources products for
import distribution in North America. European Operations manufactures
copper tube in Europe, which is sold in Europe and the Middle East;
activities also include import distribution. Mexican Operations consist of
pipe nipple manufacturing and import distribution businesses including
product lines of malleable iron fittings and other plumbing specialties.

The Plumbing & Refrigeration segment sells products to wholesalers in the
HVAC (heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning), plumbing, and
refrigeration markets, to distributors to the manufactured housing and
recreational vehicle industries, and to building material retailers. The
OEM segment manufactures and sells brass and copper alloy rod, bar, and
shapes; aluminum and brass forgings; aluminum and copper impact extrusions;
refrigeration valves and fittings; fabricated tubular products; and gas
valves and assemblies. The OEM segment sells its products primarily to
original equipment manufacturers, many of which are in the HVAC, plumbing,
and refrigeration markets. The majority of the Company's manufacturing
facilities operated at moderate levels during 2005, 2004, and the first half
of 2006. In the latter half of 2006, the Company's manufacturing facilities
operated at low levels due to reduced market demand.
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During 2002, the Company sold its wholly owned subsidiary, Utah Railway
Company. Certain expenses related primarily to retiree benefits at inactive
operations were formerly combined with the operations of Utah Railway
Company under a third industry segment, Other Businesses. Following the
sale of Utah Railway Company and its classification as discontinued
operations, these expenses of inactive operations have been combined into
the unallocated expenses classification.

Information concerning segments and geographic information appears
under "Note 15 - Industry Segments" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 30, 2006 in Item 8 of this Report,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company is a Delaware corporation incorporated on October 3, 1990.

Plumbing & Refrigeration Segment



Mueller's Plumbing & Refrigeration segment includes the Standard
Products Division (SPD) which manufactures a broad line of copper tube, in
sizes ranging from 1/8 inch to 8 inch diameter, and which are sold in
various straight lengths and coils. Mueller is a market leader in the air-
conditioning and refrigeration service tube markets. Additionally, Mueller
supplies a variety of water tube in straight lengths and coils used for
plumbing applications in virtually every type of construction project. SPD
also manufactures copper and plastic fittings and related components for the
plumbing and heating industry that are used in water distribution systems,
heating systems, air-conditioning, and refrigeration applications, and
drainage, waste, and vent systems. A major portion of SPD's products are
ultimately used in the domestic residential and commercial construction
markets.

The Plumbing & Refrigeration segment also fabricates steel pipe nipples
and resells imported brass and plastic plumbing valves, malleable iron
fittings, faucets, and plumbing specialty products to plumbing wholesalers,
distributors to the manufactured housing and recreational vehicle industries
and building materials retailers.

On August 15, 2005, the Company acquired 100 percent of the outstanding
stock of KX Company Limited (Brassware). Brassware, located in Witton,
Birmingham, England, is an import distributor of plumbing and residential
heating products with annual sales of approximately $48 million to plumbers'
merchants and builders' merchants in the U.K. and Ireland. Additionally, on
August 27, 2004, the Company acquired 100 percent of the outstanding stock
of Vemco Brasscapri Limited (Vemco). Vemco, located in Wellington, Somerset,
England, is an import distributor of plumbing products with annual sales of
approximately $26 million to plumbers' merchants and builders' merchants
throughout the U.K. and Ireland. At the beginning of 2007, the operations
of Brassware and Vemco were combined and assumed the Mueller Primaflow brand
name.
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On December 14, 2004, the Company acquired shares in seven companies
and the inventory of another company (collectively, Mueller Comercial S.A.).
These operations, with annual sales of approximately $60 million, include pipe
nipple manufacturing in Mexico and import distribution businesses which
product lines include malleable iron fittings and other plumbing specialties.

On September 27, 2002, the Company acquired certain assets of Colonial
Engineering, Inc.'s Fort Pierce, Florida operations. These operations
manufacture injected molded plastic pressure fittings for plumbing,
agricultural, and industrial use including a line of PVC Schedule 40 and 80
and CPVC fittings.

In December 2002, the Company initiated a plan to sell or liquidate its
French manufacturing operations, Mueller Europe S.A. On March 3, 2003,
Mueller Europe S.A. filed a petition for liquidation with the Commercial
Court of Provins, France and, on March 4, 2003, the Court declared the
entity to be in liquidation. The disposition of remaining assets and
obligations of Mueller Europe S.A. is under the jurisdiction of the Court.
In 2003, the Company recognized operating losses from discontinued
operations incurred by Mueller Europe S.A. for the period the business
operated.

The Plumbing & Refrigeration segment markets primarily through its own
sales and distribution organization, which maintains sales offices and
distribution centers throughout the United States and in Canada, Mexico, and
Europe. Additionally, products are sold and marketed through a network of
agents, which, when combined with the Company's sales organization, provide
the Company broad geographic market representation.

These businesses are highly competitive. The principal methods of
competition for Mueller's products are customer service, availability, and
price. The total amount of order backlog for the Plumbing & Refrigeration
segment as of December 30, 2006 was not significant.

The Company competes with various companies, depending on the product
line. 1In the U.S. copper tubing business, the domestic competition includes
Cerro Flow Products, Inc., Cambridge-Lee Industries (Reading Tube
Corporation), Wolverine Tube, Inc., and Howell Metal Company (a subsidiary
of Commercial Metals Company), as well as many actual and potential foreign
competitors. In the European copper tubing business, Mueller competes with
at least eight European-based manufacturers of copper tubing as well as
other foreign-based manufacturers. In the copper fittings market,
competitors include Elkhart Products Company, a subsidiary of Aalberts
Industries N.V., and NIBCO, Inc., as well as several foreign manufacturers.



Additionally, the Company's copper tube and fittings businesses compete with
a large number of manufacturers of substitute products made from other
metals and plastic. The plastic fittings competitors include NIBCO, Inc.,
Charlotte Pipe & Foundry, and other companies. Management believes that no
single competitor offers such a wide-ranging product line as Mueller and
that this is a competitive advantage in some markets.

OEM Segment

Mueller's OEM segment includes the Industrial Products Division (IPD),
which manufactures brass rod, nonferrous forgings, and impact extrusions
that are sold primarily to OEMs in the plumbing, refrigeration, fluid power,
and automotive industries, as well as to other manufacturers and
distributors. The Company's Port Huron, Michigan mill extrudes brass,
bronze, and copper alloy rod in sizes ranging from 3/8 inches to 4 inches in
diameter. These alloys are used in applications that require a high degree
of machinability, wear and corrosion resistance, as well as electrical
conductivity. IPD also manufactures brass and aluminum forgings, which are
used in a wide variety of products, including automotive components, brass
fittings, industrial machinery, valve bodies, gear blanks, and computer
hardware. IPD also serves the automotive, military ordnance, aerospace, and
general manufacturing industries with cold-formed aluminum and copper impact
extrusions. Typical applications for impacts are high strength ordnance,
high-conductivity electrical components, builders' hardware, hydraulic
systems, automotive parts, and other uses where toughness must be combined
with varying complexities of design and finish. Additionally IPD
manufactures shaped and formed tube, produced to tight tolerances, for
baseboard heating, appliances, and medical instruments. The OEM segment
also includes the Engineered Products Division (EPD), which manufactures and
fabricates valves and custom OEM products for refrigeration and air-
conditioning applications. The total amount of order backlog for the OEM
segment as of December 30, 2006 was not significant.

In December 2005, two subsidiaries of the Company received a business
license from a Chinese industry and commerce authority, establishing a joint
venture with Jiangsu Xingrong Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Baiyang
Industries Ltd. The joint venture, in which the Company holds a 50.5
percent interest, produces inner groove and smooth tube in level-wound coils,
pancake coils, and straight lengths, primarily to serve the Chinese domestic
OEM air-conditioning market as well as to complement the Company's U.S.
product line. The joint venture, which is located primarily in Jintan City,
Jiangsu Province, China, is named Jiangsu Mueller-Xingrong Copper Industries
Limited.

On August 21, 2002, the Company acquired 100 percent of the outstanding
stock of Overstreet-Hughes, Co., Inc. Overstreet-Hughes, located in
Carthage, Tennessee, manufactures precision tubular components and
assemblies primarily for the OEM air-conditioning market.

IPD and EPD primarily sell directly to OEM customers. Competitors,
primarily in the brass rod market, include Cerro Metal Products Company,
Inc., Chase Industries, Inc., a subsidiary of Olin Corporation, and others
both domestic and foreign. Outside of North America, IPD and EPD sell
products through wvarious channels.

On February 27, 2007, the Company acquired 100 percent of the
outstanding stock of Extruded Metals, Inc. (Extruded) for $32.0 million in
cash. Extruded, located in Belding, Michigan, had annual net sales of
approximately $350 million in 2006.

Labor Relations

At December 30, 2006, the Company employed approximately 4,700
employees, of which approximately 1,900 were represented by various unions.
Those union contracts will expire as follows:

Location Expiration Date
Port Huron, Michigan April 1, 2007
Wynne, Arkansas December 1, 2009
Fulton, Mississippi August 1, 2007

North Wales, Pennsylvania July 28, 2009



Waynesboro, Tennessee November 7, 2009
Jacksboro, Tennessee September 15, 2008
Addison, Illinois January 1, 2008

The union contracts at the Company's U.K. and Mexico operations are renewed
annually. The Company expects to renew these contacts without material
disruption of its operations.

As of December 30, 2006, approximately 29 percent of the Company's
employees were covered by collective bargaining or similar agreements that
will expire during 2007.

Raw Material and Energy Availability

The major portion of Mueller's base metal requirements (primarily
copper) is normally obtained through short-term supply contracts with
competitive pricing provisions (for cathode) and the open market (for scrap).
Other raw materials used in the production of brass, including brass scrap,
zinc, tin, and lead, are obtained from zinc and lead producers, open-market
dealers, and customers with brass process scrap. Raw materials used in the
fabrication of aluminum and plastic products are purchased in the open
market from major producers.

Adequate supplies of raw material have historically been available to
the Company from primary producers, metal brokers, and scrap dealers.
Sufficient energy in the form of natural gas, fuel oils, and electricity is
available to operate the Company's production facilities. While temporary
shortages of raw material and fuels may occur occasionally, to date they
have not materially hampered the Company's operations.
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During recent years, an increasing demand for copper and copper alloy
primarily from China had an effect on the global distribution of such
commodities. The increased demand for copper (cathode and scrap) and copper
alloy products from the export market caused a tightening in the domestic
raw materials market. Mueller's copper tube facilities can accommodate both
refined copper and copper scrap as the primary feedstock. The Company has
commitments from refined copper producers for a portion of its metal
requirements for 2007. Adequate quantities of copper are currently
available. While the Company will continue to react to market developments,
resultant pricing volatility or supply disruptions, if any, could
nonetheless adversely affect the Company.

Environmental Matters

Compliance with environmental laws and regulations is a matter of high
priority for the Company. Mueller's provision for environmental compliance
related to non-operating properties was $0.6 million in 2006 and 2005, and
$1.0 million in 2004. Environmental costs related to operating properties
is classified as cost of goods sold and is not significant. Other than as
discussed below, the Company is not involved in any Superfund sites other
than as one of numerous potentially responsible parties (PRPs) in which
cases management believes that any obligation would be insignificant.
Except as discussed below, the Company does not anticipate that it will need
to make material expenditures for such compliance activities during the
remainder of the 2007 fiscal year, or for the next two fiscal years.

Mining Remedial Recovery Company

Mining Remedial Recovery Company (MRRC), a wholly owned subsidiary, was
formed for the purpose of managing the remediation of certain properties and
the appropriate disposition thereof. These properties and related
obligations were transferred to MRRC as part of a court-ordered bankruptcy
reorganization in 1990. MRRC was the owner of property at a Superfund site
in Midvale, Utah, but the Company's obligation to contribute to remediation
was resolved by a settlement with the Government in 1990. This property was
sold during 2004.



Mammoth Mine Site

MRRC owns certain inactive mines in Shasta County, California. MRRC has
continued a program, begun in the late 1980s, of sealing mine portals with
concrete plugs in mine adits which were discharging water. The sealing
program has achieved a reduction in the metal load in discharges from these
adits; however, additional reductions are required pursuant to an order
issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board (QCB). In
response to a 1996 Order issued by the QCB, MRRC completed a feasibility
study in 1997 describing measures designed to mitigate the effects of acid
rock drainage. In December 1998, the QCB modified the 1996 order extending
MRRC's time to comply with water quality standards. In September 2002, the
QCB adopted a new order requiring MRRC to adopt Best Management Practices
(BMP) to control discharges of acid mine drainage. The new order extends
the time to comply with water quality standards until September 2007. MRRC
has agreed to implement BMP to reduce or prevent the discharge of acid mine
drainage until such point as compliance with the order is achieved or,
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through the Use Attainability Analysis process, the designated beneficial
uses of the respective watercourses are modified, allowing for the adoption
of alternative receiving water limits. At this site, MRRC spent
approximately $0.3 million in 2006, and estimates it will spend between
approximately $0.3 and $0.8 million annually over the next ten years.
Future expenditures beyond a ten-year horizon are not reasonably estimable
or foreseeable.

U.S.S. Lead

In 1991, U.S.S. Lead Refinery, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary (Lead
Refinery), responded to an information request from the EPA under Superfund
for information on whether Lead Refinery arranged for the disposal of
hazardous substances in the vicinity of the Grand Calumet River/Indiana
Harbor Ship Canal. By letter dated February 4, 1997, the Indiana Department
of Environmental Management notified Lead Refinery that a pre-assessment
screening of the Grand Calumet River and the Indiana Harbor Canal conducted
pursuant to Superfund had identified releases of hazardous substances from
Lead Refinery and other PRPs that had adversely impacted natural resources.
Lead Refinery is in settlement negotiations in an effort to settle its
natural resources damages.

In 1991, Lead Refinery also responded to an information request under
Superfund regarding a site in East Chicago, Indiana. In 1992, the EPA
advised Lead Refinery of its intent to list the property as a Superfund
site; however, to date, the EPA had deferred such listing. In 1993, Lead
Refinery entered into a Consent Order with the EPA pursuant to Section
3008 (h) of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The Consent Order
covers remediation activities at the East Chicago, Indiana site and provides
for Lead Refinery to complete certain on-site interim remedial activities
and studies that extend off-site. In November 1996, the EPA approved, with
modifications, the Interim Stabilization Measures Work plan and designated a
Corrective Action Management Unit at the Lead Refinery site. Site
activities, which began in December 1996, have been substantially concluded.
Additionally, Lead Refinery is aware that the EPA is evaluating whether
further action in the area near Lead Refinery's facility should be
undertaken. Lead Refinery, without additional assistance from MRRC, lacks
the financial resources needed to complete any additional remediation that
may be required.

Lead Refinery has been informed by the former owner and operator of a
Superfund site located in Pedricktown, New Jersey that it intends to seek
CERCLA response costs for alleged shipments of hazardous substances to the site.
Lead Refinery has executed an agreement regarding that site, which
indefinitely extends the statute of limitations. By letter dated January 26,
1996, Lead Refinery and other PRPs received from the EPA a proposed
Administrative Order on Consent to perform the remedial design for operable
Unit 1 of the Pedricktown Superfund Site. Lead Refinery determined not to
execute the Administrative Order on Consent based on its lack of ability to
finance the clean up or pay response costs incurred by the EPA. Several
other PRPs, however, executed the agreement and are conducting the remedial
design.
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In October 2003, Lead Refinery received a settlement offer from
private settlers of $0.9 million for CERCLA contribution to past and
future response costs incurred at the NL/Taracorp Superfund site located
in Granite City, Illinois. Lead Refinery declined that offer. 1In



February of 2004, NL Industries, Inc. filed a contribution action against
all non-settling PRPs on the EPA's allocation list, including Lead
Refinery, seeking payments of an equitable share of clean-up costs
incurred by that corporation. Lead Refinery was not served with the
complaint prior to the execution of the deadline set by the court.

Other

In connection with acquisitions, the Company established environmental
reserves to fund the cost of remediation at sites currently or formerly
owned by various acquired entities. The Company, through its acquired
subsidiaries, is engaged in ongoing remediation and site characterization
studies.

Mueller Copper Tube Products, Inc.

In 1999, Mueller Copper Tube Products, Inc. (MCTP) commenced a cleanup
and remediation of soil and groundwater at its Wynne, Arkansas plant. MCTP
is currently removing trichloroethylene, a cleaning solvent formerly used by
MCTP, from the soil and groundwater. On August 30, 2000, MCTP received
approval of its Final Comprehensive Investigation report and Storm Water
Drainage Investigation Report addressing the treatment of soils and
groundwater, from the Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality. The
Company established a reserve for this project in connection with the
acquisition of MCTP in 1998.

Altoona, Kansas site

By letter dated October 10, 2006, the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment (KDHE) advised the Company that environmental contamination has
been identified at a former smelter in Altoona, Kansas. KDHE asserts that
the Company is a corporate successor to an entity that is alleged to have
owned and operated the smelter from 1915-1918. KDHE has requested that the
Company negotiate a consent order with KDHE to address contamination at the
site. The Company has submitted a preliminary response to this request.

Other Business Factors

The Registrant's business is not materially dependent on patents,
trademarks, licenses, franchises, or concessions held. In addition,
expenditures for company-sponsored research and development activities were
not material during 2006, 2005, or 2004. No material portion of the
Registrant's business involves governmental contracts. Seasonality of the
Company's sales is not significant.

_ll_
SEC Filings

We make available through our internet website our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). To retrieve any of this information, you may
access our internet home page at www.muellerindustries.com, select Mueller
Financials, and then select SEC Filings.

Reports filed with the SEC may also be viewed or obtained at the SEC
Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549.
Information on the operation of the SEC Public Reference Room may be
obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains a website
that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC; the
website address is www.sec.gov.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company is exposed to risk as it operates its businesses. To
provide a framework to understand the operating environment of the Company,
we are providing a brief explanation of the more significant risks
associated with our businesses. Although we have tried to identify and
discuss key risk factors, others could emerge in the future. These risk
factors should be considered carefully when evaluating the Company and its
businesses.



Increases in energy costs and the cost and availability of raw materials
used in our products could impact our cost of goods sold and our
distribution expenses, which could have a material adverse impact on our
operating margins.

Both the costs of raw materials used in our manufactured products
(copper, brass, zinc, aluminum, and PVC and ABS resins) and energy costs
(natural gas and fuel) have been rising during the last several years, which
has resulted in increased production and distribution costs. While we
typically attempt to pass increased costs through to our customers or to
modify or adapt our activities to mitigate the impact of these increases, we
may not be able to do so successfully. Failure to fully pass these
increases to our customers or to modify or adapt our activities to mitigate
the impact could have a material adverse impact on our operating margins.
Additionally, if we are for any reason unable to obtain raw materials or
energy, our ability to manufacture our finished goods would be impacted
which could have a material adverse impact on our operating margins.

The unplanned departure of key personnel could disrupt our business.

We depend on the continued efforts of our senior management. The
unplanned loss of key personnel, or the inability to hire and retain
qualified executives, could negatively impact our ability to manage our
business.
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Economic conditions in the housing and commercial construction industries as
well as changes in interest rates could have a material adverse impact on

our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our businesses are sensitive to changes in general economic conditions,
including, in particular, conditions in the housing and commercial

construction industries. Prices for our products are affected by overall
supply and demand in the market for our products and for our competitors'
products. In particular, market prices of building products historically

have been volatile and cyclical, and we may be unable to control the timing
and amount of pricing changes for our products. Prolonged periods of weak
demand or excess supply in any of our businesses could negatively affect our
revenues and margins and could result in a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The markets that we serve, including, in particular, the housing and
commercial construction industries, are significantly affected by movements
in interest rates. Significantly higher interest rates could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Our businesses are also affected by a variety of other factors
beyond our control, including, but not limited to, employment levels,
foreign currency rates, unforeseen inflationary pressures and consumer
confidence. Since we operate in a variety of geographic areas, our
businesses are subject to the economic conditions in each such area.
General economic downturns or localized downturns in the regions where we
have operations could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Competitive conditions including the impact of imports and substitute
products could have a material adverse effect on our margins and
profitability.

The markets we serve are competitive across all product lines. Some
consolidation of customers has occurred and may continue, which could shift
buying power to customers. In some cases, customers have moved production

to low-cost countries such as China, or sourced components from there, which
has reduced demand in North America for some of the products we produce.
These conditions could have a material adverse impact on our ability to
maintain margins and profitability. The potential threat of imports and
substitute products is based upon many factors including raw material prices,
distribution costs, foreign exchange rates and production costs. The end
use of alternative import and/or substitute products could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.



_13_

Our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations on cross border transactions and
the translation of local currency results into U.S. dollars could have an
adverse impact on our results of operations or financial position.

We conduct our business through subsidiaries in several different
countries, and fluctuations in currency exchange rates could have a
significant impact on the reported results of our operations, which are
presented in U.S. dollars. A significant and growing portion of our
products are manufactured in, or acquired from suppliers located in, lower
cost regions. Cross border transactions, both with external parties and
intercompany relationships, result in increased exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations. The strengthening of certain currencies such as the Euro and
U.S. dollar could expose our U.S. based businesses to competitive threats
from lower cost producers in other countries such as China. Lastly, our
sales are translated into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes. The
strengthening of the U.S. dollar could result in unfavorable translation
effects when the results of foreign operations are translated into U.S.
dollars. Accordingly, significant changes in exchange rates, particularly
the Euro, Pound Sterling, Mexican Peso and the Chinese Renminbi, could have
an adverse impact on our results of operations or financial position.

We are subject to claims, litigation and regulatory proceedings that could
have a material adverse effect on us.

We are, from to time, involved in various claims, litigation matters
and regulatory proceedings. These matters may include, among other things,
contract disputes, personal injury claims, environmental claims or
proceedings, other tort claims, employment and tax matters and other
litigation including class actions that arise in the ordinary course of our
business. Although we intend to defend these matters vigorously, we cannot
predict with certainty the outcome or effect of any claim or other
litigation matter, and there can be no assurance as to the ultimate outcome
of any litigation or regulatory proceeding. Litigation and regulatory
proceedings may have a material adverse effect on us because of potential
adverse outcomes, defense costs, the diversion of our management's resources,
availability of insurance coverage and other factors.

A strike or other work stoppage, or our inability to renew collective
bargaining agreements on favorable terms, could impact our cost structure
and our ability to operate our facilities and produce our products, which
could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

As of December 30, 2006, approximately 29% of our 4,700 employees were
covered by collective bargaining or similar agreements. If we are unable to
negotiate acceptable new agreements with the unions representing our
employees upon expiration of existing contracts, we could experience strikes
or other work stoppages. Strikes or other work stoppages could cause a
significant disruption of operations at our facilities which could have an
adverse impact on us. New or renewal agreements with unions representing
our employees could call for higher wages or benefits paid to union members,
which would increase our operating costs and could adversely affect our
profitability. Higher costs and/or limitations on our ability to operate
our facilities and produce our products resulting from increased labor costs,
strikes or other work stoppages could have an adverse effect on our results
of operations.
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We are subject to environmental laws and regulations and future compliance
may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or
financial position.

The nature of our operations exposes us to the risk of liabilities and
claims with respect to environmental matters. While we have established
accruals intended to cover the cost of environmental remediation at
contaminated sites, the actual cost is difficult to determine and may
exceed our estimated reserves. Further, changes to, or more rigorous
enforcement or stringent interpretation of environmental laws could require
significant incremental costs to maintain compliance. In addition, future
claims may be asserted against us for, among other things, past acts or
omissions at locations operated by predecessor entities, or alleging damage
or injury or seeking other relief in connection with environmental matters
associated with our operations. Future liabilities, claims and compliance
costs may have a material adverse effect on us because of potential adverse
outcomes, defense costs, the diversion of our management's resources,
availability of insurance coverage and other factors.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Information pertaining to the Registrant's major operating facilities
is included below. Except as noted, the Registrant owns all of its
principal properties. The Registrant's plants are in satisfactory condition
and are suitable for the purpose for which they were designed and are now
being used.

Approximate
Location Property Size Description

Plumbing & Refrigeration Segment

Fulton, MS 418,000 sg. ft. Copper tube mill. Facility includes
52.37 acres casting, extruding, and finishing
equipment to produce copper tubing,
including tube feedstock for the
Company's copper fittings plants
and Precision Tube factory.

Fulton, MS 103,000 sqg. ft. Casting facility. Facility includes
11.9 acres casting equipment to produce copper
billets used in the adjoining copper
tube mill.
Wynne, AR 682,000 sqg. ft.(l) Copper tube mill. Facility includes
39.2 acres extrusion and finishing equipment to

produce copper tubing and copper tube
line sets.

Fulton, MS 58,500 sqg. ft. Packaging and bar coding facility for
15.53 acres retail channel sales.

Fulton, MS 70,000 sg. ft.(2) Copper fittings plant. High-volume
7.68 acres facility that produces copper fittings

using tube feedstock from the
Company's adjacent copper tube mill.

Covington, TN 159,500 sqg. ft. Copper fittings plant. Facility
40.88 acres produces copper fittings using tube
feedstock from the Company's copper
tube mills.

Portage, MI 205,000 sqg. ft. Plastic fittings plant. Produces DWV
18 acres fittings using injection molding
equipment.
Ontario, CA 211,000 sg. ft.(3) Plastic fittings plant. Produces DWV

10 acres fittings using injection molding



Upper 82,000 sqg. ft.

Sandusky, OH 7.52 acres
Approximate

Location Property Size

Fort Pierce, FL 69,875 sqg. ft.

5.60 acres

Monterrey, 120,000 sg. ft. (3)
Mexico 3.4 acres
Bilston, 402,500 sqg. ft.
England 14.95 acres
United Kingdom
OEM Segment
Port Huron, MI 322,500 sqg. ft.
71.5 acres
Port Huron, MI 127,500 sqg. ft.
Marysville, MI 81,500 sqg. ft.
6.72 acres
Hartsville, TN 78,000 sqg. ft.
4.51 acres
Carthage, TN 67,520 sqg. ft.
10.98 acres
Jacksboro, TN 65,066 sqg. ft.
11.78 acres
Waynesboro, TN 57,000 sg. ft. (4)
5.0 acres
North Wales, PA 174,000 sqg. ft.
18.9 acres
Brighton, MI 65,000 sg. ft. (3)
Approximate
Location Property Size
Middletown, OH 55,000 sqg. ft.
2.0 acres
Jintan City, 322,580 sqg. ft.(5)
Jiangsu Province 33.0 acres

China

In addition, the Company
distribution centers and

equipment.

Plastic fittings plant. Produces DWV
fittings using injection molding
equipment.
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Description

Plastic fittings plant. Produces
pressure fittings using injection
molding equipment.

Pipe nipples plant. Produces pipe nipples,
cut pipe and merchant couplings.

Copper tube mill. Facility includes
casting, extruding, and finishing
equipment to produce copper tubing.

Brass rod mill. Facility includes
casting, extruding, and finishing
equipment to produce brass rods and
bars, in various shapes and sizes.

Forgings
aluminum

plant. Produces brass and
forgings.

Aluminum and copper impacts plant.
Produces made-to-order parts using cold
impact processes.

Refrigeration products plant.
Produces products used in
refrigeration applications such as
ball valves, line valves, and
compressor valves.

Fabrication facility. Produces precision
tubular components and assemblies.

Bending and fabricating facility.
Produces gas burners, supply tubes,
and manifolds for the gas appliance
industry.

Gas valve plant. Facility produces
brass valves and assemblies for the
gas appliance industry.

Precision Tube factory.
fabricates copper tubing, copper
alloy tubing, aluminum tubing, and
fabricated tubular products.

Facility

Machining operation. Facility
machines component parts for supply
to automotive industry.
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Description

Fabricating facility. Produces burner
systems and manifolds for the gas
appliance industry.

Copper tube mill. Facility includes
casting, and finishing equipment

to produce engineered copper tube
primarily for OEMs.

owns and/or leases other properties used as
corporate offices.



(1) Facility, or some portion thereof, is located on land leased from a local
municipality, with an option to purchase at nominal cost.

(2) Facility is leased under a long-term lease agreement, with an option
to purchase at nominal cost.

(3) Facility is leased under an operating lease.

(4) Facility is leased from a local municipality for a nominal amount.

(5) Facility is located on land that is under a long-term land use rights
agreement.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is involved in certain litigation as a result of claims
that arose in the ordinary course of business, which management believes
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position
or results of operations. Additionally, the Company may realize the benefit
of certain legal claims and litigation in the future; these gain
contingencies are not recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Environmental Proceedings

Reference is made to "Environmental Matters" in Item 1 of this Report,
which is incorporated herein by reference, for a description of
environmental proceedings.
Copper Tube Antitrust Litigation

Beginning in September 2004, the Company has been named as a defendant

in several purported class action complaints brought by direct and indirect
purchasers alleging anticompetitive activities with respect to the sale of

copper tubes in the United States (the Copper Tube Actions). Two such
purported class actions were filed in the United States District Court for
the Western District of Tennessee (the Federal Actions). The remaining

Copper Tube Actions were filed in state courts in Tennessee, California and
Massachusetts.

Certain of the Copper Tube Actions purport to address the sale of
copper plumbing tube in particular. Plaintiffs' motions to consolidate the
Federal Actions and the actions pending in California state court,
respectively, have been granted. All of the Copper Tube Actions, which are
similar, seek monetary and other relief. Wholly owned Company subsidiaries,
WTC Holding Company, Inc., Deno Holding Company, Inc., and Mueller Europe
Ltd. (Mueller Europe), are named in all of the Copper Tube Actions, and Deno
Acquisition Eurl is currently named in two of the Copper Tube Actions but
has not been served with the complaints in those actions. The claims
against WTC Holding Company, Inc. and Deno Holding Company Inc. have been
dismissed without prejudice in the Copper Tube Actions pending in California
and Massachusetts state courts.

In September 2006, the Federal Actions were dismissed as to Mueller



Europe for lack of personal jurisdiction. In October 2006, the Federal
Actions were dismissed in their entirety for lack of subject matter
jurisdiction as to all defendants. Although plaintiffs filed a motion for
reconsideration of the dismissal of Mueller Europe, the court has held that
such motion was mooted by its dismissal of the case for lack of subject
matter jurisdiction. Plaintiffs have filed a motion to alter or amend the
judgment dismissing the complaint for lack of subject matter jurisdiction,
which remains pending.
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The Company's demurrer to the complaint and the Company's motion to
dismiss for failure to state a claim have been filed in the state court
actions filed in California and Tennessee, respectively. The Company has
not yet been required to respond to the complaint in the action pending in
Massachusetts state court. Mueller Europe has not yet been required to
respond to the complaints in any of the state court actions pending in
Tennessee, California or Massachusetts. The courts overseeing the
California and Massachusetts state court actions have stayed those actions
conditioned upon the parties' submitting periodic status reports on the
Federal Actions.

The Company believes that the claims for relief in the Copper Tube
Actions are without merit and intends to defend the Copper Tube Actions
vigorously.

In March 2006, the Company and Mueller Europe were named in a complaint
brought by Carrier Corporation, Carrier S.A., and Carrier Italia S.p.A.
alleging anticompetitive activities with respect to the sale of copper tubes
used in the manufacturing of air-conditioning and refrigeration units (ACR
copper tubes) in the United States and elsewhere (the Carrier Action). The
Carrier Action was filed in United States District Court for the Western
District of Tennessee.

In addition, beginning in April 2006, the Company has been named as a
defendant in several purported class action lawsuits brought by direct and
indirect purchasers alleging anticompetitive activities with respect to the
sale of ACR copper tubes in the United States and elsewhere (the ACR Class
Actions, and with the Carrier Action, the ACR Actions). Two of the ACR Class
Actions were filed by indirect purchasers in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California, one of which alleges
anticompetitive activities with respect to plumbing tubes as well as ACR
copper tubes. Five of the ACR Class Actions (two of which have been
consolidated to become the "Indirect ACR Class Actions" and three of which
have been consolidated to become the "Direct ACR Class Actions") were filed
in the United States District Court for the Western District of Tennessee.

Mueller Europe and the Company are named in all of the ACR Actions.
WTC Holding Company, Inc., Deno Holding Company, Inc., and Deno Acquisition
Eurl are named in one of the ACR Class Actions filed in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of California. Motions to dismiss
by the Company and by Mueller Europe are pending in the Carrier Action.
The Company and Mueller Europe have been served, but have not yet been required
to respond, in the Direct ACR Class Actions and the Indirect ACR Class
Actions. The Company, Mueller Europe, WTC Holding Company, Inc., and Deno
Holding Company, Inc. have been served, but have not yet been required to
respond, in one of the ACR Class Actions filed in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California. Plaintiffs in the second of
the ACR Class Actions filed in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California (which addressed only ACR copper tubes) have
voluntarily dismissed that action without prejudice.

The Company believes that the claims for relief in the ACR Actions are
without merit and intends to defend the ACR Actions vigorously.
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Copper Price Manipulation Litigation

Two of the Company's subsidiaries, Mueller Copper Tube Products Inc.
and Mueller Copper Tube Company Inc., brought a lawsuit (the Price
Manipulation Action) against J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and Morgan Guaranty
Trust Company of New York (collectively Morgan) to recover damages the
Company believes it suffered on first purchases of copper cathode resulting
from an alleged conspiracy to manipulate the price of copper cathode by
Morgan (and certain of its predecessors and affiliates) and others in



violation of the federal antitrust laws. The lawsuit was filed on June 12,
2003, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Wisconsin. The
Company's lawsuit was consolidated with those of certain other first
purchasers of copper cathode and rod under the name In re Copper Antitrust
Litigation. Although the Price Manipulation Action was dismissed by the
district court on March 2, 2004, as barred by the statute of limitations,
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit, on February 6, 2006,
reversed the district court's decision in part and remanded the Price
Manipulation Action for further proceedings in the district court. On
January 16, 2007, Morgan filed a Motion for Summary Judgment which is now
pending before the District Court. Although the Company is unable to
predict the likely outcome of the Price Manipulation Action at this time,
the Company is prosecuting the case vigorously, and intends to continue to
do so in the future.

Canadian Dumping and Countervail Investigation

In June 2006, the Canada Border Services Agency (CBSA) initiated an
investigation into the alleged dumping of certain copper pipe fittings from
the United States and from South Korea, and the dumping and subsidizing of
these same goods from China. The Company and certain affiliated companies
were identified by the CBSA as exporters and importers of these goods.

On January 18, 2007, the CBSA issued a final determination in its
investigation. The Company was found to have dumped subject goods during the
CBSA's investigation period. On February 19, 2007, the Canadian
International Trade Tribunal (CITT) concluded that the dumping of the
subject goods from the United States had caused injury to the Canadian
industry.

As a result, a final anti-dumping duty order issued February 19, 2007,
and exports of subject goods to Canada by the Company after this date will
be subject to such duties, at various rates, during the five-year term of
the order. If future exports are above normal values, however, no anti-
dumping duties will be levied.

The Company is assessing the terms of the order. Given the small
percentage of its products that are sold for export to Canada, the Company
does not anticipate any material adverse effect on its financial condition
as a result of the CITT findings. However, its ability to compete in the
Canadian market may be impaired.
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Other Matters

The Company is aware of an investigation of competition in markets in
which it participates, or has participated in the past, in Canada. The
Company does not anticipate any material adverse effect on its business or
financial condition as a result of that investigation.

On September 22, 2005, the European Commission adopted a statement
alleging infringements in Europe of competition rules by manufacturers of
copper fittings including the Company and a business in England that it
acquired in 1997. The Company took the lead in bringing these copper
fitting issues to the attention of the European Commission and has fully
cooperated in the resulting investigation from its inception. On September
20, 2006, the European Commission adopted its copper fittings decision,
finding infringements in Europe of competition rules by various companies,
including the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, and imposing fines on
various companies. Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries were assessed
any fines.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As of February 23, 2007, the number of holders of record of
Mueller's Common Stock was approximately 1,600. On February 23, 2007,
the closing price for Mueller's Common Stock on the New York Stock
Exchange was $30.93.



Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company's Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase, until
October 2007, of up to ten million shares of the Company's Common Stock
through open market transactions or through privately negotiated
transactions. The Company has no obligation to purchase any shares and may
cancel, suspend, or extend the time period for the purchase of shares at any
time. Any purchases will be funded primarily through existing cash and cash
from operations. The Company may hold any shares purchased in treasury or
use a portion of the repurchased shares for employee benefit plans, as well
as for other corporate purposes. Through December 30, 2006, the Company had
repurchased approximately 2.4 million shares under this authorization.

Below is a summary of the Company's stock repurchases for the period ended
December 30, 2006.
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(a) (b) (c) (d)
Total Maximum
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
Purchased as That May
Part of Yet Be
Total Publicly Purchased
Number of Average Announced Under the
Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Purchased per Share Programs Programs
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
7,647,030 (1)
October 1 -
October 28, 2006 - s -
October 29 -
November 25, 2006 15,069 (2) 34.680
November 26 -
December 30, 2006 - -
</TABLE>
(1) Shares available to be purchased under the Company's 10 million share
repurchase authorization until October 2007. This repurchase plan was

announced on October 30, 2006.

(2) Shares tendered to the Company by employee stock option holders in
payment of the option purchase price and/or withholding taxes
upon exercise.

The Company's Board of Directors declared a regular quarterly dividend
of 10 cents per share on its common stock for each fiscal quarter of 2006 and
2005. Payment of dividends in the future is dependent upon the Company's
financial condition, cash flows, capital requirements, earnings, and other
factors.

The high, low, and closing prices of Mueller's Common Stock on the
New York Stock Exchange for each fiscal quarter of 2006 and 2005 were as
follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

High Low Close
<S> <C> <C> <C>
2006
Fourth quarter $ 38.25 $ 30.35 $ 31.70
Third quarter 40.35 30.34 35.17
Second quarter 41.80 28.84 33.03
First quarter 35.86 26.81 35.69
2005
Fourth quarter $ 28.42 $ 24.41 $ 27.42
Third quarter 29.99 25.35 27.77
Second quarter 28.39 24.75 27.24
First quarter 32.74 27.13 27.97
</TABLE>
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH



The following table compares total stockholder return since
December 29, 2001 to the Dow Jones U.S. Total Market Index (Total Market Index)
and the Dow Jones U.S. Building Materials Index (Building Materials Index) .
Total return values for the Total Market Index, the Building Materials Index
and the Company were calculated based on cumulative total return values
assuming reinvestment of dividends. The Common Stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol MLI.

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

Inc., Dow Jones U.S. Total Market
Building Materials Index

Among Mueller Industries,
Index and Dow Jones U.S.

Fiscal Year Ending Last Saturday in December (1)

[GRAPH]

(1) $100 invested on 12/29/01 in stock or index-including
reinvestment of dividends. Reflects reinvestment in shares of Common Stock
of (i) regular quarterly dividends paid by the Company, (ii) the cash paid by
the Company in connection with the Special Dividend and (iii) the proceeds of
an assumed sale at par of the Debentures paid by the Company in connection

with the Special Dividend.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Mueller Dow Jones U.S. Dow Jones U.S.
Industries, Total Market Building Materials
Inc. Index Index
<S> <C> <C> <C>
2001 100 100 100
2002 82 77 85
2003 104 99 119
2004 153 113 159
2005 132 120 169
2006 155 139 194
</TABLE>
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In thousands, except per share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
2006 2005
<S> <C> <C> <C>
For the fiscal year: (3)
Net sales $ 2,510,912 $ 1,729,923 $ 1,
Operating income 218,885 131,758
Net income from continuing operations 148,869 (2) 89,218 (2)
4 (4)
Diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations 4.00 2.40
Cash dividends per share 0.40 0.40
At year-end: (3)
Total assets 1,268,907 1,116,928
Long-term debt 308,154 312,070
<FN>
(1) During 2004 the Company paid 40 cents per share in regular ten cent

2004

379,056
112,490

79,416

971,328

310, 650

(2)

2003

<C>

$

999,078
49,384

44,221

1,060,420

11,437

2002
<C>
$ 952,983
85,756

71,177

990,471

14,005



quarterly cash dividends; additionally the Company paid a Special
Dividend composed of $6.50 in cash per share and $8.50 per share in the
form of 6% Subordinated Debentures due 2014

(2) Includes interest expense on 6% Subordinated Debentures following
distribution in the fourth quarter of 2004

(3) Includes activity of acquired businesses from the following purchase
dates: (i) Mueller Xingrong, December 2005 (ii) Brassware, August 15,
2005, (iii) Mueller Comercial S.A., December 14, 2004, (iv) Vemco,
August 27, 2004, (v) Overstreet-Hughes, August 21, 2002, and
(vi) certain assets of Colonial Engineering, September 27, 2002

(4) Includes $4.1 million income tax benefit for change in estimate for state
deferred income taxes and $3.3 million income tax benefit for change in estimate
for transfer pricing in 2006; includes $1.1 million income tax benefit for
change in estimate for state deferred taxes and $2.9 million income tax benefit
for correction of prior year provision in 2005.

</TABLE>
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results
of operations is contained under the caption "Financial Review" submitted as a
separate section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on page F-2.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk are contained
under the caption "Financial Review" submitted as a separate section of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on page F-2.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Financial Statements required by this item are contained in a separate
section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures designed to
ensure information required to be disclosed in Company reports filed under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), is recorded,
processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclosed in Company reports
filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management,
including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company's management, with the participation of the Company's
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures pursuant
to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange Act as of December 30, 2006. Based on
that evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures are effective as of December 30, 2006.
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Remediation of Material Weakness

During 2006, the Company implemented a remediation plan to address the
previously identified material weakness related to the accounting for
income taxes discussed in detail in our Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The following actions were taken pursuant to our
remediation plan during 2006:

All tax and certain accounting and finance professionals attended
training seminars related to accounting for income taxes;

* The Company engaged a third-party firm which conducted an
independent review of the Company's processes of accounting and
reporting for income taxes, resulting in recommendations that led
to several enhanced preventive controls being implemented;

The Company made staffing changes within its tax department to
enhance the review process over the income tax provision and
improve coordination between the tax and corporate accounting
departments;

* The Company enhanced the review processes over tax-sensitive
accounts and the tax effects of intercompany transactions;

The Company has engaged third-party accounting firms to assist
with the tax provision calculations in foreign jurisdictions; and

* The Company has enhanced the functionality of its tax provision
software to enable it to provide more accurate estimates of state
income tax expense.

The actions described above were completed during the fourth quarter of
2006. We believe these actions have strengthened our internal control over
financial reporting and successfully remediated the material weakness
identified in our 2005 assessment.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Pursuant to
the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, the Company's principal executive and principal
financial officers, and effected by the Company's board of directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Due to inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Further, because of changes in conditions, effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting may vary over time.
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The Company's management, with the participation of the Company's
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as
of December 30, 2006 based on the control criteria established in a report
entitled "Internal Control-Integrated Framework", issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on such
evaluation management has concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting is effective as of December 30, 2006.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, has been audited
by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report which is included below.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than the actions taken to remediate the material weakness over
the accounting for income taxes as described above, there were no changes
in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the
Company's fiscal quarter ending December 30, 2006, that have materially



affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Mueller Industries, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting,
that Mueller Industries, Inc. (the Company) maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). The Company's management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained

in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of



any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006,
is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria.
Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Mueller Industries, Inc. as of December 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years ended in
the period ended December 30, 2006 and our report dated February 26, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Memphis, Tennessee
February 26, 2007
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART ITII
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 is contained under the captions
"Ownership of Common Stock by Directors and Executive Officers and
Information about Director Nominees," "Corporate Governance," "Report of
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors," and "Section 16 (a)
Beneficial Ownership Compliance Reporting" in the Company's Proxy Statement
for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities



and Exchange Commission on or about March 28,

herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

which is incorporated

The information required by Item 11 is contained under the caption
"Executive Compensation" in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on or about March 28, 2007, which is incorporated herein by

reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table discloses information as adjusted for the
Company's Special Dividend regarding the securities to be issued and the
securities remaining available for issuance under the Registrant's stock-

based incentive plans as of December 30, 2006
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(a)
Number of securities
to be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,
Plan category warrants, and rights
<S> <C>

Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders 1,401

Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders 311

Total 1,712

</TABLE>

(shares in thousands) :

(b)

Weighted average
exercise price of
outstanding options
warrants, and rights
<C>

$ 25.95

18.29

24.56

(c)
Number of securities
remaining available for future
issuance under equity
compensation plans (excluding
securities reflected in column
(a))
<C>
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On February 13, 2002 Mr. O'Hagan was granted an option to acquire
100,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $31.75 per share
(subsequent to the grant, on October 26, 2004 the option grant was modified
to equitably adjust for the Company's Special Dividend to 155,610 shares of
Common Stock at an exercise price of $20.40 per share) and on February 13,
2003 Mr. O'Hagan was granted an option to acquire 100,000 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price of $25.10 per share (subsequent to the grant, on
October 26, 2004 the option grant was modified to equitably adjust for the
Company's Special Dividend to 155,610 shares of Common Stock at an exercise
price of $16.13 per share) (collectively, the O'Hagan Treasury Options).

Each of the O'Hagan Treasury Options has a term of ten years, subject to
earlier expiration upon termination of employment, and vests ratably over a
five-year period from the date of the grant, except that if there is a Change
in Control as defined in Mr. O'Hagan's employment agreement with the Company
(the O'Hagan Employment Agreement), all of the O'Hagan Treasury Options will
become immediately exercisable on the later to occur of (i) the day Mr.
O'Hagan notifies the Company he is terminating his employment with the
Company as a result of said change, and (ii) ten days prior to the date Mr.
O'Hagan's employment with the Company is terminated by the Company. In
addition, all outstanding unvested O'Hagan Treasury Options will immediately
vest and become exercisable if Mr. O'Hagan's employment is terminated by the
Company without Cause (as defined in the O'Hagan Employment Agreement) or by
Mr. O'Hagan for Good Reason (as defined in the O'Hagan Employment Agreement).
The O'Hagan Treasury Options may only be exercised for shares of Common Stock
held in treasury by the Company.

Other information required by Item 12 is contained under the captions
"Principal Stockholders" and "Ownership of Common Stock by Directors and
Executive Officers and Information about Director Nominees" in the Company's
Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about March 28, 2007, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is contained under the caption
"Corporate Governance" in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on or about March 28, 2007, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is contained under the caption
"Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" in the
Company's Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about March 28, 2007,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

-33-
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1. Financial Statements: the financial statements, notes, and report of



independent registered public accounting firm described in Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K are contained in a separate section of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on page F-1.

2. Financial Statement Schedule: the financial statement schedule
described in Item 8 of this report is contained in a separate section
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on page F-1.

Exhibits:

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant dated
February 8, 2007.

3.2 By-laws of the Registrant, as amended and restated, effective
November 10, 1994 (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K,
dated March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2002).

4.1 Indenture, dated as of October 26, 2004, by and between Mueller
Industries, Inc, and SunTrust Bank, as trustee (Incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant's Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated October 26, 2004).

4.2 Form of 6% Subordinated Debenture due 2014 (Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant's Current Report
on Form 8-K, dated October 26, 2004).

4.3 Certain instruments with respect to long-term debt of the
Registrant have not been filed as Exhibits to this Report since
the total amount of securities authorized under any such
instruments does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of
the Registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.
The Registrant agrees to furnish a copy of each such instrument
upon request of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

10.1 Stock Option Agreement, dated December 4, 1991, by and between
the Registrant and Harvey L. Karp (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2002).

10.2 Stock Option Agreement, dated March 3, 1992, by and between
the Registrant and Harvey L. Karp (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2002).
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10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective as of
September 17, 1997, by and between the Registrant and
Harvey L. Karp (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8
of the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, dated
March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002).

10.4 Amendment, dated June 21, 2004, to the Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated as of September 17, 1997, by and
between the Registrant and Harvey Karp (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, dated July 16, 2004, for the quarter ended
June 26, 2004).

10.5 Consulting Agreement, dated June 21, 2004, by and between the
Registrant and Harvey Karp (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
dated July 16, 2004, for the quarter ended June 26, 2004).

10.6 Stock Option Agreement, dated May 7, 1997, by and between the
Registrant and William D. O'Hagan (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 1, 2004, for the fiscal year ended
December 27, 2003).

10.7 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, effective as of
September 17, 1997, by and between the Registrant and
William D. O'Hagan (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 of the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K,
dated March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2002).

10.8 Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement,
effective May 12, 2000, by and between the Registrant and
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William D. O'Hagan (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q,
dated July 24, 2000, for the quarter ended June 24, 2000).

Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement dated as of September 17, 1997, by and between the
Registrant and William D. O'Hagan (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant's Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated May 5, 2005).

Stock Option Agreement, dated October 9, 1998, by and between
the Registrant and William D. O'Hagan (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 1, 2004, for the fiscal year ended
December 27, 2003).

Stock Option Agreement, dated February 13, 2002, by and between
the Registrant and William D. O'Hagan (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2002).
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Stock Option Agreement, dated February 13, 2003, by and between
the Registrant and William D. O'Hagan (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 1, 2004, for the fiscal year ended
December 27, 2003).

Consulting Agreement, dated June 21, 2004, by and between the
Registrant and William D. O' Hagan (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q, dated July 16, 2004, for the quarter ended

June 26, 2004).

Employment Agreement, effective October 17, 2002, by and between
the Registrant and Kent A. McKee (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended
December 28, 2002).

Employment Agreement, effective November 9, 2006, by and between
the Registrant and Gregory L. Christopher.

Mueller Industries, Inc. 1991 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as
amended (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, dated March 24, 2003,
for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002 and Exhibit 99.2 of
the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated

August 31, 2004).

Mueller Industries, Inc. 1994 Stock Option Plan, as amended
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, dated March 24, 2003,
for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002 and Exhibit 99.3 of
the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated

August 31, 2004).

Mueller Industries, Inc. 1994 Non-Employee Director Stock Option
Plan, as amended (Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.12 of the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K,
dated March 24, 2003, for the fiscal year ended

December 28, 2002 and Exhibit 99.6 of the Registrant's Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated August 31, 2004).

Mueller Industries, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan, as amended
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, dated March 24, 2003,
for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002 and Exhibit 99.4
of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated

August 31, 2004).

Mueller Industries, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan Amended and
Restated as of February 16, 2006.

Mueller Industries, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan (Incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on
Form 8-K, dated May 5, 2005).
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Summary description of the Registrant's 2007 incentive plan for
certain key employees.

Mueller Industries, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, effective
December 1, 2000 (Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.13 of the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K,
dated March 26, 2001, for the fiscal year ended

December 30, 2000).

Amendment to the Mueller Industries, Inc. Deferred Compensation
Plan, dated December 15, 2005.

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated December 14, 2004, among
Mueller Comercial de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.,

WTC HOLDCO I, LLC, MIYAR LLC, NICNA, GmbH, and The Seller
Parties (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21

of the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, dated

March 4, 2005, for the fiscal year ended December 25, 2004).

Inventory Purchase Agreement, dated December 14, 2004, by and
between Niples del Norte S.A. de C.V. and Mueller de Mexico S.A.
de C.V (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K, dated March 4, 2005,
for the fiscal year ended December 25, 2004).

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2006, among the
Registrant (as Borrower) and Lasalle Bank Midwest National
Association (as agent), and certain lenders named therein
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated December 1, 2006).

Equity Joint Venture Agreement, among Mueller Streamline China,
LLC, Mueller Streamline Holding, S.L., Jiangsu Xingrong Hi-Tech
Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Baiyang Industries Ltd. (Incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated December 5, 2005).

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 14.0 of the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K, dated March 1, 2004, for the fiscal year ended
December 27, 2003).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended.
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Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on
February 28, 2007.

MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.

/s/ HARVEY L. KARP
Harvey L. Karp, Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/HARVEY L KARP Chairman of the Board,
Harvey L. Karp and Director February 28, 2007
/s/ALEXANDER P. FEDERBUSH Director February 28, 2007

Alexander P. Federbush

/s/GENNARO J. FULVIO Director February 28, 2007
Gennaro J. Fulvio

/s/GARY S. GLADSTEIN Director February 28, 2007
Gary S. Gladstein

/s/TERRY HERMANSON Director February 28, 2007
Terry Hermanson

/s/ROBERT B. HODES Director February 28, 2007
Robert B. Hodes

/s/WILLIAM D. O'HAGAN President, Chief Executive February 28, 2007
William D. O'Hagan Officer (Principal Executive
Officer), Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
this report has been signed below by the following person on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature and Title Date

/s/ KENT A. MCKEE February 28, 2007
Kent A. McKee

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)



/s/ RICHARD W. CORMAN February 28, 2007
Richard W. Corman
Vice President - Controller
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

The Company is a leading manufacturer of copper, brass, plastic, and
aluminum products. The range of these products is broad: copper tube and
fittings; brass and copper alloy rod, bar, and shapes; aluminum and brass
forgings; aluminum and copper impact extrusions; plastic fittings and
valves; refrigeration valves and fittings; and fabricated tubular products.
The Company also resells imported brass and plastic plumbing valves,
malleable iron fittings, steel nipples, faucets and plumbing specialty
products. Mueller's operations are located throughout the United States,
and in Canada, Mexico, Great Britain, and China.

The Company's businesses are aggregated into two reportable segments:
the Plumbing & Refrigeration segment and the Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEM) segment. Prior to 2005, the Company disclosed its
reportable segments as Standard Products and Industrial Products.
Additional operating segments have been recognized following internal



reorganizations in 2006 and 2005. For disclosure purposes, as permitted
under SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information", certain operating segments are aggregated into reportable
segments. The Plumbing & Refrigeration segment is composed of the Standard
Products Division (SPD), European Operations, and Mexican Operations. The
OEM segment is composed of the Industrial Products Division (IPD) and
Engineered Products Division (EPD). These reportable segments are
described in more detail below. SPD manufactures and sells copper tube,
copper and plastic fittings, and valves in North America and sources
products for import distribution in North America. European Operations
manufactures copper tube in Europe, which is sold in Europe and the Middle
East; activities also include import distribution. Mexican Operations
include pipe nipple manufacturing and import distribution businesses
including product lines of malleable iron fittings and other plumbing
specialties. The Plumbing & Refrigeration segment sells products to
wholesalers in the HVAC (heating, ventilation, and air-conditioning),
plumbing, and refrigeration markets, to distributors to the manufactured
housing and recreational vehicle industries, and to building material
retailers. The OEM segment manufactures and sells brass and copper alloy
rod, bar, and shapes; aluminum and brass forgings; aluminum and copper
impact extrusions; refrigeration valves and fittings; fabricated tubular
products; and gas valves and assemblies. The OEM segment sells its
products primarily to original equipment manufacturers, many of which are
in the HVAC, plumbing, and refrigeration markets. The majority of the
Company's manufacturing facilities operated at moderate levels during 2005,
2004, and the first half of 2006.
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New housing starts and commercial construction are important
determinants of the Company's sales to the HVAC, refrigeration, and
plumbing markets because the principal end use of a significant portion of
the Company's products is in the construction of single and multi-family
housing and commercial buildings. Repairs and remodeling projects are also
important drivers of underlying demand for these products. The following
are important economic indicators that impact the Company's businesses.

Per the U.S. Census Bureau, new housing starts in the U.S. were 1.6 million,
1.9 million, and 2.0 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The
seasonally adjusted annual rate of the Value of Private Non-Residential
Construction put in place was $314.5 billion in 2006, $255.4 billion in
2005, and $229.2 billion in 2004. The average 30 year fixed mortgage rate
was 6.14 percent in December 2006, 6.27 percent in December 2005, and 5.75
percent in December 2004.

Profitability of certain of the Company's product lines depends upon
the "spreads" between the cost of raw material and the selling prices of
its completed products. The open market prices for copper cathode and
scrap, for example, influence the selling price of copper tubing, a
principal product manufactured by the Company. The Company attempts to
minimize the effects on profitability from fluctuations in material costs
by passing through these costs to its customers. The Company's earnings
and cash flow are dependent upon these spreads that fluctuate based upon
market conditions.

Earnings and profitability are also subject to market trends such as
substitute products and imports. Plastic plumbing systems are the primary
substitute product; these products represent an increasing share of
consumption. Imports of copper tubing from Mexico have increased in recent
years, although U.S. consumption is still predominantly supplied by U.S.
manufacturers. Brass rod consumption in the U.S. has steadily declined
over the past five years, due to the outsourcing of many manufactured
products.

The year ended December 30, 2006, contained 52 weeks while the years
ended December 31, 2005 contained 53 weeks and December 25, 2004 contained
52 weeks.

Recapitalization through Special Dividend

In September 2004, the Company authorized a special dividend
consisting of $6.50 in cash and $8.50 in principal amount of the Company's
6% Subordinated Debentures due 2014 (the Debentures) for each share of
Common Stock (the Special Dividend). The Special Dividend, distributed in



the fourth quarter of 2004, substantially reduced the Company's cash
position by $245.6 million and its stockholders' equity by $545.1 million,
and increased its long-term debt by $299.5 million.

Results of Operations
2006 Performance Compared with 2005

Consolidated net sales in 2006 were $2.5 billion, a 45 percent
increase over net sales of $1.7 billion in 2005. The increase is primarily
attributable to higher raw material costs (which are passed through in the
form of higher selling prices as discussed above), and contribution from
businesses acquired late in 2005 (which includes our consolidated Chinese
joint venture) which accounted for approximately $175.2 million. Net
selling prices generally fluctuate with changes in raw material prices.
The COMEX average copper price in 2006 was approximately $3.09 per pound,
or approximately 84 percent higher than the 2005 average of $1.68. This
change increased the Company's net sales and cost of goods sold. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease in sales unit volumes during
the period.

Cost of goods sold increased $679 million, to $2.1 billion in 2006.
This increase was attributable primarily to higher raw material costs and
acquired businesses, as discussed above. Gross profit was $401.5 million
or 16.0 percent of net sales in 2006 compared with $300 million or 17.3
percent of net sales in 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2006 certain
inventories valued using the FIFO method and certain firm commitments to
purchase inventories were written down to the lower of cost or market
resulting in a decrease in gross profit of $14.2 million. The year over
year increase in gross profit was due to higher spreads in core product
lines, primarily copper tube and fittings, and acquired businesses.

Depreciation and amortization increased 2.2 percent to $41.6 million
in 2006 from $40.7 million in 2005 primarily due to acquisitions in late
2005 and increased capital expenditures. Selling, general, and
administrative expenses increased to $141.0 million in 2006; this $13.6
million increase was due to (i) incremental costs of approximately $8.2
million attributed to acquired businesses, (ii) increased incentive
compensation of approximately $6.2 million which includes stock-based
compensation, and (iii) net decrease of other costs of approximately $0.8
million.

Interest expense increased to $20.5 million in 2006 from $19.6 million
in 2005. The increase is primarily due to the increased borrowings from
the Company's Chinese joint venture to fund operations during 2006.

Other income includes (i) losses on the sale of property and equipment
for approximately $2.6 million, (ii) interest income on invested cash
balances of $6.1 million, (iii) rents, royalties and other, net of $2.1
million, (iv) minority interest expense related to our Chinese joint
venture of $2.6 million, (v) gain on sale of an equity investment, Conbraco
Industries, Inc., of $1.9 million, and (vi) equity in earnings of Conbraco
Industries, Inc. prior to its sale of $1.0 million. Other income decreased
approximately $6.8 million in 2006 compared to 2005. This decrease is
attributable primarily to minority interest related to the Company's
Chinese joint venture and a net loss on disposals of properties compared to
a net gain in 2005, partially offset by higher interest income in 2006
resulting from higher average cash balances.
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The expense related to environmental remediation at certain non-
operating properties of the Company, included in other income, net, totaled
$0.6 million in 2006 and in 2005. The environmental expense related to
operating properties is included as a component of cost of goods sold and
was not significant for the periods presented.

Income tax expense was $54.7 million, for an effective rate of 26.9
percent, for 2006. This rate is lower than what would be computed using
the U.S. statutory federal rate primarily due to (i) changes in estimate
regarding the estimated future benefits related to state income tax credit
and net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of $4.1 million; (ii) reductions
in tax contingency reserves related to changes in estimates for transfer



pricing of $3.3 million, and other reductions for various statute closings
during 2006; (iii) release of the remaining valuation allowance related to
a NOL carryforward in the U.K. of $2.9 million; (iv) recognition of
benefits from the U.S. Manufacturer's deduction of $2.4 million and (v)
benefits resulting from a tax holiday in certain of the Company's foreign
subsidiaries of $0.9 million.

The Company's employment was approximately 4,700 at the end of 2006
compared with 4,800 at the end of 2005.

Plumbing & Refrigeration Segment

Net sales by Plumbing & Refrigeration were $1.7 billion in 2006
compared with $1.3 billion in 2005 for a 33.9 percent increase. Operating
income was $197.4 million in 2006 compared with $125.5 million in 2005.
The increase in net sales is due primarily to higher raw material costs,
which are reflected in higher selling prices. The $71.9 million increase
in operating profit was due to higher spreads in certain product lines and
operating income from businesses acquired late in 2005. These increases
were partially offset by lower unit sales volumes resulting from weak
demand in the latter part of 2006.

OEM Segment

OEM's net sales were $835.3 million in 2006 compared with $460.3
million in 2005. Operating income increased by $17.8 million to $44.8
million in 2006 compared with $27.0 million in 2005. Much of the increase
relates to our Chinese joint venture, which commenced operations during the
first quarter of 2006, and contributed $6.4 million of operating income on
$142.8 million of net sales.

2005 Performance Compared with 2004

Consolidated net sales in 2005 were $1.7 billion, a 25 percent
increase over net sales of $1.4 billion in 2004. The increase is primarily
attributable to higher raw material costs (which are passed through in the
form of higher selling prices as discussed above), and acquired businesses,
which accounted for approximately $106.3 million. The COMEX average copper
price in 2005 was approximately $1.68 per pound, or approximately 30
percent higher than the 2004 average of $1.29. This change increased the
Company's net sales and cost of goods sold.
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Cost of goods sold increased $314 million, to $1.4 billion in 2005.
This increase was attributable primarily to higher raw material costs (as
discussed above) and acquired businesses. Gross profit was $300 million or
17.3 percent of net sales in 2005 compared with $263 million or 19.1
percent of net sales in 2004. The increase in gross profit was due to (1)
higher spreads in core product lines, primarily copper tube and fittings,
(ii) acquired businesses and (iii) $1.3 million, or 2 cents per diluted
share, resulting from the liquidation of LIFO inventory layers.

Depreciation and amortization of $40.7 million in 2005 compares with
$40.6 million in 2004. Selling, general, and administrative expenses
increased to $127.4 million in 2005; this $21.0 million increase was due to
(1) incremental costs of approximately $14.3 million attributed to acquired
businesses, (ii) increased professional fees of approximately $3.3 million,
(iii) increased distribution costs of approximately $1.3 million, and (iv)
net increase of other costs of approximately $2.1 million.

Interest expense increased to $19.6 million in 2005 from $4.0 million
in 2004. This increase was primarily due to the issuance of the Debentures
on October 26, 2004.

Other income includes (i) gains on the sale of land and buildings for
approximately $3.7 million, (ii) interest income on invested cash balances
of $2.3 million, (iii) rents, royalties and other, net of $1.5 million, and
(iv) equity in earnings of an unconsolidated subsidiary (Conbraco
Industries, Inc.) of $4.5 million.

The expense related to environmental remediation at certain non-
operating properties of the Company, included in other income, net, totaled
$0.6 million in 2005 compared with $1.0 million in 2004. The environmental
expense related to operating properties is included as a component of cost
of goods sold and was not significant for the periods presented.

Income tax expense was $35.0 million, for an effective rate of 28.2
percent, for 2005; this rate is lower than the expected rate due to (i) tax
planning strategy and structure related to a business acquired in Mexico in
2004, (ii) an adjustment that reduced 2005 income tax expense by
approximately $2.9 million, or 8 cents per diluted share, to correct



estimated taxes provided for in prior years, and (iii) recognition of the
tax benefit of a foreign net operating loss carryforward in the U.K. that
was previously reserved. Management has concluded that the $2.9 million
adjustment is immaterial to the consolidated results of operations and
financial condition for the current year as well as the prior affected
years.

Income from discontinued operations consists of business interruption
insurance proceeds, net of tax, related to operations sold in 2002.

The Company's employment was approximately 4,800 at the end of 2005
compared with 4,500 at the end of 2004.

Plumbing & Refrigeration Segment

Net sales by Plumbing & Refrigeration were $1.3 billion in 2005
compared with $1.0 billion in 2004 for a 30 percent increase. Operating
income was $125.5 million in 2005 compared with $108.3 million in 2004.
The increase in net sales is due primarily to higher raw material costs,
which are reflected in higher selling prices. This $17.2 million increase
in operating profit was due to (i) higher spreads and volume in certain
product lines, (ii) $1.3 million, or 2 cents per diluted share, resulting
from the liquidation of LIFO inventory layers, and (iii) operating income
from acquired businesses in Mexico and the U.K.

OEM Segment

OEM's net sales were $460 million in 2005 compared with $392 million
in 2004. Operating income increased by $6.4 million to $27.0 million in
2005 compared with $20.6 million in 2004. During 2005, the OEM Segment
posted improved results in all product areas with the exception of Brass
Rod.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company's cash and cash equivalents balance increased to $200.5
million at December 30, 2006, from $129.7 million at December 31, 2005.
Major components of the 2006 change included $64.5 million of cash provided
by operating activities, $14.0 million of cash used in investing activities
and $19.6 million of cash provided by financing activities.

Net income from continuing operations of $148.9 million in 2006 was
the primary component of cash provided by operating activities.
Depreciation and amortization of $41.9 million was the primary non-cash
adjustment. Major changes in working capital included a $15.5 million
increase in trade accounts receivable and $56.8 million increase in
inventories due to increased metal prices in 2006 compared with 2005 and
contributions from acquired businesses, and $41.4 million decrease in
current liabilities due to (i) a $28.1 million decrease in trade accounts
payable due to lower purchasing volumes at the end of 2006, (ii) a $9.9
million decrease in income taxes payable and income tax contingences, and
(1iii) a net reduction of other liabilities of $8.6 million. These
decreases were partially offset by a $5.2 million increase in accrued
compensation due primarily to increased incentive accruals.

The major components of net cash used for investing activities during
2006 included $41.2 million used for capital expenditures including $17.9
million of capital expenditures by our Chinese joint venture, which was
partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of our equity investment in
Conbraco Industries, Inc. of $23 million.
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Net cash provided by financing activities totaled $19.6 million in 2006.
The increases primarily relate to $28.8 million of proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt, primarily resulting from funds borrowed by our
Chinese joint venture to fund operations, $1.1 million for the tax benefit
of stock options exercised, and proceeds from the sale of treasury stock of



$7.7 million. These increases were partially offset by decreases of $14.8
million for cash dividends paid to our shareholders, $2.0 million for debt
repayments, and $1.1 million for the acquisition of treasury stock. The
treasury stock transactions discussed above relate to stock option exercises.

The Company has a $200 million unsecured line-of-credit (Credit
Facility) which expires in December 2011. At year-end, the Company had no
borrowings against the Credit Facility. Approximately $10.8 million in
letters of credit were backed by the Credit Facility at the end of 2006.
As of December 30, 2006, the Company's total debt was $344.1 million or 38
percent of its total capitalization.

Covenants contained in the Company's financing obligations require,
among other things, the maintenance of minimum levels of tangible net worth
and the satisfaction of certain minimum financial ratios. As of December
30, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants.

The Company expects to invest between $30 and $40 million for capital
expenditures during 2007.

Contractual cash obligations of the Company as of December 30, 2006
included the following:

<TABLE>
(In millions)
<CAPTION>
Payments Due by Year
2008~ 2010~
Total 2007 2009 2011 Thereafter
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Long-term debt,
including capital
lease obligations $344.2 $ 36.0 $ 0.2 $ 0.9 $307.1
Interest on fixed-
rate debt 143.7 18.5 35.9 35.7 53.6
Consulting Agreements (1) 13.3 1.3 2.7 2.0 7.3
Operating leases 20.5 7.1 7.7 3.9 1.8
Purchase commitments (2) 321.8 321.8 - - -
Total contractual
cash obligations $843.5 $384.7 $ 46.5 $ 42.5 $369.8

</TABLE>

(1) See Note 10 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Purchase commitments include $27.8 million of open fixed price purchases
of raw materials. Additionally, the Company has contractual supply
commitments, totaling $294.0 million at year-end prices, for raw
materials consumed in the ordinary course of business; these contracts
contain variable pricing based on COMEX.
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The above obligations will be satisfied with existing cash, the Credit
Facility, and cash generated by operations. Additionally, the cash flow to
fund pension and OPEB obligations was $3.3 million in 2006 and $2.6 million
in 2005. During 2005 and 2004, funded pension assets recovered a
significant portion of market value declines experienced in 2002. The
Company expects to contribute approximately $2.5 million to its pension
plans and $0.9 million to its other postretirement benefit plans in 2007.
The Company has no off-balance sheet financing arrangements except for the
operating leases identified above.

Fluctuations in the cost of copper and other raw materials affect the
Company's liquidity. Changes in material costs directly impact components
of working capital, primarily inventories and accounts receivable. In June
2005 the price of copper averaged approximately $1.62 per pound. Since
then the price of copper has fluctuated significantly and averaged
approximately $3.09 per pound in December 2006. During 2006 copper reached
a historic high of $4.08 per pound.

The Company's Board of Directors declared a regular quarterly dividend
of 10 cents per share on its Common Stock during each quarter of 2006, 2005
and 2004. Additionally, during 2004 the Company distributed a Special
Dividend composed of $6.50 in cash and $8.50 in principal amount of the
Company's 6% Subordinated Debentures due 2014 per share of Common Stock.
Payment of dividends in the future is dependent upon the Company's financial
condition, cash flows, capital requirements, earnings, and other factors.

Management believes that cash provided by operations, the Credit
Facility, and currently available cash of $200.5 million will be adequate
to meet the Company's normal future capital expenditure and operational
needs. The Company's current ratio (current assets divided by current
liabilities) was 3.0 to 1 as of December 30, 2006.



The Company's Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase, until
October 2007, of up to ten million shares of the Company's Common Stock
through open market transactions or through privately negotiated
transactions. The Company has no obligation to purchase any shares and may
cancel, suspend, or extend the time period for the purchase of shares at
any time. Any purchases will be funded primarily through existing cash and
cash from operations. The Company may hold any shares purchased in
treasury or use a portion of the repurchased shares for employee benefit
plans, as well as for other corporate purposes. Through December 30, 2006,
the Company had repurchased approximately 2.4 million shares under this
authorization.

Environmental Matters

The Company ended 2006 with total environmental reserves of
approximately $8.9 million. Based upon information currently available,
management believes that the outcome of pending environmental matters will
not materially affect the overall financial position and results of
operations of the Company.

Market Risks

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in raw material and
energy costs, interest rates, and foreign currency exchange rates. To
reduce such risks, the Company may periodically use financial instruments.
All hedging transactions are authorized and executed pursuant to policies
and procedures. Further, the Company does not buy or sell financial
instruments for trading purposes. A discussion of the Company's accounting
for derivative instruments and hedging activities is included in the
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Cost and Availability of Raw Materials and Energy

Copper and brass represent the largest component of the Company's
variable costs of production. The cost of these materials is subject to
global market fluctuations caused by factors beyond the Company's control.
Significant increases in the cost of metal, to the extent not reflected in
prices for the Company's finished products, or the lack of availability
could materially and adversely affect the Company's business, results of
operations and financial condition.

The Company occasionally enters into forward fixed-price arrangements
with certain customers. The Company may utilize forward contracts to hedge
risks associated with forward fixed-price arrangements. The Company may also
utilize forward contracts to manage price risk associated with
inventory. Depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value
of the forward contracts will either be offset against the change in fair
value of the inventory through earnings or recognized as a component of
comprehensive income and reflected in earnings upon the sale of inventory.
Periodic value fluctuations of the contracts generally offset the value
fluctuations of the underlying fixed-price transactions or inventory. At
year-end, the Company held open forward contracts to purchase approximately
$5.9 million of copper over the next seven months related to fixed-price
sales orders. The Company also held open forward contracts to sell
approximately $14.3 million of copper in March 2007 related to the price
risk of inventory on hand.

Futures contracts may also be used to manage price risk associated
with natural gas purchases. The effective portion of gains and losses with
respect to these positions are deferred in stockholders' equity as a
component of comprehensive income and reflected in earnings upon
consumption of natural gas. Periodic value fluctuations of the contracts
generally offset the value fluctuations of the underlying natural gas
prices. At year-end, the Company held open forward contracts to purchase
approximately $0.6 million of natural gas over the next three months.



Interest Rates

At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the fair value of the
Company's debt was estimated at $320.7 million and $298.1 million,
respectively, primarily using market yields and taking into consideration
the underlying terms of the debt. Such fair value was less than the
carrying value of debt at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 by $23.4
million and $18.1 million, respectively. Market risk is estimated as the
potential change in fair value resulting from a hypothetical 10 percent
decrease in interest rates and amounted to $10.6 million at December 30,
2006 and $4.1 million at December 31, 2005.

The Company had variable-rate debt outstanding of $36.1 million at
December 30, 2006 and $5.5 million at December 31, 2005. At these borrowing
levels, a hypothetical 10 percent increase in interest rates would have had
an insignificant unfavorable impact on the Company's pretax earnings and
cash flows. The primary interest rate exposure on floating-rate debt is
based on LIBOR.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Foreign currency exposures arising from transactions include firm
commitments and anticipated transactions denominated in a currency other
than an entity's functional currency. The Company and its subsidiaries
generally enter into transactions denominated in their respective
functional currencies. Foreign currency exposures arising from
transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
are not material; however, the Company may utilize certain forward fixed-
rate contracts to hedge such transactional exposures. Gains and losses
with respect to these positions are deferred in stockholders' equity as a
component of comprehensive income and reflected in earnings upon collection
of receivables. At year-end, the Company held open forward contracts to
purchase approximately $2.9 million U.S. dollars.

The Company's primary foreign currency exposure arises from foreign-
denominated revenues and profits and their translation into U.S. dollars.
The primary currencies to which the Company is exposed include the Canadian
dollar, the British pound sterling, the Euro, the Mexican peso, and the
Chinese renminbi. The Company generally views as long-term its investments
in foreign subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the U.S.
dollar. As a result, the Company generally does not hedge these net
investments. The net investment in foreign subsidiaries translated into
U.S. dollars using the year-end exchange rates was $191.5 million at
December 30, 2006 and $143.3 million at December 31, 2005. The primary
reason for the increase in 2006 is from additional, planned investments in
the Company's Chinese joint venture and cash advances to its European
operations. The potential loss in value of the Company's net investment in
foreign subsidiaries resulting from a hypothetical 10 percent adverse
change in quoted foreign currency exchange rates at December 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005 amounted to $19.2 million and $14.3 million, respectively.
This change would be reflected in the foreign currency translation component
of accumulated other comprehensive income in the equity section of the
Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets, unless the foreign subsidiaries are
sold or otherwise disposed.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. Application of these principles requires the Company to make
estimates, assumptions, and judgments that affect the amounts reported in
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Management believes the most
complex and sensitive judgments, because of their significance to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, result primarily from the need to make
estimates about the effects of matters, which are inherently uncertain.
The accounting policies and estimates that are most critical to aid in
understanding and evaluating the results of operations and financial
position of the Company include the following:

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. A significant
component of the Company's inventory is copper; the domestic copper
inventories are valued under the LIFO method, which represent approximately
12.6 percent of total inventories. The market price of copper cathode and
scrap are subject to volatility. During periods when open market prices
decline below net book value, the Company may need to provide an allowance
to reduce the carrying value of its inventory. In addition, certain items
in inventory may be considered obsolete and, as such, the Company may



establish an allowance to reduce the carrying value of those items to their
net realizable value. Changes in these estimates related to the value of
inventory, if any, may result in a materially adverse or positive impact on
the Company's reported financial position or results of operations. The
Company recognizes the impact of any changes in estimates, assumptions, and
judgments in income in the period in which it is determined.

Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on the difference
between the financial statement and the tax law treatment of certain items.
Realization of certain components of deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the occurrence of future events. The Company records valuation allowances
to reduce its deferred tax assets to the amount it believes is more likely
than not to be realized. These valuation allowances can be impacted by
changes in tax laws, changes to statutory tax rates, and future taxable
income levels and are based on the Company's judgment, estimates, and
assumptions regarding those future events. In the event the Company were
to determine that it would not be able to realize all or a portion of the
net deferred tax assets in the future, the Company would increase the
valuation allowance through a charge to income in the period that such
determination is made. Conversely, if the Company were to determine that
it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future, in
excess of the net carrying amounts, the Company would decrease the recorded
valuation allowance through an increase to income in the period that such
determination is made.

Environmental Reserves

The Company recognizes an environmental liability when it is probable
the liability exists and the amount is reasonably estimable. The Company
estimates the duration and extent of its remediation obligations based upon
reports of outside consultants; internal analyses of clean-up costs,
ongoing monitoring costs, and estimated legal fees; communications with
regulatory agencies; and changes in environmental law. If the Company were
to determine that its estimates of the duration or extent of its
environmental obligations were no longer accurate, the Company would adjust
its environmental liabilities accordingly in the period that such
determination is made. Estimated future expenditures for environmental
remediation are not discounted to their present value. Accrued
environmental liabilities are not reduced by potential insurance
reimpbursements.

Environmental expenses that relate to ongoing operations are included
as a component of cost of goods sold. Environmental expenses related to
certain non-operating properties are included in other income, net on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company provides an allowance for receivables that may not be
fully collected. In circumstances where the Company is aware of a
customer's inability to meet its financial obligations (e.g., bankruptcy
filings or substantial down-grading of credit ratings), it records a
reserve for bad debts against amounts due to reduce the net recognized
receivable to the amount it believes most likely will be collected. For
all other customers, the Company recognizes reserves for bad debts based on
its historical collection experience. If circumstances change (e.g.,
greater than expected defaults or an unexpected material change in a major
customer's ability to meet its financial obligations), the Company's
estimate of the recoverability of amounts due could be changed by a
material amount.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimum threshold a tax
position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial
statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognizing, measurement,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt FIN 48 as of December 31,
2006 (the first day of fiscal 2007), as required. The cumulative effect of
adopting FIN 48 will be recorded as a change to opening retained earnings



in the first quarter of 2007. The Company has not completed the process of
evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on its
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The FASB has issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements", which defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), and expands disclosure about fair value measurements.
The Company is required to adopt the provisions of this statement in the
first quarter of fiscal 2008. Management is reviewing the potential
effects of this statement; however, it does not expect the adoption of SFAS
No. 157 to have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132 (R)". SFAS No. 158 requires plan
sponsors of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans
to recognize the funded status of those plans in the statement of financial
position, measure the fair value of plan assets and benefit obligations as
of the date of the fiscal year-end statement of financial position, and
provide additional disclosures. On December 30, 2006, the Company adopted
the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. The effect of
adopting SFAS No. 158 on the Company's financial condition at December 30,
2006 has been included in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. SFAS No. 158 did not have an effect on the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheet in any prior period. The requirement to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer's fiscal
year-end statement of financial position has not yet been adopted as it is
required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. See Note 9 to
the financial statements for further discussion of the effect of the
adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This Annual Report contains various forward-looking statements and
includes assumptions concerning the Company's operations, future results,
and prospects. These forward-looking statements are based on current
expectations and are subject to risk and uncertainties. In connection with
the "safe harbor" provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995, the Company provides the following cautionary statement
identifying important economic, political, and technological factors, among
others, the absence of which could cause actual results or events to differ
materially from those set forth in or implied by the forward-looking
statements and related assumptions.

Such factors include: (i) the current and projected future business
environment, including interest rates and capital and consumer spending;
(ii) the domestic housing and commercial construction industry environment;
(iii) availability and price fluctuations in commodities (including copper,
natural gas, and other raw materials, including crude oil that indirectly

effects plastic resins); (iv) competitive factors and competitor responses
to the Company's initiatives; (v) stability of government laws and
regulations, including taxes; (vi) availability of financing; and (vii)

continuation of the environment to make acquisitions, domestic and foreign,
including regulatory requirements and market values of candidates.

Mueller Industries, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25, 2004
<TABLE>

(In thousands, except per share data)

<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004

<S> <C> <C> <C>
Net sales $2,510,912 $1,729,923 $1,379,056
Cost of goods sold 2,109,436 1,430,075 1,115,612
Gross profit 401,476 299,848 263,444
Depreciation and amortization 41,619 40,696 40,613
Selling, general, and

administrative expense 140,972 127,394 106,400
Impairment charge - - 3,941



Operating income 218,885 131,758 112,490
Interest expense (20,477) (19,550) (3,974)
Other income, net 5,171 11,997 6,842
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 203,579 124,205 115,358
Income tax expense (54,710) (34,987) (35,942)
Income from continuing operations 148,869 89,218 79,416
Income from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes - 3,324 -
Net income $ 148,869 S 92,542 S 79,416
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
</TABLE>
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Mueller Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income (continued)
Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25, 2004
<TABLE>
(In thousands, except per share data)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Weighted average shares for basic
earnings per share 36,893 36,590 35,321
Effect of dilutive stock options 353 513 1,590
Adjusted weighted average shares for
diluted earnings per share 37,246 37,103 36,911
Basic earnings per share:
From continuing operations S 4.04 S 2.44 S 2.25
From discontinued operations - 0.09 -
Basic earnings per share $ 4.04 S 2.53 S 2.25
Diluted earnings per share:
From continuing operations $ 4.00 $ 2.40 $ 2.15
From discontinued operations - 0.09 -
Diluted earnings per share S 4.00 S 2.49 S 2.15
Dividends per share S 0.40 S 0.40 S 15.40

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

</TABLE>



Mueller Industries, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005
<TABLE>

(In thousands)

<CAPTION>
2006 2005
<S> <C> <C>
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 200,471 S 129, 685
Accounts receivable, less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $6,806 in 2006
and $5,778 in 2005 281,679 260,685
Inventories 258,647 196,987
Current deferred income taxes 21,421 19,900
Other current assets 13,976 17,019
Total current assets 776,194 624,276
Property, plant, and equipment, net 315,064 307,046
Goodwill 155,653 152,171
Other assets 21,996 33,435
Total Assets $ 1,268,907 $ 1,116,928
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
</TABLE>
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Mueller Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)
As of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005
<TABLE>
(In thousands, except share data)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005
<S> <C> <C>
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt S 35,998 S 4,120



Accounts payable 96,095 124,216

Accrued wages and other employee costs 43,281 38,095
Other current liabilities 80,145 97,251
Total current liabilities 255,519 263,682
Long-term debt, less current portion 308,154 312,070
Pension liabilities 19,900 21,721
Postretirement benefits other than pensions 16,699 13,515
Environmental reserves 8,907 9,073
Deferred income taxes 46,408 63,944
Other noncurrent liabilities 2,206 3,078
Total liabilities 657,793 687,083
Minority interest in subsidiaries 22,300 6,937

Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock - $1.00 par value;
shares authorized 5,000,000;
none outstanding - -
Common stock - $.01 par value; shares
authorized 100,000,000; issued 40,091,502;
outstanding 37,025,285 in 2006

and 36,643,590 in 2005 401 401
Additional paid-in capital, common 256,906 252,889
Retained earnings 386,038 253,433
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 12,503 (8,848)
Treasury common stock, at cost (67,034) (74,967)

Total stockholders' equity 588,814 422,908

Commitments and contingencies - -

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 1,268,907 $ 1,116,928

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

</TABLE>

Mueller Industries, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25, 2004
<TABLE>

(In thousands)

<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Operating activities:
Income from continuing operations $ 148,869 S 89,218 S 79,416
Reconciliation of income from
continuing operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 41,179 40,398 40,316
Amortization of intangibles 440 298 297
Amortization of Subordinated
Debenture costs 236 162 26
Stock-based compensation expense 2,789 - -
Income tax benefit from exercise
of stock options (1,065) 991 31,778
Impairment charge - - 3,941
Deferred income taxes (19,339) (9,556) 2,711
Provision for doubtful
accounts receivable 1,109 1,911 1,404
Minority interest in subsidiaries,
net of dividend paid 2,610 9 (141)
Gain on sale of equity investment (1,876) - -
Gain on early retirement of debt (97) - -
Loss (gain) on disposal of properties 2,620 (3,665) (5,729)
Equity in (earnings) loss of
unconsolidated subsidiary (964) (4,480) 2,026
Changes in assets and liabilities,
net of businesses acquired:
Receivables (15,459) (64,905) (15,722)
Inventories (56,786) (5,979) (26,208)
Other assets 1,449 1,764 (6,689)

Current liabilities (41,357) 66,435 45,274



Other liabilities (2,578) (5,894) 296
Other, net 2,759 (590) 1,765
Net cash provided by
operating activities 64,539 106,117 154,761
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures (41,200) (18,449) (19,980)
Acquisition of businesses, net
of cash received 3,632 (6,937) (56,9406)
Proceeds from sales of properties
and equity investment 23,528 10,112 6,334
Net cash used in
investing activities (14,040) (15,274) (70,592)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
</TABLE>
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Mueller Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
Years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25, 2004
<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt $ (2,058) S (1,091) S (6,608)
Dividends paid (14,776) (14, 6406) (259,882)
Proceeds from issuance of
long-term debt 28,759 - -
Acquisition of treasury stock (1,092) (551) (42,641)
Issuance of shares under incentive
stock option plans from treasury 7,701 4,819 18,978
Income tax benefit from exercise of
stock options 1,065 - -
Subordinated Debenture issuance costs - - (2,187)
Net cash provided by
(used in) financing activities 19,599 (11,469) (292,340)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 694 (462) 532
Net cash provided by operating
activities of discontinued operations - 3,324 -
Increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 70,786 82,236 (207, 639)
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 129,685 47,449 255,088
Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year $ 200,471 S 129,685 S 47,449
For supplemental disclosures of cash flow information, see
Notes 1, 5, 6, 7, and 13.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
</TABLE>
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Mueller Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements Stockholders' Equity
Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25, 2004

<TABLE>



(In thousands)

<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Common stock:
Balance at beginning of year 40,092 S 401 40,092 S 401 40,092 $ 401
Balance at end of year 40,092 S 401 40,092 S 401 40,092 S 401
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance at beginning of year $ 252,889 $ 252,931 $ 259,110
Issuance of shares under

incentive stock option plans (1,324) (1,033) (37,957)
Stock option related compensation 4,276 - -
Income tax benefit from exercise of

stock options 1,065 991 31,778
Balance at end of year $ 256,906 $ 252,889 $ 252,931
Retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of year $ 253,433 $ 175,537 $ 655,495
Net income 148,869 92,542 79,416
Dividends and other (16,264) (14,646) (559,374)
Balance at end of year S 386,038 S 253,433 $ 175,537
Accumulated other comprehensive

income (loss):
Foreign currency translation S 17,778 S (10,122) S 8,560
Minimum pension liability adjustment,

net of applicable income tax (expense)

benefit of $(1,165), $339, $(2) 7,108 (2,141) (2)
Change in fair value of derivatives,

net of applicable income tax (expense)

benefit of $199, $(201), $(134) (355) 330 219
Losses reclassified into earnings

from other comprehensive income,

net of applicable income tax (expense)

benefit of $0, $0, $65 - - (106)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 24,531 (11,933) 8,671
Balance at beginning of year (8,848) 3,085 (5,586)
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158,

net of income tax benefit of $1,526 (3,180) - -
Balance at end of year S 12,503 S (8,848) S 3,085
</TABLE>
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Mueller Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements Stockholders' Equity (continued)
Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25, 2004
<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Treasury stock:
Balance at beginning of year 3,448 S (74,967) 3,702 $  (80,268) 5,815 S (94,562)
Issuance of shares under

incentive stock option plans (414) 9,025 (283) 5,852 (3,242) 56,935
Repurchase of common stock 33 (1,092) 29 (551) 1,129 (42,041)
Balance at end of year 3,067 S (67,034) 3,448 S (74,967) 3,702 S (80,268)
Total comprehensive income:
Net income $ 148,869 S 92,542 S 79,416
Other comprehensive income (loss) 24,531 (11,933) 8,671
Total comprehensive income $ 173,400 S 80,609 $ 88,087

</TABLE>

See accompanying notes to consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

The principal business of Mueller Industries, Inc. is the manufacture
and sale of copper tube and fittings; brass and copper alloy rod, bar, and
shapes; aluminum and brass forgings; aluminum and copper impact extrusions;
plastic fittings and valves; refrigeration valves and fittings; fabricated
tubular products; and gas valves and assemblies. The Company also resells
imported brass and plastic plumbing valves, malleable iron fittings, steel
nipples, faucets, and plumbing specialty products. The Company markets its
products to the HVAC, plumbing, refrigeration, hardware, and other
industries. Mueller's operations are located throughout the United States
and in Canada, Mexico, Great Britain, and China.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Mueller
Industries, Inc. and its majority owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. The minority interest represents a separate private
ownership of 49.5 percent of Jiangsu Mueller-Xingrong Copper Industries
Limited (Mueller-Xingrong), 25 percent of Ruby Hill Mining Company, and 19
percent of Richmond-Eureka Mining Company. Prior to its sale in 2006 the
Company accounted for its minority investment in Conbraco Industries, Inc.
(Conbraco) on the equity method.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when title passes to the customer either when
products are shipped, provided collection is determined to be probable and
no significant obligations remain for the Company, or upon the terms of the
sale. Estimates for future rebates on certain product lines, product
returns, and bad debts are recognized in the period which the revenue is
recorded. The cost of shipping product to customers is expensed as
incurred as a component of cost of goods sold.

Cash Equivalents

Temporary investments with original maturities of three months or less
are considered to be cash equivalents. These investments are stated at
cost. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, temporary investments
consisted of money market mutual funds, commercial paper, bank repurchase
agreements, and U.S. and foreign government securities totaling $182.8
million and $123.7 million, respectively.



Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company provides an allowance for receivables that may not be
fully collected. In circumstances where the Company is aware of a
customer's inability to meet its financial obligations (e.g., bankruptcy
filings or substantial down-grading of credit ratings), it records a
reserve for bad debts against amounts due to reduce the net recognized
receivable to the amount it believes most likely will be collected. For
all other customers, the Company recognizes reserves for bad debts based on
its historical collection experience. If circumstances change (e.g.,
greater than expected defaults or an unexpected material change in a major
customer's ability to meet its financial obligations), the Company's
estimate of the recoverability of amounts due could be changed by a
material amount.

Inventories

The Company's inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market.
The material component of its U.S. copper tube and copper fittings
inventories is valued on a last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis. Other
inventories, including the non-material components of U.S. copper tube and
copper fittings, are valued on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.
Inventory costs include material, labor costs, and manufacturing overhead.

Elements of cost in finished goods inventory in addition to the cost
of material include depreciation, amortization, utilities, consumable
production supplies, maintenance, production, wages and transportation
costs. In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 151,
"Inventory Costs", which specifies that certain abnormal costs must be
recognized as current period charges. This Statement, which was effective
for inventory costs incurred after September 1, 2005, did not materially
affect the Company's results of operations or financial position.

The market price of copper cathode and scrap are subject to volatility.
During periods when open market prices decline below net book value, the
Company may need to provide an allowance to reduce the carrying value of
its inventory. In addition, certain items in inventory may be considered
obsolete and, as such, the Company may establish an allowance to reduce the
carrying value of those items to their net realizable value. Changes in
these estimates related to the value of inventory, if any, may result in a
materially adverse impact on the Company's reported financial position or
results of operations. The Company recognizes the impact of any changes in
estimates, assumptions, and judgments in income in the period in which it
is determined.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of
buildings, machinery, and equipment is provided on the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives ranging from 20 to 40 years for buildings
and five to 20 years for machinery and equipment. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the lesser of their useful life or the remaining lease
term. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
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The Company evaluates the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment whenever a change in circumstances indicates that the carrying
value may not be recoverable from the undiscounted future cash flows from
operations. If an impairment exists, the net book values are reduced to
fair values as warranted.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents cost in excess of fair values assigned to the
underlying net assets of acquired businesses. Under SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets", goodwill is subject to impairment testing
which compares carrying values to fair values and, when appropriate, the
carrying value of these assets is required to be reduced to fair value.

The Company performs its annual impairment assessment as of the first day
of the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, unless circumstances dictate
more frequent assessments. For testing purposes, the Company uses
components of its reporting segments; components of a segment having
similar economic characteristics are combined. No impairment loss resulted
from the 2006, 2005 or 2004 annual tests performed under SFAS No. 142;
however, as discussed in Note 4, an impairment charge was recognized in the
first quarter of 2004. There can be no assurance that additional goodwill
impairment will not occur in the future.



Self Insurance Accruals

The Company is primarily self insured for workers' compensation claims
and benefits paid under employee health care programs. Accruals are
primarily based on estimated undiscounted cost of claims, which includes
incurred-but-not-reported claims and are classified as accrued wages and
other employee costs.

Environmental Reserves and Environmental Expenses

The Company recognizes an environmental liability when it is probable
the liability exists and the amount is reasonably estimable. The Company
estimates the duration and extent of its remediation obligations based upon
reports of outside consultants; internal analyses of clean-up costs,
ongoing monitoring costs, and estimated legal fees; communications with
regulatory agencies; and changes in environmental law. If the Company were
to determine that its estimates of the duration or extent of its
environmental obligations were no longer accurate, the Company would adjust
its environmental liabilities accordingly in the period that such
determination is made. Estimated future expenditures for environmental
remediation are not discounted to their present value. Accrued
environmental liabilities are not reduced by potential insurance
reimbursements.

Environmental expenses that relate to ongoing operations are included
as a component of cost of goods sold. Environmental expenses related to
certain non-operating properties are included in other income, net on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based on the average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share reflects the
increase in average common shares outstanding that would result from the
assumed exercise of outstanding stock options calculated using the treasury
stock method. Approximately 330,000 stock options were excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share at December 30, 2006 as the
options' exercise price was higher than the average market price of the
Company's stock.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on the difference
between the financial statement and the tax law treatment of certain items.
Realization of certain components of deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the occurrence of future events. The Company records valuation allowances
to reduce its deferred tax assets to the amount it believes is more likely
than not to be realized. These valuation allowances can be impacted by
changes in tax laws, changes to statutory tax rates, and future taxable
income levels and are based on the Company's judgment, estimates, and
assumptions regarding those future events. In the event the Company were
to determine that it would not be able to realize all or a portion of the
net deferred tax assets in the future, the Company would increase the
valuation allowance through a charge to income tax expense in the period
that such determination is made. Conversely, if the Company were to
determine that it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the
future, in excess of the net carrying amounts, the Company would decrease
the recorded valuation allowance through a decrease to income tax expense
in the period that such determination is made.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (R), "Share-
Based Payment", and began recognizing compensation expense in its
Consolidated Statements of Income as a selling, general, and administrative
expense, for its stock option grants based on the fair value of the awards.
Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock option grants under
the recognition and measurement provisions of APB Opinion 25, "Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees", and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS
No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation". No stock-based
compensation expense was reflected in net income prior to adopting SFAS No.
123 (R) as all options were granted at an exercise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Concentrations of Credit and Market Risk

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are



limited due to the large number of customers comprising the Company's
customer base, and their dispersion across different geographic areas and
different industries, including HVAC, plumbing, refrigeration, hardware,
automotive, OEMs, and others.
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The Company minimizes its exposure to base metal price fluctuations
through various strategies. Generally, it prices an equivalent amount of
copper raw material, under flexible pricing arrangements it maintains with
its suppliers, at the time it determines the selling price of finished
products to its customers.

The Company's historical experience in collection of accounts receivable
falls within the recorded allowances. Due to these factors, no
additional credit risk, beyond amounts provided for collection losses, is
believed inherent in the Company's accounts receivable.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has utilized forward contracts to manage the volatility
related to purchases of copper and natural gas, and certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. In addition, the Company has reduced its
exposure to increases in interest rates by entering into an interest rate
swap contract. These contracts have been designated as cash flow hedges.
The Company also utilized forward contracts to protect the value of a
portion of its copper inventory on hand at December 30, 2006. This
contract has been designated as a fair value hedge. The Company accounts
for derivative financial instruments in accordance with SFAS No. 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". SFAS No. 133
requires that an entity recognize all derivatives, as defined, as either
assets or liabilities measured at fair value. If the derivative is
designated as a hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the
fair value of the derivative will either be offset against the change in
fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through
earnings or recognized as a component of comprehensive income until the
hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a
derivative's change in fair value will be immediately recognized in
earnings. Gains and losses recognized by the Company related to the
ineffective portion of its hedging instruments, as well as gains and losses
related to the portion of the hedging instruments excluded from the
assessment of hedge effectiveness, were not material to the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements. Should these contracts no longer meet
hedge criteria in accordance with SFAS No. 133, either through lack of
effectiveness or because the hedged transaction is not probable of
occurring, all deferred gains and losses related to the hedge will be
immediately reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into
earnings.

At December 30, 2006, the Company held open forward contracts to
purchase approximately $5.9 million of copper over the next seven months
related to fixed-price sales orders. The Company also held open forward
contracts to sell approximately $14.3 million of copper in March 2007
related to the price risk of inventory on hand. Also, the Company held
open forward commitments to purchase approximately $0.6 million of natural
gas in the next three months.
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The Company primarily executes derivative contracts with major
financial institutions. These counterparties expose the Company to credit
risk in the event of non-performance. The amount of such exposure is
limited to the fair value of the contract plus the unpaid portion of
amounts due to the Company pursuant to terms of the derivative instruments,
if any. Although there are no collateral requirements, if a downgrade in
the credit rating of these counterparties occurs, management believes that
this exposure is mitigated by provisions in the derivative arrangements
which allow for the legal right of offset of any amounts due to the Company
from the counterparties with any amounts payable to the counterparties by
the Company. As a result, management considers the risk of counterparty
default to be minimal.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments



The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the short-
term maturity of these instruments. Primarily using market yields, the
fair value of the Company's debt instruments were estimated to be $320.7
million and $298.0 million at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively. The fair value of the Company's interest rate swap contract
was approximately $0.1 million at December 30, 2006 and approximately $0.2
million at December 31, 2005. This value represents the estimated amount
the Company would need to pay if the contract was terminated before
maturity, principally resulting from market interest rate decreases. The
fair value of committed forward contracts to purchase copper and natural
gas was $(0.6) million and $(0.3) million, respectively at December 30,
2006. The fair value of the forward contract to sell copper was $2.5
million at December 30, 2006. The Company estimates the fair value of
contracts by obtaining quoted market prices.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information about the financial instrument. These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation

For foreign subsidiaries, the functional currency is the local
currency. Balance sheet accounts are translated at exchange rates in
effect at the end of the year and income statement accounts are translated
at average exchange rates for the year. Translation gains and losses are
included in stockholders' equity as a component of comprehensive income.
Transaction gains and losses included in the Consolidated Statements of
Income were not significant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to
make estimates, assumptions, and judgments that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109"
(FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing a
minimum threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized
in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognizing,
measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt FIN 48 as of
December 31, 2006 (the first day of fiscal 2007), as required. The
cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 will be recorded as a change to opening
retained earnings in the first quarter of 2007. The Company has not
completed the process of evaluating the impact that the adoption of FIN 48
will have on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

The FASB has issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements", which
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and expands disclosure
about fair value measurements. The Company is required to adopt the
provisions of this statement in the first quarter of fiscal 2008.
Management is reviewing the potential effects of this statement; however,
it does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact
on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132 (R)". SFAS No. 158 requires plan
sponsors of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans
to recognize the funded status of those plans in the statement of financial
position, measure the fair value of plan assets and benefit obligations as
of the date of the fiscal year-end statement of financial position, and
provide additional disclosures. On December 30, 2006, the Company adopted
the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. The effect of
adopting SFAS No. 158 on the Company's financial condition at December 30,
2006 has been included in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. SFAS No. 158 did not have an effect on the Company's
Consolidated Balance Sheet in any prior period. The requirement to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer's fiscal
year-end statement of financial position has not yet been adopted as it is
required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. See Note 9 for



further discussion of the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior years' Consolidated Financial Statements
have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

General

The years ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25,
2004 contained 52, 53, and 52 weeks, respectively.
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Note 2 - Inventories
<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>

2006 2005

<S> <C> <C>
Raw material and supplies $ 48,265 S 42,333
Work-in-process 40,209 24,610
Finished goods 188,457 133,874
Valuation reserves (18,284) (3,830)
Inventories S 258,647 S 196,987
</TABLE>

Inventories valued using the LIFO method totaled $32.6 million at
December 30, 2006 and $33.5 million at December 31, 2005. At
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the approximate FIFO cost of such
inventories was $143.1 million and $87.8 million respectively. During the
fourth quarter of 2006 certain inventories valued using the FIFO method and
certain firm commitments to purchase inventories were written down to the
lower of cost or market. The write down of approximately $14.2 million,
or 26 cents per diluted share after tax, resulted from the open market price
of copper falling below the inventories' net book value.

Note 3 - Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005
<S> <C> <C>
Land and land improvements S 12,481 S 11,881
Buildings 101,046 93,013
Machinery and equipment 535,373 504,075
Construction in progress 15,430 7,098
664,330 616,067
Less accumulated depreciation (349, 2606) (309,021)
Property, plant, and equipment, net S 315,064 S 307,046
</TABLE>

Note 4 - Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill were as follows:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
Plumbing &



Refrigeration

<S> <
Balance at December 25, 2004 $
Goodwill resulting from
acquisitions during the year
Adjustments to the fair value of
businesses acquired during 2004
Contingent earn-out payments
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Balance at December 31, 2005
Goodwill resulting from
acquisitions during the year
Foreign currency translation adjustment

Balance at December 30, 2006 S

</TABLE>

During 2004,

charge related to Overstreet-Hughes, Co.,

best estimate of fair value.
discounted cash flow method.

Note 5 - Long-Term Debt

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>

<S>

6% Subordinated Debentures, due 2014

2001 Series IRBs with interest at
6.63%, due 2021

Mueller-Xingrong line of credit with
interest at 5.47%, due 2007

Other,

Less current portion of long-term debt

Long-term debt

</TABLE>
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On October 26, 2004,

$299.5 million in principal amount of its 6% Subordinated Debentures
Interest on the Debentures is payable
The Company may repurchase the

Debentures) due November 1, 2014.
semi-annually on May 1 and November 1.

Segment
Cc>
128,115

11,174

1,589
3,000
(560)

145, 682

OEM

Segment
<C>

$ 8,500
353
8,853
1,118
S 9,971

Total
<C>
$ 136,615

11,174

1,589
3,353
(560)

152,171

1,118
2,364

$ 155,653

Inc.

including capitalized lease obligations

1

2006

<C>

$

297,688
10,000

27,737

8,727

344,152
(35,998)

308,154

the Company recognized a $3.9 million non-cash impairment
and reduced its goodwill by
$2.3 million and its carrying cost in long-lived assets by $1.6 million,
This estimate was determined based on a

its

2005
<C>
$ 299,492

10,000

316,190
(4,120)

$ 312,070

as part of a Special Dividend, the Company issued

(the

Debentures through open market transactions or through privately negotiated

transactions.

During 2006 the Company repurchased through open market

transactions and extinguished $1.8 million in principal amount of its

Debentures.

The Debentures may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part

from time to time at the option of the Company at the following redemption

price

unpaid interest to, but excluding,

<TABLE>

(expressed as a percentage of principal amount)
the redemption date:

If redeemed during the 12-month period beginning October 26,

<CAPTION>

Year
<S>

2006

2007

2008

2009 and thereafter
</TABLE>

On December 1, 2006,

plus any accrued but

Redemption Price

<C>
103%
102
101
100

the Company executed a Credit Agreement

(the

Agreement) with a syndicate of banks establishing an unsecured $200 million

revolving credit facility (the Credit Fac
2011.

option,
Federal Funds rate plus 0.5 percent.
one, two, three, or six-month LIBOR.
based on certain financial ratios,
points. At December 30, 2006,
Additionally,

ility)

Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest,
at LIBOR plus a variable premium or the greater of Prime or the
LIBOR advances may be based upon the
The variable premium over LIBOR is
and can range from 27.5 to 67.5 basis
the premium was 50.0 basis points.
a facility fee is payable quarterly on the total commitment
and varies from 10.0 to 20.0 basis points based upon the Company's

which matures December 1,
at the Company's



capitalization ratio. Availability of funds under the Credit Facility is
reduced by the amount of certain outstanding letters of credit, which are
used to secure the Company's payment of insurance deductibles and certain
retiree health benefits, totaling approximately $10.8 million at December
30, 2006. Terms of the letters of credit are generally one year but are
renewable annually as required. There were no borrowings outstanding as of
December 30, 2006.

Borrowings under the Agreement require the Company, among other things,
to meet certain minimum financial ratios. At December 30, 2006, the
Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.

On April 4, 2006, Mueller-Xingrong, the Company's majority owned
subsidiary, entered into a Credit Agreement with a syndicate of four banks
establishing a secured RMB 320 million, or $39.9 million USD, revolving
working capital credit facility (the JV Credit Facility) which matures in
April 2007. Proceeds from the JV Credit Facility were used to pay-off
amounts outstanding under an existing bridge loan facility. Borrowings
under the JV Credit Facility are secured by the real property and equipment
of Mueller-Xingrong and bear interest at 98 percent of the latest base-
lending rate published by the Peoples Bank of China (currently 5.47
percent) .
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Aggregate annual maturities of the Company's debt are $36.0 million,
$0.1 million, $0.1 million, $0.1 million, and $0.8 million for the
years 2007 through 2011 respectively. Interest paid in 2006, 2005, and
2004 was $20.4 million, $19.0 million, and $1.1 million respectively. No
interest was capitalized in 2006, 2005, or 2004.

Note 6 - Stockholders' Equity

On October 26, 2004, the Company distributed a Special Dividend
consisting of $6.50 in cash and $8.50 in principal amount of the Company's
6% Subordinated Debentures due 2014 for each share of Common Stock.
Additionally, the Company paid regular quarterly cash dividends of 10 cents
per share per quarter in 2006, 2005 and 2004.

The Company's Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase, until
October 2007, of up to 10 million shares of the Company's Common Stock
through open market transactions or through privately negotiated
transactions. The Company has no obligation to purchase any shares and may
cancel, suspend, or extend the time period for the purchase of shares at
any time. Any purchases will be funded primarily through existing cash and
cash from operations. The Company may hold any shares purchased in
treasury or use a portion of the repurchased shares for employee benefit
plans, as well as for other corporate purposes. Through December 30, 2006,
the Company had repurchased approximately 2.4 million shares under this
authorization.

Components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as
follows:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>

2006 2005
<S> <C> <C>
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment $ 25,314 S 6,154
Minimum pension liability, net of income tax - (14,984)
Unrecognized prior service cost, net of income tax (856) -
Unrecognized actuarial net loss, net of income tax (11,582) -
Unrealized derivative losses, net of income tax (373) (18)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) S 12,503 S (8,848)
</TABLE>

The Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS
No. 158 on December 30, 2006. Pursuant to the adoption of SFAS No. 158,
unrecognized prior service costs and actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax.
Additionally, subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, minimum pension
liabilities are no longer recognized. See Note 9 for addition information
regarding the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 158.
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During 2006, the increase in cumulative foreign currency translation



adjustment relates to

percent.

During 2005,

(i) Mueller-Xingrong,
venture formed in December 2005,
pound sterling of approximately 14 percent,

(ii)

and (1iii)

the Company's Chinese joint
the increase in value of British

the tax effect of
certain intercompany transactions of approximately $1.5 million,
offset by the decrease in value of the Mexican peso of approximately 1.5

partially

the reduction in cumulative foreign currency translation

adjustment relates to the decrease in value of British pound sterling of
approximately 10.4 percent plus the tax effect of certain intercompany

transactions of approximately $1.7 million,
increase in value of the Mexican peso of approximately 3.7 percent.

Note 7 - Income Taxes

partially offset by the

The components of income from continuing operations before income taxes,

after consideration of
jurisdictions:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>

<S>
Domestic

Foreign

Income from continuing
before income taxes

</TABLE>

minority interest,

2006
<C>
$ 188,919
14,660
operations
$ 203,579

2005

<C>

$ 114,735
9,470

$ 124,205

were taxed under the following

2004

<C>

$ 110,913
4,445

$ 115,358
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Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations consists of the

following:
<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006
<S> <C>
Current tax (benefit) expense:
Federal S 69,119
Foreign 5,460
State and local (530)
Current tax expense 74,049
Deferred tax (benefit) expense:
Federal (10,544)
Foreign (4,504)
State and local (4,291)
Deferred tax (benefit)expense (19,339)
Income tax expense S 54,710

</TABLE>

2005
<C>

$ 30,920




No provision is made for U.S. income taxes applicable to
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely
reinvested in foreign operations. It is not practicable to compute the
potential deferred tax liability associated with these undistributed
foreign earnings.
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The difference between the reported income tax expense and a tax
determined by applying the applicable U.S. federal statutory income tax
rate to income from continuing operations before income taxes, after
consideration of minority interest, is reconciled as follows:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004

<S> <C> <C> <C>
Expected income tax expense S 71,253 S 43,471 S 40,375
State and local income tax,

net of federal benefit 1,947 316 1,160
Change in estimate for state

deferred taxes (4,137) (1,129) -
Foreign income taxes (2,297) (975) (652)
Valuation allowance (3,5206) (1,962) (2,605)
Adjustment for correction of prior

year tax provision - (2,862) -
U.S. manufacturers deduction (2,355) (1,015) -
Tax contingency changes related to

transfer pricing (3,321) - -
Other, net (2,854) (857) (2,336)
Income tax expense S 54,710 S 34,987 S 35,942
</TABLE>

A foreign income tax holiday is in effect for 2006 and 2007,
resulting in a $0.9 million tax benefit in 2006, or 2 cents per diluted
share. For 2008 through 2010, the foreign jurisdiction will impose a
reduced tax rate.

The Company has recorded tax contingency reserves of $6.1 million as
of December 30, 2006 and $11.9 million as of December 31, 2005 related to
transfer pricing and other miscellaneous risks. During 2006, the Company
recorded a $3.3 million state benefit net of federal effects, or 9 cents
per diluted share, to reduce the tax contingency reserves related to a
change in estimate regarding certain transfer pricing risks.

During 2006, due to a court ruling and other factors, the Company
revised estimates of the future realization of certain state income tax
credits and net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards. Prior to 2006, the
gross deferred tax asset and related valuation allowance for these credit
and NOL carryforwards were not recognized in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. As a result of the factors mentioned above, the Company recognized
$29.0 million in gross deferred tax assets, related to state income tax
credit and NOL carryforwards during 2006. The gross deferred tax asset was
reduced by a valuation allowance of $24.9 million, for a net benefit of
$4.1 million net of federal effects, or 11 cents per diluted share. The
estimates related to the future realization of the state tax credit and
NOL carryforwards are highly subjective and could be affected by changes
in business conditions and the feasibility of tax planning strategies.



Changes in any of these factors could have a material impact on future
income tax expense.
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Tax expense in 2006 was reduced by $2.9 million due to the release
of the remaining valuation allowance associated with the NOL carryforward
in the U.K. Tax expense in 2005 was reduced by $2.5 million due to
reductions in valuation allowance related primarily to the NOL
carryforward in the U.K.

The 2005 adjustment of $2.9 million, or 8 cents per diluted share,
to correct the prior year income tax provision is immaterial to the
results of operations and financial condition for 2005 as well as the
prior affected years.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to
significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are presented below:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005
<S> <C> <C>
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable S 2,560 S 1,864
Inventories 8,184 7,267
Pension, OPEB, and accrued items 19,619 11,769
Other reserves 7,139 5,762
Foreign NOL carryforwards 2,589 4,212
Interest 3,560 2,664
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 4,566 -
State tax credit and NOL carryforwards 29,037 -
Other 1,992 653
Total deferred tax assets 79,246 34,191
Less valuation allowance (24,900) (3,612)
Deferred tax assets, net of
valuation allowance 54,346 30,579
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant, and equipment 66,792 70,724
Foreign withholding tax 1,658 1,460
Other 3,919 2,439
Total deferred tax liabilities 72,369 74,623
Net deferred tax liability S (18,023) S (44,044)

</TABLE>

As of December 30, 2006, the Company had state income tax credit
carryforwards of $6.0 million expiring from 2008 to 2017 and $33.4 million
with unlimited lives. Also as of December 30, 2006, the Company had state
NOL carryforwards available to offset income of $51.2 million, with
various expirations ranging from 2007 to 2025; foreign tax credit
carryforwards of $4.6 million expiring from 2013 to 2015; and foreign NOL
carryforwards available to offset income of $8.6 million with unlimited
lives.
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Income taxes paid were approximately $73.2 million in 2006, $34.5
million in 2005, and $5.0 million in 2004.

During 2006, the Internal Revenue Service concluded an examination
of the Company's federal income tax returns for years 2004, 2003, and 2002.
The results of the examination did not have a material effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company is also being examined by
various state taxing authorities for tax periods from 2002 through 2005.
While the Company believes that it is adequately reserved for possible
audit adjustments, the final resolution of these examinations cannot be
determined at this time and could result in final settlements that differ
from current estimates.

Note 8 - Other Current Liabilities

Included in other current liabilities were accrued discounts and
allowances of $51.1 million at December 30, 2006 and $51.8 million at
December 31, 2005, and taxes payable of $14.8 million at December 30, 2006
and $23.6 million at December 31, 2005.



Note 9 - Employee Benefits

The Company sponsors several qualified and nonqualified pension
plans and other postretirement benefit plans for certain of its employees.
In August 2006, the Pension Protection Act of 2006 was passed. The effect
of this legislation on the Company's pension plans was not material.

On December 30, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and
disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. SFAS No. 158 required the Company
to recognize the funded status of its pension and postretirement plans in
the December 30, 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheet, with a corresponding
adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. The
adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption
represents the net unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and
unrecognized prior service costs remaining from the application of SFAS No.
87, all of which were previously netted against the plans' funded status
in the Company's statement of financial position pursuant to the
provisions of SFAS No. 87. These amounts will be subsequently recognized
as net periodic benefit cost pursuant to the Company's historical
accounting policy for amortizing such amounts. Further actuarial gains
and losses that arise in subsequent periods and are not recognized as net
periodic benefit cost in the same periods will be recognized as a
component of other comprehensive income. Those amounts will be
subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost on the
same basis as the amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income at adoption of SFAS No. 158.
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The adoption of the provisions of SFAS No. 158 resulted in a
decrease in other assets of $1.2 million, an increase in pension
liabilities of $0.2 million, an increase in postretirement benefits other
than pensions of $3.3 million, an increase in deferred tax assets of $1.5
million, and a decrease to accumulated other comprehensive income of $3.2
million. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company's
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 30, 2006, or
for any prior period presented, and it will not effect the Company's
operating results in future periods. Had the Company not been required to
adopt SFAS No. 158 at December 30, 2006, it would have recognized an
additional minimum liability pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87.
The effect of recognizing the additional liability before the adoption of
SFAS No. 158 is presented in the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders'
Equity for the year ended December 30, 2006.

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 30,
2006 are the following amounts that have not yet been recognized in net
periodic benefit cost: wunrecognized prior service costs of $1.4 million,
or $0.9 million net of tax and unrecognized actuarial net losses of $16.7
million, or $11.6 million net of tax. The unrecognized prior service cost
and unrecognized actuarial net loss included in accumulated other
comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit
cost during the year ending December 29, 2007 is $0.5 million, or $0.3
million net of tax, and $0.7 million, or $0.5 million net of tax,
respectively.
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The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the
plans' benefit obligations and the fair value of the plans' assets over
the two-year period ending December 30, 2006, and a statement of the
plans' funded status as of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Change in benefit
obligation:
Obligation at
beginning of year $ 149,773 $ 144,216 $ 11,599 $ 10,800
Service cost 2,104 2,150 7 7
Interest cost 8,419 8,095 641 632
Participant contributions 549 493 - -
Plan amendments - - - 200
Actuarial loss 3,351 8,589 108 658
Benefit payments (7,191) (7,141) (923) (698)
Settlement (373) (68) - -
Foreign currency
translation adjustment 8,806 (6,5601) - -
Obligation at end of year $ 165,438 S 149,773 $ 11,432 $ 11,599
Change in fair value
of plan assets:
Fair value of plan
assets at beginning
of year S 134,294 $ 125,824 S - S -
Actual return on
plan assets 17,169 17,704 - -
Employer contributions 2,343 1,924 923 698
Participant contributions 549 493 - -
Benefit payments (7,191) (7,141) (923) (698)
Settlement (379) (68) - -
Foreign currency
translation adjustment 6,257 (4,442) - -
Fair value of plan assets
at end of year $ 153,042 $ 134,294 S - S -
Funded status:
Funded (underfunded)
status at end of year $ (12,396) $ (15,479) $ (11,432) $ (11,599
Unrecognized prior
service cost 1,247 2,198 111 120
Unrecognized actuarial
net loss 13,426 15,756 3,231 3,302
Net amount recognized S 2,271 S 2,475 S (8,090) S (8,177)
</TABLE>
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Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, the unrecognized prior
service cost and the unrecognized actuarial net loss are recognized in
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of income tax. Additionally,
SFAS No. 158 requires that the aggregate statuses of all overfunded plans
be recognized as an asset and the aggregate statuses of all underfunded
plans be recognized as a liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The amounts recognized as a liability are classified as current or long-
term on a plan-by-plan basis. Liabilities are classified as current to
the extent the actuarial present value of benefits payable within the next
12 months exceed the fair value of plan assets, with all remaining amounts
being classified as long-term. The unrecognized service costs and
unrecognized actuarial net loss are recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income. Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, the net



funded status of the plans was recognized in the Consolidated Balance

Sheet as follows as of December 30, 2006:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>

<S>

Long-term asset
Current liability
Long-term liability

Net funded status

</TABLE>

Pension
Benefits
<C>
$ 7,279
(19,675)
$ (12,396)

Other
Benefits
<C>
$ -
(924)
(10,508)
S (11,432)

The following table provides the amounts recognized in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31,

2005 under the provisions of

SFAS No. 87 prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 158:
<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
Pension Other
Benefits Benefits
<S> <C> <C>
Prepaid benefit cost $ 8,555 $ -
Accrued benefit liability (21,414) (8,177)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income 15,334 -
Net amount recognized S 2,475 S (8,177)

</TABLE>
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The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation,
and fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets were $78.1 million, $75.2 million,
and $58.3 million, respectively, as of December 30, 2006, and $65.7
million, $64.3 million, and $45.3 million, respectively, as of December 31,
2005. The Company sponsors one pension plan in the U.K. which comprises
45 percent of the above benefit obligation and 37 percent of the plan
assets as of December 30, 2006.

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Pension benefits:
Service cost $ 2,104 S 2,150 $ 1,972
Interest cost 8,419 8,095 7,972
Expected return on
plan assets (10,619) (9,711) (9,125)
Amortization of prior
service cost 373 372 373
Amortization of net loss 1,112 919 963
Effect of curtailment and settlements 704 25 -
Net periodic benefit cost S 2,093 S 1,850 S 2,155
Other benefits:
Service cost $ 7 $ 7 $ 5
Interest cost 641 632 649
Amortization of prior
service cost 8 8 (8)
Amortization of net loss 179 130 142
Net periodic benefit cost $ 835 $ 777 $ 788

</TABLE>



During 2006, the Company amended a collective bargaining agreement
which froze the accrual of future benefits related to one of its pension
plans. This resulted in a curtailment loss of $0.6 million during the
period.

Prior service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
average remaining service period of active participants. Gains and losses
in excess of 10 percent of the greater of the benefit obligation and the
market-related value of assets are amortized over the average remaining
service period of active participants.
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The weighted average assumptions used in the measurement of the
Company's benefit obligations are as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Discount rate 5.40% 5.59% 5.75% 6.00%
Expected return
on plan assets 7.83% 7.94% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation
increases 4.00% 4.00% N/A N/A
</TABLE>

The weighted average assumptions used in the measurement of the
Company's net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Discount rate 5.59% 5.91% 6.08% 6.00% 6.00% 6.25%
Expected return
on plan assets 7.94% 8.06% 8.07% N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation
increases 4.00% 4.50% 4.25% N/A N/A N/A
</TABLE>

Only one pension plan uses the rate of compensation increase in its
benefit formula. All other pension plans are based on length of service.
The measurement date for the majority of the plans is November 30.

The annual assumed rate of increase in the per capita cost of
covered benefits (i.e., health care cost trend rate) is assumed to range
from 6.6 to 8.4 percent for 2006, gradually decrease to 4.5 percent for
2011, and remain at that level thereafter. The health care cost trend
rate assumption could have a significant effect on the amounts reported.
For example, increasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by one
percentage point would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation by $0.9 million and the service and interest cost components
of net periodic postretirement benefit costs by $0.1 million for 2006.
Decreasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage
point in each year would decrease the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation and the service and interest cost components of net periodic
postretirement benefit costs for 2006 by $0.9 million and $0.1 million,
respectively.
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The weighted average asset allocation of the Company's pension fund
assets are as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Asset Category Pension Plan Assets



<S> <C> <C>
Equity securities (includes equity index funds) 78% 80
Fixed income securities 7 6
Cash and equivalents 5 3
Alternative investments 10 11
100% 100

</TABLE>

At December 30, 2006, the Company's target allocation, by asset
category, of assets of its defined benefit pension plans is: (i) equity
securities, including equity index funds - at least 60%; (ii) fixed income

securities - not more than 25%; and (iii) alternative investments - not
more than 20%.

The Company's pension plan obligations are long-term in nature and,
accordingly, the plan assets are invested for the long-term. The Company
believes that a diversified portfolio of equity securities (both actively
managed and index funds) and private equity funds have an acceptable risk-
return profile that, over the long-term, is better than fixed income
securities. Consequently, the pension plan assets are heavily weighted to
equity investments. Plan assets are monitored periodically. Based upon
results, investment managers and/or asset classes are redeployed when
considered necessary. Expected rates of return on plan assets were
determined based on historical market returns giving consideration to the
composition of each plan's portfolio. None of the plans' assets are
expected to be returned to the Company during the next fiscal year.
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The plans' assets do not include investment in securities issued by
the Company. The Company expects to contribute approximately $2.5 million
to its pension plans and $0.9 million to its other postretirement benefit
plans in 2007. The Company expects future benefits to be paid from the
plans as follows:

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
Pension Other
Benefits Benefits
<S> <C> <C>
2007 $ 8,049 S 924
2008 7,824 939
2009 8,020 954
2010 7,967 966
2011 8,155 973
2012-2016 44,649 4,068
Total S 84,664 S 8,824
</TABLE>

The Company sponsors voluntary employee savings plans that qualify
under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Compensation
expense for the Company's matching contribution to the 401 (k) plans was
$2.4 million in 2006, $2.2 million in 2005, and $2.0 million in 2004. The
Company's match is a cash contribution. Participants direct the
investment of their account balances by allocating among a range of asset
classes including mutual funds (equity, fixed income, and balanced funds),
and money market funds. The plans do not offer direct investment in
securities issued by the Company.



In October 1992, the Coal Industry Retiree Health Benefit Act of
1992 (the Act) was enacted. The Act mandates a method of providing for
postretirement benefits to UMWA current and retired employees, including
some retirees who were never employed by the Company. In October 1993,
beneficiaries were assigned to the Company and the Company began its
mandated contributions to the UMWA Combined Benefit Fund, a multiemployer
trust. Beginning in 1994, the Company was required to make contributions
for assigned beneficiaries under an additional multiemployer trust created
by the Act, the UMWA 1992 Benefit Plan. The ultimate amount of the
Company's liability under the Act will vary due to factors which include,
among other things, the wvalidity, interpretation, and regulation of the
Act, its joint and several obligation, the number of valid beneficiaries
assigned, and the extent to which funding for this obligation will be
satisfied by transfers of excess assets from the 1950 UMWA pension plan
and transfers from the Abandoned Mine Reclamation Fund. Nonetheless, the
Company believes it has an adequate reserve for this liability, which
totaled $6.1 million in 2006 and in 2005.

F-45

The Company makes contributions to certain multiemployer defined
benefit pension plan trusts that cover union employees based on collective
bargaining agreements. Contributions by employees are not required nor
are they permitted. Pension expense under the multiemployer defined
benefit pension plans was $0.9 million for 2006, $0.7 million for 2005,
and $0.4 million for 2004.

Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is subject to environmental standards imposed by federal,
state, local, and foreign environmental laws and regulations. For non-
operating properties, the Company has provided and charged to income $0.6
million in 2006, $0.6 million in 2005, and $1.0 million in 2004 for
pending environmental matters. The basis for the provision is updated
information and results of ongoing remediation and monitoring programs.
Environmental reserves total $8.9 million in 2006 and $9.1 million in 2005.
These estimated future costs, which will be funded in future years as
remediation programs progress, are not discounted to their present value,
and are not reduced by potential insurance reimbursements. Management
believes that the outcome of pending environmental matters will not
materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the
Company.

The Company is involved in certain litigation as a result of claims
that arose in the ordinary course of business, which management believes
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
position or results of operations. Additionally, the Company may realize
the benefit of certain legal claims and litigation in the future; these
gain contingencies are not recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Beginning in September 2004, the Company has been named as a
defendant in several purported class action complaints brought by direct
and indirect purchasers alleging anticompetitive activities with respect
to the sale of copper tubes in the United States (the Copper Tube Actions).
Two such purported class actions were filed in the United States District
Court for the Western District of Tennessee (the Federal Actions). The
remaining Copper Tube Actions were filed in state courts in Tennessee,
California and Massachusetts.

Certain of the Copper Tube Actions purport to address the sale of
copper plumbing tube in particular. Plaintiffs' motions to consolidate
the Federal Actions and the actions pending in California state court,
respectively, have been granted. All of the Copper Tube Actions, which
are similar, seek monetary and other relief. Wholly owned Company
subsidiaries, WTC Holding Company, Inc., Deno Holding Company, Inc., and
Mueller Europe Ltd. (Mueller Europe), are named in all of the Copper Tube
Actions, and Deno Acquisition Eurl is currently named in two of the Copper
Tube Actions but has not been served with the complaints in those actions.
The claims against WTC Holding Company, Inc. and Deno Holding Company Inc.
have been dismissed without prejudice in the Copper Tube Actions pending in
California and Massachusetts state courts.



In September 2006, the Federal Actions were dismissed as to Mueller
Europe for lack of personal jurisdiction. In October 2006, the Federal
Actions were dismissed in their entirety for lack of subject matter
jurisdiction as to all defendants. Although plaintiffs filed a motion for
reconsideration of the dismissal of Mueller Europe, the court has held
that such motion was mooted by its dismissal of the case for lack of
subject matter jurisdiction. Plaintiffs have filed a motion to alter or
amend the judgment dismissing the complaint for lack of subject matter
jurisdiction, which remains pending.

The Company's demurrer to the complaint and the Company's motion to
dismiss for failure to state a claim have been filed in the state court
actions filed in California and Tennessee, respectively. The Company has
not yet been required to respond to the complaint in the action pending in
Massachusetts state court. Mueller Europe has not yet been required to
respond to the complaints in any of the state court actions pending in
Tennessee, California or Massachusetts. The courts overseeing the
California and Massachusetts state court actions have stayed those actions
conditioned upon the parties' submitting periodic status reports on the
Federal Actions.

The Company believes that the claims for relief in the Copper Tube
Actions are without merit and intends to defend the Copper Tube Actions
vigorously.

In March 2006, the Company and Mueller Europe were named in a
complaint brought by Carrier Corporation, Carrier S.A., and Carrier Italia
S.p.A. alleging anticompetitive activities with respect to the sale of
copper tubes used in the manufacturing of air-conditioning and
refrigeration units (ACR copper tubes) in the United States and elsewhere
(the Carrier Action). The Carrier Action was filed in United States
District Court for the Western District of Tennessee.

In addition, beginning in April 2006, the Company has been named as
a defendant in several purported class action lawsuits brought by direct
and indirect purchasers alleging anticompetitive activities with respect
to the sale of ACR copper tubes in the United States and elsewhere (the
ACR Class Actions, and with the Carrier Action, the ACR Actions). Two of
the ACR Class Actions were filed by indirect purchasers in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of California, one of
which alleges anticompetitive activities with respect to plumbing tubes as
well as ACR copper tubes. Five of the ACR Class Actions (two of which
have been consolidated to become the "Indirect ACR Class Actions" and
three of which have been consolidated to become the "Direct ACR Class
Actions") were filed in the United States District Court for the Western
District of Tennessee.
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Mueller Europe and the Company are named in all of the ACR Actions.
WTC Holding Company, Inc., Deno Holding Company, Inc., and Deno
Acquisition Eurl are named in one of the ACR Class Actions filed in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of California.
Motions to dismiss by the Company and by Mueller Europe are pending in the
Carrier Action. The Company and Mueller Europe have been served, but have
not yet been required to respond, in the Direct ACR Class Actions and the
Indirect ACR Class Actions. The Company, Mueller Europe, WTC Holding
Company, Inc., and Deno Holding Company, Inc. have been served, but have
not yet been required to respond, in one of the ACR Class Actions filed in
the United States District Court for the Northern District of California.
Plaintiffs in the second of the ACR Class Actions filed in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of California (which
addressed only ACR copper tubes) have voluntarily dismissed that action
without prejudice.

The Company believes that the claims for relief in the ACR Actions
are without merit and intends to defend the ACR Actions vigorously.

Two of the Company's subsidiaries, Mueller Copper Tube Products Inc.
and Mueller Copper Tube Company Inc., brought a lawsuit (the Price
Manipulation Action) against J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and Morgan Guaranty
Trust Company of New York (collectively Morgan) to recover damages the
Company believes it suffered on first purchases of copper cathode
resulting from an alleged conspiracy to manipulate the price of copper



cathode by Morgan (and certain of its predecessors and affiliates) and
others in violation of the federal antitrust laws. The lawsuit was filed
on June 12, 2003, in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of
Wisconsin. The Company's lawsuit was consolidated with those of certain
other first purchasers of copper cathode and rod under the name In re
Copper Antitrust Litigation. Although the Price Manipulation Action was
dismissed by the district court on March 2, 2004, as barred by the statute
of limitations, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit, on
February 6, 2006, reversed the district court's decision in part and
remanded the Price Manipulation Action for further proceedings in the
district court. On January 16, 2007, Morgan filed a Motion for Summary
Judgment which is now pending before the District Court. Although the
Company is unable to predict the likely outcome of the Price Manipulation
Action at this time, the Company is prosecuting the case vigorously, and
intends to continue to do so in the future.

In June 2006, the Canada Border Services Agency (CBSA) initiated an
investigation into the alleged dumping of certain copper pipe fittings
from the United States and from South Korea, and the dumping and
subsidizing of these same goods from China. The Company and certain
affiliated companies were identified by the CBSA as exporters and
importers of these goods.

On January 18, 2007, the CBSA issued a final determination in its
investigation. The Company was found to have dumped subject goods during
the CBSA's investigation period. On February 19, 2007, the Canadian
International Trade Tribunal (CITT) concluded that the dumping of the
subject goods from the United States had caused injury to the Canadian
industry.
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As a result, a final anti-dumping duty order issued February 19,
2007, and exports of subject goods to Canada by the Company after this
date will be subject to such duties, at various rates, during the five-
year term of the order. If future exports are above normal values, however,
no anti-dumping duties will be levied.

The Company is assessing the terms of the order. Given the small
percentage of its products that are sold for export to Canada, the Company
does not anticipate any material adverse effect on its financial condition
as a result of the CITT findings. However, its ability to compete in the
Canadian market may be impaired.

The Company is aware of an investigation of competition in markets
in which it participates, or has participated in the past, in Canada. The
Company does not anticipate any material adverse effect on its business or
financial condition as a result of that investigation.

On September 22, 2005, the European Commission adopted a statement
alleging infringements in Europe of competition rules by manufacturers of
copper fittings including the Company and a business in England that it
acquired in 1997. The Company took the lead in bringing these copper
fitting issues to the attention of the European Commission and has fully
cooperated in the resulting investigation from its inception. On
September 20, 2006, the European Commission adopted its copper fittings
decision, finding infringements in Europe of competition rules by various
companies, including the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, and
imposing fines on various companies. Neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries were assessed any fines.

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under operating
leases expiring on various dates through 2015. The lease payments under
these agreements aggregate to approximately $7.1 million in 2007, $4.9
million in 2008, $2.8 million in 2009, $2.3 million in 2010, and $1.6
million in 2011, and $1.8 million thereafter. Total lease expense
amounted to $9.4 million in 2006, $9.4 million in 2005, and $7.9 million
in 2004.

During 2004, the Company (1) entered into consulting and non-compete
agreements (the Consulting Agreements) with Harvey L. Karp, Chairman of the
Board, and William D. O'Hagan, Chief Executive Officer, and (2) amended Mr.
Karp's employment agreement with the Company. The amendment to Mr. Karp's
employment agreement eliminates the three-year rolling term of the
agreement and imposes a fixed term ending on December 31, 2007. The
Consulting Agreements provide for post-employment services to be provided
by Messrs. Karp and O'Hagan for a six-year period. During the first four
years of the Consulting Agreements, an annual fee equal to two-thirds of
each executive's Final Base Compensation (as defined in the Consulting
Agreements) will be payable. During the final two years, the annual fee is
set at one-third of each Executive's Final Base Compensation. During the
term of the Consulting Agreements, each executive agrees not to engage in
Competitive Activity (as defined in the Consulting Agreements) and will be



entitled to receive certain other benefits from the Company. The term of
Mr. O'Hagan's Consulting Agreement will commence upon the earliest of Mr.
O'Hagan's termination of employment by the Company without Cause (as
defined in his current employment agreement) upon termination of his
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employment in connection with a change in control as defined in his current
employment agreement or upon his voluntary resignation from employment with
the Company for Good Reason (as defined in his current employment
agreement) . The term of Mr. Karp's Consulting Agreement will commence on
the earliest of January 1, 2008 (the day following the end of his fixed
employment term); his termination of employment by the Company without
Cause (as defined in his employment agreement); or his voluntary
resignation for Good Reason (as defined in his employment agreement); or
upon termination of his employment in connection with a change in control
as defined in his current employment. Based upon the value of the non-
compete provisions of the Consulting Agreements, the Company will expense
the value of the Consulting Agreements over their term.

Note 11 - Other Income, Net

<TABLE>
(In thousands)
<CAPTION>
2006 2005 2004

<S> <C> <C> <C>
Rent and royalties S 2,068 S 2,111 S 1,773
Interest income 6,073 2,306 2,385
(Loss)gain on disposal of

properties, net (2,620) 3,665 5,729
Minority interest in income

of subsidiaries (2,610) (9) (43)
Environmental expense (580) (556) (976)
Gain on sale of equity investment 1,876 - -
Equity in earnings (loss) of

unconsolidated subsidiary 964 4,480 (2,0206)
Other income, net S 5,171 S 11,997 S 6,842
</TABLE>

Note 12 - Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (R),
"Share-Based Payment", and began recognizing compensation expense for
its stock option grants based on the fair value of the awards, classified
as a selling, general and administrative expense. Prior to January 1,
2006, the Company accounted for stock option grants under the recognition
and measurement provisions of APB Opinion 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees", and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. No stock-based compensation
expense was reflected in net income prior to adopting SFAS No. 123 (R) as
all options were granted at an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. SFAS No. 123 (R) was
adopted using the modified prospective transition method. Under this
transition method, compensation cost recognized in the periods after
adoption includes: (i) compensation cost for all share-based payments
granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions
of SFAS No. 123, and (ii) compensation cost for all share-based payments
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granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value
estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123 (R). Results
from prior periods have not been restated. As a result of adopting SFAS
No. 123 (R), the Company's income from continuing operations before income
taxes and income from continuing operations decreased by $2.8 million and
$1.8 million, respectively, for the year ended December 30, 2006.
Additionally basic and diluted earnings per share decreased by $0.05.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123 (R), the Company presented all
tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as
operating cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, as
required under existing pronouncements. SFAS No. 123 (R) requires the
cash flows resulting from the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions
in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options to be
classified as financing cash flows. The $1.1 million tax benefit
classified as cash provided by financing activities in 2006 would have
been classified as cash provided by operations under previous guidance.



The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on the prior
year's net income and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to options granted under
the Company's stock option plans. For purposes of this pro forma
disclosure, the value of the options is estimated using a Black-Scholes-
Merton option pricing model and is amortized to expense over the options'
vesting period.

<TABLE>
(In thousands, except per share data)
<CAPTION>
2005 2004
<S> <C> <C>
Net income as reported S 92,542 S 79,416
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation
expense determined under a fair value
based method, net of related tax effects (2,360) (2,114)
SFAS No. 123 pro forma net income S 90,182 S 77,302
Pro forma earning per share:
Basic S 2.46 S 2.19
Diluted $ 2.41 $ 2.09
Earnings per share, as reported:
Basic S 2.53 S 2.25
Diluted $ 2.49 $ 2.15

</TABLE>
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Under existing plans, the Company may grant options to purchase
shares of common stock at prices not less than the fair market value of
the stock on the date of grant. Generally, the options vest annually in
equal increments over a five-year period beginning one year from the date
of grant. Any unexercised options expire after not more than ten years.
The fair value of each grant is estimated as a single award and amortized

into compensation expense on a straight-line basis over its vesting period.

The Company estimates the fair value of all stock option awards as
of the grant date by applying the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing
model. The use of this valuation model involves certain assumptions that
are judgmental and highly sensitive in the determination of compensation
expense including the expected life of the option, stock price volatility,
risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, and exercise price. Additionally
under SFAS No. 123 (R), forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuation
and reduce expense ratably over the vesting period. The forfeiture rate,
which is estimated at a weighted average of 3.5 percent of unvested
options outstanding as of December 30, 2006, is adjusted periodically
based on the extent to which actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to
differ, from the previous estimate. Under SFAS No. 123 and APB 25, the
Company elected to account for forfeitures when awards were actually
forfeited and reflected the forfeitures as a cumulative adjustment to the
pro forma expense. The weighted average for key assumptions used in
determining the fair value of options granted and a discussion of the
methodology used to develop each assumption are as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2006 2005 2004
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Expected term 6.4 years 6.0 years 6.0 years
Expected price volatility 0.269 0.249 0.274
Risk-free interest rate 4.9% 4.5% 3.0%
Dividend yield 1.2% 1.3% 1.3%
</TABLE>

Expected term - This is the period of time over which the options granted
are expected to remain outstanding. The Company uses the "simplified"
method found in the Securities and Exchange Commission's Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 to estimate the expected term of stock option grants. An
increase in the expected term will increase compensation expense.

Expected price volatility - This is a measure of the amount by which a
price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate. The Company uses actual



historical changes in the market value of its stock to calculate the
volatility assumption. Daily market value changes from the date of grant
over a past period representative of the expected term of the options are
used. An increase in the expected price volatility rate will increase
compensation expense.

Risk-free interest rate - This is the U.S. Treasury rate for the week of
the grant, having a term representative of the expected term of the
options. An increase in the risk-free rate will increase compensation
expense.
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Dividend yield - This rate is the annual dividends per share as a
percentage of the Company's stock price. An increase in the dividend
yield will decrease compensation expense.

The Company generally issues treasury shares when options are
exercised. A summary of the stock option activity and related information
follows:

<TABLE>

(Shares in thousands)

<CAPTION>

Weighted Average
Options Exercise Price

<S> <C> <C>

Outstanding at December 27, 2003 4,125 S 10.82
Granted 479 20.77
Exercised (3,247) 5.90
Cancelled (68) 26.40
Equitable adjustment to outstanding options 493

Outstanding at December 25, 2004 1,782 18.78
Granted 460 30.02
Exercised (283) 18.04
Cancelled (47) 24.45

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 1,912 21.49
Granted 355 35.11
Exercised (414) 18.60
Cancelled (141) 26.96

Outstanding at December 30, 2006 1,712 24 .56

</TABLE>

At December 30, 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value of all
outstanding options was $12.3 million with a weighted average remaining
contractual term of 6.9 years, of which 678,433 of the outstanding options
are currently exercisable with an aggregate intrinsic value of $7.6
million, a weighted average exercise price of $20.56, and a weighted
average remaining contractual term of 5.4 years. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised during 2006 was $5.7 million. The total
compensation expense at December 30, 2006 related to non-vested awards not
yet recognized was $7.2 million with an average expense recognition period
of 3.5 years.

Under the Company's 1994 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan,
each member of the Company's Board of Directors who is neither an employee
nor an officer of the Company is automatically granted each year on the
date of the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, without further
action by the Board, an option to purchase 2,000 shares of Common Stock at
the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date the option is
granted. As of December 30, 2006, options to purchase 54,232 shares of
Common Stock were outstanding under this Plan and 21,588 options are
available under the Plan for future issuance.
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During 2006, the Board and shareholders approved an amendment and
restatement of the 2002 Stock Option Plan, which, among other things,
increased the number of shares available for issuance by 1.0 million
shares. Shares available for future employee grants were approximately
0.8 million at December 30, 2006.

Mr. Harvey L. Karp, Chairman of the Company's Board of Directors,
exercised options to purchase 2.4 million shares of Company stock during
2004. As provided in Mr. Karp's option agreement, the Company withheld
the number of shares, at fair market value, sufficient to cover the
minimum withholding taxes incurred by the exercise. These shares withheld



have been classified as acquisition of treasury stock in the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note 13 - Acquisitions and Investments

In December 2005, two subsidiaries of the Company received a
business license from a Chinese industry and commerce authority,
establishing a joint venture with Jiangsu Xingrong Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. and
Jiangsu Baiyang Industries Ltd. The joint venture, in which the Company
holds a 50.5 percent interest, produces inner groove and smooth tube in
level-wound coils, pancake coils, and straight lengths, primarily to serve
the Chinese domestic OEM air-conditioning market as well as to complement
the Company's U.S. product line. The joint venture is located primarily
in Jintan City, Jiangsu Province, China. The joint venture entity is
named Jiangsu Mueller-Xingrong Copper Industries Limited.

In December 2005, the Company contributed $7.0 million cash

investment to the venture. During the first quarter of 2006 the Company
contributed an additional $12.4 million, which completed its initial
planned cash investment. Non-cash contributions from the other joint
venture parties included long-lived assets of approximately $5.3 million
in December 2005 and $8.5 million during the first quarter of 2006. The
results of operations of this joint venture are reported in the OEM
segment and are included in the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements from January 1, 2006.

On August 15, 2005, the Company acquired 100 percent of the
outstanding stock of KX Company Limited (Brassware). Brassware, located in
Witton, Birmingham, England is an import distributor of plumbing and
residential heating products with annual sales of approximately $48
million to plumbers' merchants and builders' merchants in the U.K. and
Ireland. The cost of the acquired business, including cash of $10.6
million plus $1.8 million of notes issued, totaled $12.4 million. The
total estimated fair value of assets acquired was approximately $17.6
million, consisting primarily of receivables of $8.4 million, inventory of
$6.4 million and property and equipment of $1.5 million. The total
estimated fair value of liabilities assumed was approximately $16.4
million, consisting primarily of notes payable of $8.3 million and trade
payables and other current liabilities of $8.1 million. The excess of the
purchase price over the estimated fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed of $11.2 million was allocated to goodwill of the
Plumbing & Refrigeration Segment as this acquisition will broaden the
Company's product line in the U.K.
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On December 14, 2004, the Company acquired shares in seven companies
and the inventory of another company (collectively Mueller Comercial S.A.)
for an aggregate of $42.3 million, subject to closing adjustments, including
$3.0 million for a contingent earn-out payment, which was paid during 2006.
These operations consist of pipe nipple manufacturing in Mexico and import
distribution businesses including product lines of malleable iron fittings
and other plumbing specialties. The combined sales of Mueller Comercial
S.A. are approximately $60 million annually.

On August 27, 2004, the Company acquired 100 percent of the
outstanding stock of Vemco Brasscapri Limited (Vemco). Vemco, located in
Wellington, Somerset, England, is an import distributor of plumbing
products with annual sales of approximately $26 million to plumbers'
merchants and builders' merchants throughout the U. K. Total
consideration paid at closing was approximately $14.6 million.

These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. Therefore, the results of operations of the acquired
businesses were included in the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements from their respective acquisition dates. The purchase price
for these acquisitions, which was financed by available cash balances, has
been allocated to the assets and liabilities of the acquired businesses
based on their respective fair market values.

The total fair value of assets acquired in 2004 was $80.9 million,
consisting primarily of receivables of $20.7 million, inventories of $18.9
million, and properties of $8.4 million. The fair value of liabilities
assumed in 2004 was $22.3 million, consisting primarily of $8.3 million of
notes payable and $14.0 million of accounts payable and other current
liabilities. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed of $33.0 million was
allocated to goodwill of the Plumbing & Refrigeration Segment as these
acquisitions will broaden the Company's product line in the U.K. and
Mexico and should provide opportunities to leverage our manufacturing
operations. The Mueller Comercial purchase price allocation was finalized
in 2005. The impact of the final allocation was a reduction in the fair
value of the net assets acquired of $1.3 million, primarily from a



reduction in the fair value of property, plant and equipment based on an
appraisal of the long-lived assets as well as certain purchase price
adjustments refunded by the Seller. The net result of these adjustments
to the preliminary purchase price allocation was to increase goodwill
related to Mueller Comercial by approximately $4.3 million. Goodwill is
not deductible for tax purposes.

During 2002, the Company acquired an equity interest in Conbraco
for $7.3 million in cash; early in 2003, the Company acquired an additional
interest for $10.8 million. Conbraco is a manufacturer of flow control
products including ball valves, backflow preventers, and plumbing and heating
products for commercial and industrial applications. The Company's interest
totaled approximately 38 percent of Conbraco's equity at December 31, 2005.
This investment was accounted for by the equity method of accounting, and is
included in the other assets classification in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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provision of $2.3 million was recognized in 2004 for certain federal
income tax audit exposures of Conbraco. Conbraco settled these tax
matters during 2005; consequently, the Company reversed the loss accrual
that resulted in a $2.3 million gain in 2005. In 2006 the Company sold
its interest in Conbraco for approximately $23.0 million, realizing a pre-
tax gain of $1.9 million on the sale.

Note 14 - Discontinued Operations

During 2002, the Company completed the sale of its wholly owned
subsidiary, Utah Railway Company. During 2005, the Company recognized a
gain of $5.2 million less income tax of $1.9 million upon the settlement
of a business interruption claim related to this operation.

Note 15 - Industry Segments

The Company's reportable segments are Plumbing & Refrigeration and
OEM. Prior to 2005, the Company disclosed its reportable segments as
Standard Products and Industrial Products. Additional operating segments
have been recognized following internal reorganizations in 2006 and 2005.
For disclosure purposes, as permitted under SFAS No. 131 "Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information", certain operating
segments are aggregated into reportable segments. The Plumbing &
Refrigeration segment is composed of Standard Products (SPD), European
Operations, and Mexican Operations. The OEM segment is composed of
Industrial Products (IPD) and Engineered Products (EPD). These segments
are classified primarily by the markets for their products. Performance
of segments is generally evaluated by their operating income.

SPD manufactures copper tube and fittings, plastic fittings, and
line sets. These products are manufactured in the U.S. Outside the U.S.,
the Company's European Operations manufacture copper tube, which is sold
in Europe and the Middle East. SPD also imports and resells brass and
plastic plumbing valves, malleable iron fittings, faucets, and plumbing
specialty products. Mexican Operations consist of pipe nipple
manufacturing and import distribution businesses including product lines
of malleable iron fittings and other plumbing specialties. The European
Operations consist of copper tube manufacturing and the import
distribution of fittings, valves, and plumbing specialties primarily in
the U.K. and Ireland. The Plumbing & Refrigeration segment's products are
sold primarily to plumbing, refrigeration, and air-conditioning
wholesalers, hardware wholesalers and co-ops, and building product
retailers.

IPD manufactures brass rod, impact extrusions, and forgings as well
as a variety of end products including plumbing brass; automotive
components; valves and fittings; and specialty copper, copper-alloy, and
aluminum tubing. EPD manufactures and fabricates valves and assemblies
for the refrigeration, air-conditioning, gas appliance, and barbecue grill
markets. These products are sold primarily to OEM customers.
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Summarized product line, geographic, and segment information is
shown in the following tables. Geographic sales data indicates the
location from which products are shipped. Unallocated expenses include
general corporate expenses, plus certain charges or credits not included



in segment activity.

Worldwide sales to one customer in the Plumbing & Refrigeration
segment totaled $370.8 million in 2006,
million in 2004 which represented 15 percent in 2006,

$264.2 million in 2005,

and $170.1

15 percent in 2005

and 12 percent in 2004 of the Company's consolidated net sales.
customer accounted for more than 10 percent of consolidated net sales.

NET SALES BY MAJOR PRODUCT LINE:
<TABLE>

(In thousands)

<CAPTION>

<S>
Tube & fittings
Valves & plumbing specialties
Brass rod & forgings
OEM components, tube & assemblies
Other

</TABLE>

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION:
<TABLE>

(In thousands)
<CAPTION>

<S>

Net sales:
United States
United Kingdom
Other

Long-lived assets:
United States
United Kingdom
Other

</TABLE>

SEGMENT INFORMATION:
<TABLE>

(In thousands)
<CAPTION>

<S>
Net sales:
Plumbing & Refrigeration
OEM
Elimination of intersegment sales

Depreciation and amortization:
Plumbing & Refrigeration
OEM
General corporate

Operating income:
Plumbing & Refrigeration
OEM
Unallocated expenses

Total operating income

2006
<C>
51,428,979

261,844
499,878
267,452

52,759

$2,510, 912

2005
<C>
$1,060,348
211,765
288,559
117,232
52,019

$1,729,923

No other

2004

<C>

$ 887,132
100,307
222,002
119,659
49,956

$1,379,056

2006
<C>

$1,963,666
326,047
221,199

$2,510,912

2005
<C>

$1,477,942
204,020
47,961

$1,729,923

2004
<C>

$1,211,178
144,784
23,094

$1,379,056

$ 356,854 $ 392,097 $ 416,206
72,978 63,221 61,463
62,881 37,334 30,731

S 492,713 492,652 $ 508,400
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2006 2005 2004
<C> <C> <C>

$1,716,613
835,339
(41,040)

$2,510, 912

51,281,688
460,301
(12,066)

$1,002,086
392,645
(15,675)

s 28,722 $ 29,393 $ 28,309
11,754 10,225 11,158
1,379 1,240 1,172

$ 41,855 $ 40,858 $ 40,639
$ 197,402 $ 125,502 $ 108,265
44,764 26,985 20,562
(23,281) (20,729) (16,337)
218,885 131,758 112,490



Interest expense
Other income, net

Income from continuing operations
before income taxes:

Expenditures for long-lived assets:
Plumbing & Refrigeration
OEM

Segment assets:
Plumbing & Refrigeration
OEM
General corporate

</TABLE>
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Note 16 - Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

<TABLE>
(In thousands, except per share data)
<CAPTION>

First
Quarter

<S> <C>
2006
Net sales $ 551,039
Gross profit (1) 93,970
Net income 33,365
Basic earnings per share 0.91
Diluted earnings per share: 0.90
Dividends per share 0.10
2005
Net sales $ 401,663
Gross profit (1) 67,639
Income from

continuing operations 15,208
Income from discontinued

operations net of tax -
Net income 15,208
Basic earnings per share:

From continuing operations 0.42

From discontinued operations -
Basic earnings per share: 0.42
Diluted earnings per share:

From continuing operations 0.41

From discontinued operations -
Diluted earnings per share 0.41
Dividends per share 0.10
</TABLE>

(20,477) (19,550) (3,974)
5,171 11,997 6,842
$ 203,579 $ 124,205 $ 115,358
$ 15,847 S 20,727 S 74,536
24,852 4,915 2,338
S 40,699 $ 25,642 S 76,874
$ 760,147 $ 730,774 $ 699,001
280,692 197,697 179,926
228,068 188,457 92,401
$1,268,907 $1,116,928 $ 971,328
Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter
<C> <C> <C>
$ 779,663 $ 635,998 $ 544,212
142,625 107,052 57,829 (2)
58,750 51,579 5,175
1.59 1.39 0.14
1.57 1.38 0.14
0.10 0.10 0.10
$ 410,506 $ 434,130 $ 483,624
64,843 73,616 93,750 (3)
17,183 21,016 35,811 (4)
- 3,324 -
17,183 24,340 35,811
0.47 0.57 0.98
- 0.09 -
0.47 0.66 0.98
0.46 0.57 0.97
- 0.09 -
0.46 0.66 0.97
0.10 0.10 0.10

(1) Gross profit is net sales less cost of goods sold,

depreciation and amortization.

which excludes

(2) Fourth quarter of 2006 includes an adjustment to write-down inventories

to the lower of cost or market of $14.2 million.

(3) Fourth quarter of 2005 includes liquidation of LIFO inventories of

$1.3 million.

(4) Fourth quarter of 2005 includes a benefit of $2.9 million to correct

prior year income tax provisions,

from a change in estimate on deferred state taxes,
benefit from utilization of foreign NOL's previously reserved.

a benefit of $1.1 million resulting

and a $1.4 million
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Note 17 - Subsequent Event (Unaudited)

On February 27, 2007, the Company acquired 100 percent of the
outstanding stock of Extruded Metals, Inc. (Extruded) for $32.0 million in
cash. Extruded, located in Belding, Michigan, had annual net sales of
approximately $350 million in 2006.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Mueller Industries, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mueller
Industries, Inc. as of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 30, 2006.
Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable



basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Mueller
Industries, Inc. at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 30, 2006, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of
Mueller Industries, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 26, 2007 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Memphis, Tennessee
February 26, 2007
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MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005, and December 25, 2004
(In thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

Additions

Balance at Charged to
beginning costs and Other

of year expenses additions

Allowance for doubtful accounts S 5,778 S 1,109 S 519 (1)
S 6,806

Environmental reserves S 9,073 S 580 S -
$ 8,907

Valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets S 3,612 S - S 24,814 (2)
$ 24,900

2005
Allowance for doubtful accounts S 3,925 S 1,911 S 165
$ 5,778

Environmental reserves S 9,503 S 556 S (215) (3)
S 9,073

Valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets S 12,880 S 602 S -
S 3,612

2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts S 4,734 S 1,404 S 200
S 3,925

Environmental reserves S 9,560 S 976 S 659 (3)
$ 9,503

Valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets S 15,485 S 1,479 S -

Deductions
<C>

$ 600
$ 746
$ 3,526
$ 223
$ 771
$ 9,870
S 2,413
$ 1,692
$ 4,084



$ 12,880

<FN>
(1) Other consists primarily of bad debt recoveries.
(2) Other includes the additions to valuation allowances during 2006 in which previously unrecorded
gross deferred tax assets and valuation allowances were recognized.
(3) Includes currency translation changes in 2005 and 2004 and insurance proceeds in 2004.
</TABLE>
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EXHIBIT 3.1

RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.

February 8, 2007

Mueller Industries, Inc., a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, hereby certifies as follows:

1. The name of the corporation is Mueller Industries, Inc.
(the "Corporation"). The Corporation was originally incorporated under the
name MBNR Corporation.

2. The original Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation was filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware
on October 3, 1990. Certificates of Amendment to the original Certificate
of Incorporation were filed on October 23, 1990 and May 8, 1996.

4. Pursuant to Section 245 of the General Corporation Law of
the State of Delaware (the "GCL"), this Restated Certificate of
Incorporation only restates and integrates and does not further amend the
provisions of the Corporation's original Certificate of Incorporation as
heretofore amended or supplemented. There is no discrepancy between the
provisions of the original Certificate of Incorporation as heretofore
amended or supplemented and the provisions of the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation.

5. This Restated Certificate of Incorporation was duly
adopted in accordance with Section 245 of the GCL by resolution of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation at a meeting held on February 8,
2007.

6. The text of the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation as heretofore amended or supplemented is hereby restated to
read in its entirety as follows:

Article I.
The name of the Corporation is MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.
Article II.
The Corporation is organized pursuant to the GCL.
Article III.

The address of the Corporation's registered office in the State of Delaware
is 1209 Orange Street, in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, and
the appointed registered agent of the Corporation shall be The Corporation

Trust Company at the address of the Corporation's registered office.

_l_
Article IV.

The purposes for which the Corporation is organized are to act as a holding
company of other firms, companies and corporations and to engage in any
lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the
GCL, and the Corporation shall have all powers necessary to conduct such
businesses and engage in such activities, including, but not limited to,
the powers enumerated in the GCL or any amendment thereto.

Article V.

The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have
authority to issue is 105,000,000; of such shares the number of common
shares which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 100,000,000,
par value $.01 per share ("Common Stock"), and the number of preferred
shares which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 5,000,000,
par value $1.00 per share ("Preferred Stock").

A. Common Stock. Subject to the provisions of any series of Preferred
Stock which may at the time be outstanding, the holders of shares of Common
Stock shall be entitled to receive, when and as declared by the Board of
Directors out of any funds legally available for the purpose, such
dividends as may be declared from time to time by the Board of Directors.
In the event of the liquidation of the Corporation, or upon distribution of
its assets, after the payment in full or the setting apart for payment of



such preferential amounts, if any, as the holders of shares of Preferred
Stock at the time outstanding shall be entitled, the remaining assets of
the Corporation available for payment and distribution to shareholders
shall, subject to any participating or similar rights of shares of
Preferred Stock at the time outstanding, be distributed ratably among the
holders of shares of Common Stock at the time outstanding. All shares of
Common Stock shall have equal non-cumulative voting rights, and shall have
no preference, conversion, exchange, preemptive or redemption rights.

B. Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors of the Corporation is hereby
expressly authorized at any time, and from time to time, to provide for the
issuance of shares of Preferred Stock in one or more series, with such
voting powers (subject to Article IX hereof), full or limited, and with
such designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or
other rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as
shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions providing
for the issue thereof adopted by the Board of Directors and the certificate
of designations filed under the GCL setting forth such resolution or
resolutions, including (without limiting the generality thereof) the
following as to each such series:

(i) . the designation of such series;

(ii) . the dividends, if any, payable with respect to such series,
the rates or basis for determining such dividends, any conditions and dates
upon which such dividends shall be payable, the preferences, if any, of
such dividends over, or the relation of such dividends to, the dividends
payable on Common Stock or other series of Preferred Stock, whether such
dividends shall be non-cumulative or cumulative, and, if cumulative, the
date or dates from which such dividend shall be cumulative;
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(111) . whether shares of Preferred Stock shall be redeemable at the
option of the Board of Directors or the holder, or both, upon the happening
of a specified event and, if redeemable whether for cash, property or
rights, including securities of the Corporation, the time, prices or rates
and any adjustment and other terms and conditions of such redemption;

(iv) . the terms and amount of any sinking, retirement or purchase
fund provided for the purchase or redemption of shares of Preferred Stock
of such series;

(v) . whether or not shares of Preferred Stock of such series shall
be convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock or other
series of Preferred Stock, at the option of the Corporation or of the
holder, or both, or upon the happening of a specified event and, if
provision be made for such conversion or exchange, the terms, prices,
rates, adjustments and any other terms and conditions thereof;

(vi.) the extent to which the holders of shares of Preferred Stock
of such series shall be entitled to vote with respect to the election of
Directors or otherwise, including, without limitation, the extent, if any,
to which such holders shall be entitled, voting as a series or as a part of
a class, to elect one or more Directors upon the happening of a specified
event or otherwise;

(vii) . the restrictions, if any, on the issue or reissue of shares
of Preferred Stock of such series or any other series;

(viii.) the extent, if any, to which the holders of shares of
Preferred Stock of such series shall be entitled to preemptive rights; and

(ix) . the rights of the holders of shares of Preferred Stock of such
series upon the liquidation of the Corporation or any distribution of its
assets.

C. Certificates of Designations. Before the Corporation shall issue any
shares of Preferred Stock of any series, a certificate setting forth the
resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, fixing the voting
powers, designations, preferences and rights of such series, the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, and the number of
shares of Preferred Stock of such series authorized by the Board of
Directors, shall be signed, attested to, filed, and recorded pursuant to
Section 103 of the GCL. Unless otherwise provided in any such resolution
or resolutions, the holders of the series so authorized shall have non-
cumulative voting rights and shall have no conversion, exchange, preemptive
or redemption rights. Unless otherwise provided in any such resolution or
resolutions, the number of shares of Preferred Stock of the series
authorized by such resolutions may be increased (but not above the total
number of shares of Preferred Stock of such series) or decreased (but not
below the number of shares of Preferred Stock of such series then
outstanding) by a certificate setting forth a resolution or resolutions
adopted by the Board of Directors, authorizing such increase or decrease,



signed, attested to, filed, and recorded pursuant to Section 103 of the
GCL. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution or resolutions creating
such series, the number of shares of Preferred Stock specified in any such
decrease shall be restored to the status of authorized but unissued shares
of Preferred Stock (without designation as to series).
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Article VI.

The Corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law and by the
by-laws of the Corporation, indemnify any person made or threatened to be
made a party to an action or proceeding, whether criminal, civil,
administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such person, or
such person's testator or intestate is or was an officer, employee or agent
of the Corporation or serves or served any other corporation, partnership,
joint venture, trust or other enterprise as a director, officer, employee,
agent or trustee at the express or implied request of the Corporation.

Article VII.

To the fullest extent permitted by the GCL as the same exists or hereafter
may be amended, a Director of this Corporation shall not be liable to the
Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty as a Director, except for liability (i) for any breach of
the Director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its stockholders,

(ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional
misconduct or a knowing violation of the law, (iii) under Section 174 of
the GCL, or (iv) for any transaction from which the Director derived
improper personal benefit.

Article VIII.

In furtherance of and not in limitation of the powers conferred by the GCL
or any other statute, the Board of Directors is expressly authorized to
make, alter or repeal the by-laws of the Corporation, subject to the right
of the stockholders of the Corporation to alter or repeal any bylaw made by
the Board of Directors.

Article IX.

This Corporation shall not issue non-voting equity securities. This

Article IX is included in this Certificate of Incorporation in compliance
with Section 1123 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. Section
1123, and shall have no further force and effect beyond that required by such
Section and for so long as such Section is in effect and applicable to the
Corporation.

Article X.

The election of Directors of the Corporation need not be by written ballot,
unless the by-laws of the Corporation otherwise provide.

Article XI.
The Corporation hereby elects not to be governed by Section 203 of the GCL.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mueller Industries, Inc., has caused this Restated
Certificate of Incorporation to be signed by its President and attested by
its Secretary this 8th day of February, 2007, pursuant to Section 103 (a) of
the GCL.

MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.

By:/s/ Gary C. Wilkerson
Gary C. Wilkerson
Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary






EXHIBIT 10.15

EXECUTION VERSION
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT effective as of November 9, 2006, by and between
MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC., a Delaware corporation, having its principal
address at 8285 Tournament Drive, Suite 150, Memphis, Tennessee 38125 (the
"Employer") and Gregory L. Christopher, an individual residing at 3615
Classic Drive South, Memphis, Tennessee 38125 (the "Executive").

WITNESSET H:

WHEREAS, the Executive has been employed by the Employer in several
capacities since September 21, 1992, and currently as President, Standard
Products Division of the Employer; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to provide for the ongoing employment of the
Executive by the Employer as set forth in this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set
forth, the Executive and the Employer hereby agree as follows:

1. Term of Employment. The Employer agrees to employ the Executive and
the Executive hereby accepts such employment, as President, Standard
Products Division of the Employer, for a rolling three year term. This
Agreement shall commence as of the date hereof, and be automatically
extended so that the unexpired term on any date is always three years (the
"Employment Period"), until such time as either party gives written notice
to the other party of its election not to extend such term. The Employment
Period shall end three years from the date on which such notice is given
unless it is terminated earlier as provided in Section 4 hereof.

2. Duties and Authority. During the Employment Period the Executive
shall serve as President, Standard Products Division of the Employer. The
Executive shall devote his best efforts and full working time and attention
to services for the Employer. The Executive agrees to hold any additional
office or position with the Employer or any of the Employer's subsidiaries
without additional compensation if elected or appointed to such office or
position.

3. Compensation.

a. As compensation for the Executive's services in all capacities
during the Employment Period, the Employer shall pay the Executive the
following:
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i. a base salary at a rate of $257,500 per annum to be paid in
equal installments in accordance with normal payroll practices of the
Employer but not less frequently than monthly, provided that in each
subsequent calendar year or part thereof during which the Executive is
employed commencing in 2007, the Executive's base salary shall be adjusted
upward annually from the Executive's current base salary at a rate
commensurate with increases granted to other key executives (the "Base
Salary") .

ii. a discretionary annual cash incentive bonus (the "Bonus")
for each calendar year or part thereof during which the Executive 1is
employed, the amount of such bonus to be consistent with the executive bonus
program which the Employer establishes for other key executives.

b. The Executive shall be entitled to reimbursement for reasonable
business and travel expenses incurred in the performance of his duties in
accordance with the Employer's normal reimbursement practices.

c. Subject to the terms of the applicable plan and/or program, the
Executive shall participate in all bonus, incentive, stock option, pension,
disability and health plans and programs and all fringe benefits maintained
by or on behalf of the Employer and in which senior executives of the
Employer are entitled to participate.

d. Subject to Section 4 (c) herein, the Executive's existing stock



options with respect to the Employer's common stock shall continue to be
governed by and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the
respective option agreements.

4. Termination of Employment.

a. The Executive's employment hereunder shall terminate upon the
Executive's death, and the Employer shall have the right to terminate the
Executive's employment upon his permanent disability. A permanent
disability is a physical or mental disability which results in the
Executive's inability to substantially perform his duties hereunder for a
period of 180 consecutive days or for a period of 200 days within any period
of 12 consecutive months, except that a permanent disability shall not
include a physical or mental disability which occurs in connection with the
Executive's employment hereunder. In the event of termination by reason of
death or permanent disability, the Employer's obligation to pay further
compensation hereunder shall cease on the date of termination, except that
the Executive (or, in the case of death, his beneficiaries, or his estate if
no beneficiary has been named) shall be entitled to receive his Base Salary
and Bonus prorated on a calendar day basis through the date of such
termination.
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b. The Employer may terminate the Executive's employment hereunder
for Cause (as defined below) upon not less than 30 days prior written notice
specifying such Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Cause"
shall mean (i) Executive's willful and continued failure to substantially
perform his duties hereunder, (ii) the engaging by the Executive in willful
misconduct which is demonstrably and materially injurious to the Employer,
or (iii) the Executive's conviction of a felony for a crime of moral
turpitude. For purposes of this Section 4(b), no act, or failure to act on
the Executive's part shall be considered "willful" unless done, or omitted
to be done, by him not in good faith and without reasonable belief that his
action or omission was in the best interest of the Employer. The Executive
shall not be terminated for Cause in the case of actions or omissions
described in clauses (i) or (ii) of this Section 4 (b) unless the Employer
shall have given the Executive an opportunity to cure any such actions or
omissions during the 30-day period after the Executive's receipt of written
notice required under this Section 4 (b).

c. The Executive's employment hereunder may be terminated by the
Employer without Cause upon not less than 90 days prior written notice or by
the Executive for "Good Reason" (as defined below) upon not less than
10 days prior written notice. In such event, (i) the Executive shall
continue to receive his then current Base Salary otherwise payable pursuant
to Section 3 hereof as if his employment had continued for the remainder of
the Employment Period and an annual bonus for the remainder of the
Employment Period equal to the average Bonus for the 3 calendar years
immediately preceding the written notice, such bonus to be paid in the
normal course at the time other executive bonuses are normally paid, and
(ii) all of the outstanding unvested Employer stock options then held by
Executive shall immediately vest and become exercisable upon such notice.
In addition, at the Employer's expense, the Executive shall continue to
participate in all of the Employer's health plans and programs until he
reaches age 65 as if he remained employed until such time, to the same
extent and upon the same terms and conditions as the Executive participated
immediately prior to the termination, provided that the Executive's
continued participation is permissible or otherwise practicable under the
general terms and provisions of such benefit plan. For purposes of this
Agreement, "Good Reason" shall mean (A) a failure by the Employer to comply
with any material provision of this Agreement which has not been cured
within 10 days after notice of such noncompliance has been given by
Executive to the Employer, (B) other than as provided in Section 2 herein,
the assignment to the Executive by the Employer of duties inconsistent with
the Executive's position, authority, duties, responsibilities or status with
the Employer as in effect immediately after the date of execution of this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, any reduction whatsoever in such
position, authority, duties, responsibilities or status, or a change in the
Executive's titles or offices, as then in effect, or any removal of the
Executive from, or any failure to re-elect the Executive to, any of such
positions, except in connection with the termination of his employment on
account of his death, disability, or for Cause, (C) the requirement of
excessive travel on the part of the Executive, (D) a relocation by the
Employer of the Executive's principal place of employment to any location



outside a thirty mile radius from the Executive's current principal place of
employment, (E) the failure of the Employer to have any successor to the

-3-

Employer assume the Agreement, (F) the delivery to the Executive of notice
of the Employer's decision to terminate the Executive's employment without
Cause, or (G) any other material change in the conditions of employment if
the Executive determines in good faith that his customary duties can no
longer be performed because of the change.

d. The Executive shall also have the right to resign voluntarily
without Good Reason from employment during the Employment Period by written
notice to the Employer at least 60 days prior to the effective date of the
resignation. Upon such resignation without Good Reason, the Executive shall
be entitled to receive any accrued but unpaid Base Salary. The Employer
shall have discretion whether or not to award the Executive a Bonus for any
calendar year in which he resigns without Good Reason.

e. If the Executive's employment shall terminate by expiration of
the Employment Period or is terminated by the Employer for Cause pursuant to
Section 4(b), or if the Executive shall voluntarily resign for any reason
other than Good Reason, the Executive's right to receive the Base Salary
(except any accrued and unpaid salary and except as set forth in
Section 4(f) below), the Bonus, and any other compensation and benefits to
which he would otherwise be entitled under this Agreement shall be forfeited
as of the date of termination of employment.

f. Except as provided in Section 4 (b) hereof, or any relevant
option agreement, the Executive's death or termination of employment shall
not affect his rights under any Employer stock options.

g. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Executive
may also terminate his employment upon a "Change in Control" (as hereinafter
defined). If the Executive terminates his employment upon a "Change in

Control" then:

i. the Employer shall pay the Executive as severance pay in a
lump sum within thirty days following such termination, the following
amounts, which shall not be discounted to take into account present value:

(1) the Executive's Base Salary through the date of
termination at the rate in effect immediately prior to the termination date;

(2) an amount equal to the product of (x) the Executive's
annual Base Salary at the rate in effect immediately prior to the date of
termination, multiplied by (z) the number of years (including partial years)
then remaining in the Employment Period; and

(3) an amount equal to the product of (x) the average
annual Bonus for the three calendar years immediately preceding the date of
termination, multiplied by (z) the number of years (including partial years
as full years) then remaining in the Employment Period;

-4 -

ii. the Employer shall, at the Employer's expense, allow the
Executive to continue to participate, until he reaches age 65, in all the
Employer's benefits, to the same extent and upon the same terms and
conditions as the Executive participated immediately prior to the
termination, provided that the Executive's continued participation is
permissible or otherwise practicable under the general terms and provisions
of such benefit plan; and

iii. on the later of (x) the day the Executive notifies the
Employer he is terminating upon a Change in Control, and (y) ten days prior
to the date the Executive actually terminates his employment, all remaining
unvested options previously granted the Executive shall become immediately
exercisable on that date.

"Change in Control," as used in Section 4(g) of this Agreement, is
defined to mean the occurrence of any of the following events:

(1) . a change in control of a nature that would be required to



be reported in response to any form or report to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or any stock exchange on which the Employer's shares are listed
which requires the reporting of a change in control of the Employer;

(11) . When any "person," as such term is used in
Sections 13(d) or 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the "Exchange Act"), is or becomes the "beneficial owner," as defined in

Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, directly or indirectly, of 20% of the
voting power of the Employer's then outstanding securities, other than

(x) beneficial owners of more than 5% of the Employer's Common Stock on
August 10, 1995, (y) "Exempted Persons" as defined in Section 1(a) of the
Employer's Rights Agreement, dated as of November 10, 1994, (z) mutual
funds, banks, investment advisors registered under the Investment Advisers
Act of 1940, as amended, and other institutional investors, which either

(i) became 20% beneficial owners as a result of an acquisition of Common
Stock by the Employer which by reducing the number of such shares then
outstanding, increases the proportionate number of shares beneficially owned
by such person to 20% or more of the outstanding Common Stock except that if
such person, after such shares purchased by the Employer, becomes the
beneficial owner of any additional shares of Common Stock, then this
exception would not apply, or (ii) were exempted from the operation of this
provision with the prior approval of 80% of the Board of Directors of the
Employer; or

(111) . When the individuals who, on the effective date of this
Agreement, constitute the Board of Directors of the Employer cease for any
reason to constitute at least a majority thereof, provided, however, that a
director who was not a director on the effective date of this Agreement
shall be deemed to have been a director at that date if such director was
elected by, or on the recommendation of or with the approval of, at least
sixty percent of the directors who were directors on the effective date of
this Agreement (either directly or by prior operation of this provision);
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provided, however, that an occurrence shall cease to be a "Change in
Control" for purposes of this Section 4(g) six months after the occurrence
of an event that would otherwise constitute a "Change in Control," except
that, for purposes of computing this six-month period, the six-month time
period shall not commence until, as to clause (i), the date on which a
change in control form or report is actually filed, and as to clause (ii),
the date on which a beneficial owner discloses in a public filing that it
has crossed the 20% threshold.

5. Notices. Any notice or other communication hereunder shall be made
in writing by hand delivery and shall be deemed to have been delivered and
received when delivered by hand, if personally delivered, as follows:

(a) if to the Executive at the address shown at the beginning of this
Agreement or to such other person(s) or address(es) as the Executive shall
have furnished to the Employer in writing, and (b) if to the Employer at the
address shown at the beginning of this Agreement, attention of the Board of
Directors, with copies to the Employer at the same address, Attention:
General Counsel, and to Willkie Farr & Gallagher, LLP, 787 Seventh Avenue,
New York, New York 10019, Attention: Serge Benchetrit, Esqg., or to such
other person(s) or address(es) as such persons or the Employer shall have
furnished to the Executive in writing.

6. Certain Additional Payments by the Employer.

a. Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, in
the event it shall be determined that any payment, distribution, waiver of
Employer rights, acceleration of vesting of any stock options or restricted
stock, or any other payment or benefit in the nature of compensation to or
for the benefit of the Executive, alone or in combination (whether such
payment, distribution, waiver, acceleration or other benefit is made
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or any other agreement, plan or
arrangement providing payments or benefits in the nature of compensation to
or for the benefit of the Executive, but determined without regard to any
additional payments required under this Section 6 (a "Payment")) would be
subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") (or any successor provision) or any
interest or penalties are incurred by the Executive with respect to such
excise tax (such excise tax, together with any such interest and penalties,
are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Excise Tax"), then the
Executive shall be entitled to receive an additional payment (a "Gross-Up
Payment") in an amount such that after payment by the Executive of all taxes
with respect to the Gross-Up Payment (including any interest or penalties
imposed with respect to such taxes), including, without limitation, any
income taxes (and any interest and penalties imposed with respect thereto)



and Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive retains an
amount of the Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the
Payments.

b. Subject to the provisions of Section 6(c) , all determinations
required to be made under this Section 6, including whether and when a
Gross-Up Payment is required and the amount of such Gross-Up Payment and the
assumptions to be utilized in arriving at such determination, shall be made
by the nationally recognized accounting firm then auditing the accounts of
the Employer (the "Accounting Firm") which shall provide detailed supporting
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calculations both to the Employer and the Executive within 15 business days
of the receipt of notice from the Executive that there has been a Payment,
or such earlier time as is requested by the Employer. 1In the event that the
Accounting Firm is unwilling or unable to perform its obligations pursuant
to this Section 6, the Executive shall appoint another nationally recognized
accounting firm to make the determinations required hereunder (which
accounting firm shall then be referred to hereunder as the Accounting Firm).
All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne solely by the
Employer. Any Gross-Up Payment, determined pursuant to this Section 6,
shall be paid by the Employer to the Executive within 5 days of the receipt
of the Accounting Firm's determination. Any determination by the Accounting
Firm shall be binding upon the Employer and Executive. The parties hereto
acknowledge that, as a result of the potential uncertainty in the
application of Section 4999 of the Code (or any successor provision) at the
time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is
possible that the Employer will not have made Gross-Up Payments which should
have been made consistent with the calculations required to be made
hereunder (an "Underpayment"). In the event that the Employer exhausts its
remedies pursuant to Section 6(c) and the Executive thereafter is required
to make a payment of any Excise Tax, the Accounting Firm shall determine the
amount of the Underpayment that has occurred and any such Underpayment shall
be promptly paid by the Employer to or for the benefit of the Executive.

c. The Executive shall notify the Employer in writing of any claim
by the Internal Revenue Service that, if successful, would require the
payment by the Employer of the Gross-Up Payment. Such notification shall be
given as soon as practicable but no later than 20 business days after the
Executive is informed in writing of such claim and shall apprise the
Employer of the nature of such claim and the date on which such claim is
requested to be paid. The Executive shall not pay such claim prior to the
expiration of the 30-day period following the date on which he gives such
notice to the Employer (or such shorter period ending on the date that any
payment of taxes with respect to such claim is due). If the Employer
notifies the Executive in writing prior to the expiration of such period
that it desires to contest such claim, the Executive shall:

i. give the Employer any information reasonably requested by
the Employer relating to such claim,

ii. take such action in connection with contesting such claim
as the Employer shall reasonably request in writing from time to time,
including, without limitation, accepting legal representation with respect
to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Employer,

iii. cooperate with the Employer in good faith in order
effectively to contest such claim, and

iv. permit the Employer to participate in any proceedings
relating to such claim;
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provided, however, that the Employer shall bear and pay directly all costs
and expenses (including additional interest and penalties) incurred in
connection with such contest and shall indemnify and hold the Executive
harmless, on an after-tax basis, for any Excise Tax or income tax (including
interest and penalties with respect thereto) imposed as a result of such
representation and payment of costs and expenses. Without limiting the
foregoing provisions of this Section 6(c), the Employer shall control all
proceedings taken in connection with such contest and, at its sole option,
may pursue or forgo any and all administrative appeals, proceedings,
hearings and conferences with the taxing authority in respect of such claim
and may, at its sole option, either direct the Executive to pay the tax



claimed and sue for a refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner,
and the Executive agrees to prosecute such contest to a determination before
any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one
or more appellate courts, as the Employer shall determine; provided,
however, that if the Employer directs the Executive to pay such claim and
sue for a refund, the Employer shall advance the amount of such payment to
the Executive, on an interest-free basis, and shall indemnify and hold the
Executive harmless, on an after-tax basis, from any Excise Tax or income tax
(including interest or penalties with respect thereto) imposed with respect
to such advance or with respect to any imputed income with respect to such
advance; and further provided that any extension of the statute of
limitations relating to payment of taxes for the taxable year of the
Executive with respect to which such contested amount is claimed to be due
is limited solely to such contested amount. Further, the Employer's control
of the contest shall be limited to issues with respect to which a Gross-Up
Payment would be payable hereunder and the Executive shall be entitled to
settle or contest, as the case may be, any other issue raised by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

d. If, after the receipt by the Executive of an amount advanced by
the Employer pursuant to Section 6(c), the Executive becomes entitled to
receive any refund with respect to such claim, the Executive shall (subject
to the Employer's complying with the requirements of Section 6(c)) promptly
pay to the Employer the amount of such refund (together with any interest
paid or credited thereon after taxes applicable thereto). If, after the
receipt by the Executive of an amount advanced by the Employer pursuant to
Section 6(c), a determination is made that the Executive shall not be
entitled to any refund with respect to such claim and the Employer does not
notify the Executive in writing of its intent to contest such denial of
refund prior to the expiration of 30 days after such determination, then
such advance shall be forgiven and shall not be required to be repaid and
the amount of such advance shall offset, to the extent thereof, the amount
of Gross-Up Payment required to be paid.

7. Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation. During the Employment Period
of the Executive's employment under this Agreement and during the eighteen
month period following the termination of his employment with Employer for
any reason, the Executive shall not, directly or indirectly (i) compete with
the Employer or engage or participate, directly or indirectly in the
business or businesses which are engaged in by the Employer in any
geographical area where such business or businesses are engaged in or
proposed to be engaged in by the Employer following the Executive's
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termination of employment, or (ii) make, offer, solicit or induce to enter
into, any written or oral arrangement, agreement or understanding regarding
employment or retention as a consultant with any person who was, at any time
during the 24 months preceding the termination of the Executive's employment
under this Agreement, a full-time employee of Employer. Nothing herein,
however, shall prohibit the Executive from acquiring or holding any issue of
stock or securities of any company that has securities listed on a national
securities exchange or quoted in the daily listing of over-the-counter
market securities; provided that at any one time he and members of his
immediate family do not own more than 5% of any voting securities of any
such company; and provided, further, that such investments do not require
him to participate in the operations of such company. In the event that it
shall be determined that any provision of this paragraph is invalid as
constituting an unreasonable restraint, the restraint in such provision
shall be reduced to the extent necessary to cure such invalidity, and the
remaining provisions shall retain full force and effect.

8. Confidentiality; Property of Employer.

a. The Executive shall keep secret and retain in strictest
confidence and shall not directly or indirectly divulge or communicate to
any person (other than as required and authorized in the course of
performing his duties hereunder or with the prior written consent of the
Employer or as required by law) nor shall he make use of (other than in the
ordinary course of his employment for the benefit of the Employer), any
trade secrets, designs, design improvements, business information,
consultant contacts, pricing policies, marketing plans or strategies,
product development techniques or plans, business acquisition plans, new
personnel acquisitions plans, methods of manufacture, inventions and
research projects and other business affairs of the Employer and its
subsidiaries, or any other confidential information of the Employer or any
of its subsidiaries or any of their respective clients or customers, to the
extent any of the foregoing is confidential, except as may be required by
court order. This restriction shall continue to apply after the termination
of the Executive's employment. The Executive shall also use his best
efforts at the expense of the Employer to prevent the publication or
disclosure of any of the trade secrets or confidential information of the



Employer or any of its subsidiaries whether relating to its trade dealings,
financial affairs or otherwise which he may have received or obtained or may
hereafter receive or obtain while in the service of the Employer or any of
its subsidiaries.

b. All memoranda, notes, lists, records and other documents (and
all copies thereof), including computer-related materials, made or compiled
by the Executive or made available to the Executive concerning the
businesses of the Employer or any of its subsidiaries shall be the
Employer's property and shall be delivered to the Employer promptly upon the
termination of the Executive's employment with the Employer or any of its
subsidiaries or at any other time on request.
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9. Assignability. This Agreement shall not be assignable by the
Employer except to a majority-owned subsidiary or parent entity of the
Employer or any successor to the Employer and shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the Employer and its successors and assigns. This
Agreement shall not be assignable by the Executive, but it shall be binding
upon, and to the extent provided in Section 4 (a) shall inure to the benefit
of, the Executive's heirs, executors, administrators and legal
representatives.

10. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any and all prior
understandings between the Executive and the Employer as to the subject
matter hereof.

11. Waivers, Amendments and Further Agreements. Neither this Agreement
nor any term or condition hereof, including without limitation the terms and
conditions of this Section 11, may be waived, modified or amended in whole
or in part as against the Employer or the Executive except by written
instrument executed by each of the parties expressly stating that it is
intended to operate as a waiver, modification or amendment of this Agreement
or the applicable term or condition hereof. Each of the parties hereto
agrees to execute all such further instruments and documents and to take all
such further actions as the other party may reasonably require in order to
effectuate the terms and purposes of this Agreement.

12. Severability. In case one or more of the provisions contained in
this Agreement shall be or become invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any
respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining
provisions contained herein shall not in any way be affected or impaired
thereby.

13. No Conflicting Obligations. The Executive represents and warrants
to the Employer that the Executive is not now under any obligation to anyone
other than the Employer and other entities of which he is a non-executive
director and has no interest which is inconsistent or in conflict with this
Agreement, or would prevent, limit or impair, in any way, the Executive's
performance of any of the covenants or duties hereinabove set forth.
However, subject to Section 2 hereof, nothing herein shall be deemed to
limit the Executive's participation in, or pursuit of, non-conflicting
business interests.

14. Survival. Except as otherwise provided herein, the covenants,
agreements, representations and warranties contained in or made pursuant to
this Agreement shall survive the Executive's termination of employment,
irrespective of any investigation made by or on behalf of any party.

15. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee, without
regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof.
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16. Arbitration; Legal Fees. Any dispute, controversy or claim arising
out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof shall be finally
settled by arbitration by a single arbitrator in accordance with the rules

then in effect of the American Arbitration Association in an arbitration in



Memphis, Tennessee. Judgment upon an award rendered by the arbitrator may
be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. To the extent that the
Executive prosecutes or defends, whether by arbitration or through a
judicial proceeding, a dispute, controversy or claim relating to this
Agreement which results in a judgment, award or settlement in Executive's
favor in any material respect, the Employer shall reimburse the Executive
for all reasonable fees and costs (including legal fees) incurred by the
Executive in such successful prosecution or defense.

17. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are solely for convenience
of reference and shall be given no effect in the construction or
interpretation of this Agreement.

18. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts each
of which shall be deemed an original but which together shall constitute one

and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed or caused to be executed this
Agreement effective as of the date first above written.

MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.

By:/s/ Harvey L. Karp
Harvey L. Karp, Chairman

By:/s/ William D. O'Hagan
William D. O'Hagan
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Gregory L. Christopher
Gregory L. Christopher
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Exhibit 10.20

MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.
2002 STOCK OPTION PLAN
(Amended and Restated as of February 16, 2006)

1. Purposes.

The Mueller Industries, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") is
intended to attract and retain the best available personnel for positions of
substantial responsibility with Mueller Industries, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the "Company"), and its subsidiary corporations, and to provide
additional incentive to such persons to exert their maximum efforts toward
the success of the Company and its subsidiary corporations. The above aims
will be effectuated through the granting of certain options ("Options") to
purchase shares of the Company's common stock, par value $.01 per share (the

"Common Stock"). Under the Plan, the Company may grant "incentive stock
options™ ("ISOs") within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), or Options which are not intended to

be ISOs ("Non-Qualified Options").
2. Administration of the Plan.

The Plan shall be administered by the Board of Directors of the Company
(the "Board of Directors"), or a committee consisting of at least two
persons, appointed by the Board of Directors, each of whom shall be a "non-
employee director" within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") (the entity administering the Plan
hereinafter called the "Committee"). The Committee may exercise the power
and authority vested in the Board of Directors under the Plan. Within the
limits of the express provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the
authority, in its discretion, to take the following actions under the Plan:

(a) to determine the individuals to whom, and the time or times at
which, Options shall be granted, the number of shares of Common Stock to be
subject to each Option and whether such Options shall be ISOs or Non-
Qualified Options;

(b) to interpret the Plan;

(c) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating
to the Plan;

(d) to determine the terms and provisions of the respective stock
option agreements granting Options, including the date or dates upon which
Options shall become exercisable, which terms need not be identical;

(e) to accelerate the vesting of any outstanding Options; and

(f) to make all other determinations and take all other actions
necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan.
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In making such determinations, the Committee may take into account the
nature of the services rendered by such individuals, their present and
potential contributions to the Company's success, and such other factors as
the Committee, in its discretion, shall deem relevant. An individual to whom
an Option has been granted under the Plan is referred to herein as an
"Optionee". The Committee's determinations on the matters referred to in
this Section 2 shall be conclusive.

3. Shares Subject to the Plan.

The total number of shares of Common Stock which shall be subject to
Options granted under the Plan shall not exceed 1,750,000, subject to
adjustment as provided in Section 7 hereof. The Company shall at all times
while the Plan is in force reserve such number of shares of Common Stock as
will be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of outstanding Options. The
shares of Common Stock to be issued upon exercise of Options shall be
authorized and unissued or reacquired shares of Common Stock.

The Committee may adopt reasonable counting procedures to ensure
appropriate counting with respect to the number of shares of Common Stock
available under the Plan at any time or subject to any particular Option. To
the extent that an Option expires or is canceled, forfeited, settled in cash
or otherwise terminated or concluded without a delivery to the Optionee of
the full number of shares to which the Option related, the undelivered
shares will again be available for grant in connection with new Options



under the Plan. Shares withheld in payment of the exercise price or taxes
relating to an Option and shares equal to the number surrendered in payment
of any exercise price or taxes relating to an Option shall be deemed to
constitute shares not delivered to the Optionee and shall be deemed to again
be available for grant in connection with new Options under the Plan;
provided, however, that, where shares are withheld or surrendered after the
termination of the Plan, or any other transaction occurs that would result
in shares becoming available under this Section 3, such shares shall not
become available if and to the extent that it would constitute a material
revision of the Plan subject to shareholder approval under then applicable
rules of the principle stock exchange on which the shares are then listed or
designated for trading.

4. Eligibility.

(a) Options may be granted under the Plan only to (i) employees of
the Company and (ii) employees of any "subsidiary corporation" (a
"Subsidiary") of the Company within the meaning of Section 424 (f) of the
Code; provided, however, that no person may be granted Options under the
Plan with respect to more than 100,000 shares of Common Stock in any one
year. The term "Company," when used in the context of an Optionee's
employment, shall be deemed to include Subsidiaries of the Company.

(b) Nothing contained in the Plan shall be construed to limit the
right of the Company to grant stock options otherwise than under the Plan
for proper corporate purposes.

5. Terms of Options.

The terms of each Option granted under the Plan shall be determined by
the Committee consistent with the provisions of the Plan, including the
following:

(a) The purchase price of the shares of Common Stock subject to
each Option shall be fixed by the Committee, in its discretion, at the time
such Option is granted; provided, however, that in no event shall such
purchase price be less than the Fair Market Value (as defined in paragraph
(h) of this Section 5) of the shares of Common Stock as of the date such
Option is granted.

(b) The dates on which each Option (or portion thereof) shall be
exercisable shall be fixed by the Committee, in its discretion, at the time
such Option is granted.

(c) The expiration of each Option shall be fixed by the Committee,
in its discretion, at the time such Option is granted. No Option shall be
exercisable after the expiration of ten (10) years from the date of its
grant and each Option shall be subject to earlier termination as determined
by the Committee, in its discretion, at the time such Option is granted.

(d) Unless otherwise determined by the Committee and set forth in
the applicable Option agreement (or other agreement) between the Company and
an Optionee, the following provisions relating to an Optionee's termination
of employment with the Company shall apply to all Options granted hereunder
after February 16, 2006. In the event an Optionee's employment with the
Company is terminated for any reason other than death, disability (within
the meaning of Section 22(e) (3) of the Code) or by the Company without cause
(as defined in the applicable Option agreement), each Option shall
immediately expire as of the date of such termination, whether or not
exercisable in whole or in part on such date. In the event an Optionee's
employment with the Company is terminated by reason of the Optionee's death
or disability (within the meaning of Section 22 (e) (3) of the Code), the
unexercisable portion of each Option held by such Optionee as of the date of
such termination shall immediately expire and the portion of each Option
held by such Optionee that is exercisable as of the date of such termination
shall remain exercisable for a period of twelve months following such
termination. In the event an Optionee's employment with the Company is
terminated by the Company without cause (as defined in the applicable Option
agreement), the unexercisable portion of each Option held by such Optionee
as of the date of such termination shall immediately expire and the portion
of each Option held by such Optionee that is exercisable as of the date of
such termination shall remain exercisable for a period of forty-five (45)
days following such termination. However, in no event shall any post-
termination exercise period for any Option extend beyond the original
expiration date set by the Committee for such Option.
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(e) Options shall be exercised by the delivery to the Company at
its principal office or at such other address as may be established by the
Committee (Attention: General Counsel) of written notice of the number of
shares of Common Stock with respect to which the Option is being exercised
accompanied by payment in full of the purchase price for such shares. Unless
otherwise determined by the Committee, payment for such shares may be made
(i) in cash, (ii) by certified check, bank cashier's check or personal check
acceptable to the Company, payable to the order of the Company in the amount
of such purchase price, (iii) by delivery to the Company (by attestation or
otherwise) of shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value equal to
such purchase price, (iv) by irrevocable instructions to a broker to deliver
promptly to the Company the amount of sale or loan proceeds necessary to pay
such purchase price and to sell the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon
exercise of the Option and deliver the cash proceeds less commissions and
brokerage fees to the Optionee or to deliver the remaining shares of Common
Stock to the Optionee, (v) through a net exercise of the Options whereby the
Optionee instructs the Company to withhold that number of shares of Common
Stock having a Fair Market Value equal to the aggregate exercise price for
the portion of the Options being exercised and deliver to the Optionee the
remainder of the shares subject to exercise, or (vi) by any combination of
the methods of payment described in (i) through (v) above.

(f) An Optionee shall not have any of the rights of a holder of the
Common Stock with respect to the shares of Common Stock subject to an Option
until such shares are issued to such Optionee upon the exercise of such
Option.

(9) Generally, an Option shall not be transferable, except by will
or the laws of descent and distribution, and may be exercised, during the
lifetime of an Optionee, only by the Optionee; provided, however, that the
Committee may, in its sole discretion, at the time of grant or at any time
thereafter, allow for the transfer of Options that are not ISOs to other
persons or entities, subject to such conditions or limitations as it may
establish. No Option granted under the Plan shall be subject to execution,
attachment or other process.

(h) For purposes of the Plan, as of any date when the Common Stock
is or listed on one or more national securities exchanges (including the New
York Stock Exchange) or quoted on the NASDAQ Stock Market, the "Fair Market
Value" of the Common Stock as of any date shall be deemed to be the mean
between the highest and lowest sale prices of the Common Stock reported on
the principal national securities exchange on which the Common Stock is
listed and traded or the NASDAQ Stock Market on the immediately preceding
date, or, if there is no such sale on that date, then on the last preceding
date on which such a sale was reported. If the Common Stock is not listed on
an exchange or quoted on the NASDAQ Stock Market, or representative quotes
are not otherwise available, the "Fair Market Value" of the Common Stock
shall mean the amount determined by the Committee to be the fair market
value based upon a good faith attempt to value the Common Stock accurately.
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6. Special Provisions Applicable to ISOs.

The following special provisions shall be applicable to ISOs granted
under the Plan.

(a) No ISOs shall be granted under the Plan after ten (10) years
from the earlier of (i) the date the Plan is adopted or (ii) the date the
Plan is approved by the holders of the Common Stock.

(b) ISOs may not be granted to a person who owns stock possessing
more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of
the Company, any of its Subsidiaries, or any "parent corporation" (a
"Parent") of the Company, within the meaning of Section 424 (e) of the Code,
unless (i) the exercise price is no less than 110% of the Fair Market Value
of the underlying Common Stock on the date of grant and (ii) the ISO is not
exercisable after the expiration of five years from the date of grant.

(c) If the aggregate Fair Market Value of the Common Stock with



respect to which ISOs are exercisable for the first time by any Optionee
during a calendar year (under all plans of the Company and its Parents and
Subsidiaries) exceeds $100,000, such ISOs shall be treated, to the extent of
such excess, as Non-Qualified Options. For purposes of the preceding
sentence, the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock shall be determined at
the time the ISOs covering such shares were granted.

7. Adjustment upon Changes in Capitalization.

(a) In the event that (i) the outstanding shares of Common Stock or
capital structure of the Company are changed by reason of reorganization,
merger, consolidation, recapitalization, reclassification, stock split,
reverse stock split, combination or exchange of shares and the like, or
dividends payable in shares of Common Stock, or (ii) an extraordinary
dividend is declared by the Company on the Common Stock, whether payable in
the form of cash, stock or any other form of consideration (including
debentures), the Committee shall make such appropriate adjustment to the
aggregate number of shares of Common Stock available under the Plan, the
number of shares of Common Stock subject to Options that may be granted to
any person in any one year, and the number of shares of Common Stock and
price per share of Common Stock subject to outstanding Options, as
determined by the Committee, in its sole discretion, to be appropriate. If
the Company shall be reorganized, consolidated or merged with another
corporation, or if all or substantially all of the assets of the Company
shall be sold or exchanged, an Optionee shall at the time of such corporate
event be entitled to receive upon the exercise of his Option the same number
and kind of shares of stock or the same amount of property, cash or
securities as he would have been entitled to receive upon the occurrence of
any such corporate event as if he had been, immediately prior to such event,
the holder of the number of shares of Common Stock covered by his Option;
provided, however, that if any such event occurs or if the Company enters
into an agreement to undertake any such event, the Committee may, in its
sole discretion, cancel any outstanding Options and pay to such Optionees,
in cash or stock, or any combination thereof, the wvalue of any such vested
Options as determined by the Committee based on the price per share of
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Common Stock received or to be received by the stockholders of the Company
upon such event. The immediately prior sentence is not intended to provide
for any automatic acceleration of vesting of any Option, which shall be left
to the sole discretion of the Committee.

(b) Any adjustment under this Section 7 in the number of shares of
Common Stock subject to Options shall apply proportionately to only the
unexercised portion of any Option granted hereunder. If fractions of a share
would result from any such adjustment, the adjustment shall be revised to
the next lower whole number of shares.

8. Further Conditions of Exercise.

(a) The obligation of the Company to issue shares of Common Stock
pursuant to the exercise of Options shall be subject to all applicable laws,
rules and regulations, and to such approvals by governmental agencies as may
be required. Notwithstanding any of the provisions hereof, the Optionee may
not exercise the Options, and the Company will be under no obligation to
offer to sell or to sell and shall be prohibited from offering to sell or
selling any shares of Common Stock pursuant to the exercise of any Option,
unless such exercise, offer or sale shall be properly registered pursuant to
the Securities Act of 1933 (as now in effect or as hereafter amended) (the
"Securities Act") with the Securities and Exchange Commission or unless the
Company has received an opinion of counsel, satisfactory to the Company,
that such shares may be offered or sold without such registration pursuant
to an available exemption therefrom and the terms and conditions of such
exemption have been fully complied with. Any determination in this
connection by the Committee shall be final, binding and conclusive. The
Company shall use reasonable efforts, when it deems appropriate, to register
the offer or sale of shares of Common Stock underlying any Option pursuant
to the Securities Act and to take any other affirmative action in order to
cause the exercise of the Options or the issuance or transfer of shares
pursuant thereto to comply with any law or regulation of any governmental
authority. If the shares of Common Stock offered for sale or sold under any
Option are offered or sold pursuant to an exemption from registration under
the Securities Act, the Company may restrict the transfer of such shares and
may legend the Common Stock certificates representing such shares in such
manner as it deems advisable to ensure the availability of any such
exemption.

(b) The Company is relieved from any liability for the non-issuance
or non-transfer or any delay in issuance or transfer of any shares of Common
Stock subject to Options which results from the inability of the Company to
obtain or in any delay in obtaining from any regulatory body having



jurisdiction all requisite authority to issue or transfer shares of Common
Stock either upon exercise of the Options or shares of Common Stock issued
as a result of such exercise if counsel for the Company deems such authority
necessary for lawful issuance or transfer of any such shares.
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9. Termination, Modification and Amendment.

(a) The Plan (but not Options previously granted under the Plan)
shall terminate ten (10) years from the date of its adoption by the Board of
Directors, and no Option shall be granted after termination of the Plan.

(b) The Plan may at any time be terminated or, from time to time,
be modified or amended by the Board of Directors; provided, however, that
the Board of Directors shall not, without approval by the affirmative vote
of the holders of a majority of the shares of the capital stock of the
Company present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting,
amend the Plan to (i) increase (except as provided by Section 7) the maximum
number of shares of Common Stock as to which Options may be granted under
the Plan, (ii) increase the maximum number of shares of Common Stock as to
which Options may be granted to any person in any single year, (iii)
decrease the purchase price for Options below Fair Market Value of the
Common Stock at the time of grant, or (iv) change the class of persons
eligible to receive Options under the Plan.

(c) No termination, modification or amendment of the Plan may
adversely affect the rights conferred by any Options without the consent of
the affected Optionee.

10. Effectiveness of the Plan.

The Plan shall become effective upon adoption by the Board of Directors,
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company. Options may be
granted under the Plan prior to receipt of such approval, provided that, in
the event such approval is not obtained, the Plan and all Options granted
under the Plan shall be null and void and of no force and effect.

11. Not a Contract of Employment.

Nothing contained in the Plan or in any stock option agreement executed
pursuant hereto shall be deemed to confer upon any Optionee any right to
remain in the employ of the Company or of any Subsidiary.

12. Governing Law.

The Plan shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware without
reference to principles of conflict of laws thereof.

13. Withholding.

As a condition to the exercise of any Option, the Committee may require
that an Optionee satisfy, through withholding from other compensation or
otherwise, the full amount of all federal, state and local income and other
taxes required to be withheld in connection with such exercise. The
Committee may, in its sole discretion, allow for the retention by the
Company of shares of Common Stock otherwise to be delivered to the Optionee
upon the exercise of any Option in order to satisfy this withholding
requirement.
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14. Section 409A. The Plan and all Options granted hereunder are intended
to be exempt from the provisions of Section 409A of the Code. To the extent
that any Options, payments or benefits provided hereunder are considered
deferred compensation subject to Section 409A, the Company intends for this
Plan and all Options to comply with the standards for nonqualified deferred
compensation established by 409A (the "409A Standards"). Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, to the extent that any terms of the Plan or
any Option would subject Optionees to gross income inclusion, interest or an
additional tax pursuant to Section 409A, those terms are to that extent
superseded by the 409A Standards. The Company reserves the right to amend
Options granted hereunder to cause such Options to comply with or be exempt



from Section 409A.

As adopted by the Board of Directors of Mueller
Industries, Inc. as of February 12, 2002 and
as amended and restated as of February 16, 2006.



Exhibit 10

2007 INCENTIVE PLAN FOR CERTAIN KEY EMPLOYEES

The Company has a discretionary annual incentive program under which
exempt salaried employees (other than the Chairman and the CEO) may earn
cash payments based on a percentage of base annual salary. The actual
percent is based on a variety of guidelines including the performance
levels of the respective business units measured by operating income
subject to certain adjustments.

The payment to an employee is based upon (i) their assigned grade
level, (ii) actual company earnings achieved relative to a pre-determined
target, which is adjusted upward if company performance exceeds target and
reduced if company performance is less than target, (iii) base salary paid
during the fiscal year, and (iv) discretionary ranking of the individual's
performance.
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EXHIBIT 21.0

MUELLER INDUSTRIES, INC.
List of Subsidiaries

State or Country

Subsidiary* of Incorporation
Mueller Brass Co. (Assumed name: Mueller Brass Products) Michigan
Extruded Metals, Inc. (Effective February 27, 2007) Delaware
Mueller Industrial Realty Co. Michigan
Itawamba Industrial Gas Company, Inc. Mississippi
Streamline Copper & Brass Ltd. Canada
Mueller Plastics Holding Company, Inc. Ohio
Mueller Plastics Corporation, Inc. Delaware
MPC Foundry, Inc. Delaware
MPC Machine Shop, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Brass Forging Company, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Copper Fittings Company, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Fittings Company, Inc. Michigan
Mueller Copper Tube Company, Inc. Delaware
Mueller East, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Formed Tube Company, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Impacts Company, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Line Set Inc. Delaware
Mueller Press Company, Inc. Mississippi
Mueller Refrigeration Products Company, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Refrigeration Company, Inc. Michigan
Mueller LBHC, Inc. Delaware
Lincoln Brass Works, Inc.
(Assumed name: Mueller Gas Products) Michigan
Overstreet-Hughes, Co., Inc. Tennessee
Mueller Refrigeration Holding Co., Inc. Delaware
Mueller Streamline Co. Delaware
Precision Tube Company, Inc. Pennsylvania
Southland Pipe Nipples Co., Inc. Texas
Mueller Tool and Machine, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Casting Company, Inc. Delaware
Micro Gauge, Inc. Michigan
Microgauge Machining, Inc. Michigan
Propipe Technologies, Inc.
(Assumed name: Mueller Gas Products) Ohio
WTC Holding Company Michigan
Mueller Europe, Ltd. United Kingdom
Mueller Primaflow Limited United Kingdom
Brasscapri Limited United Kingdom
Primaflow Limited United Kingdom
KX Company Limited United Kingdom
Brassware Sales Limited United Kingdom
Instox Limited United Kingdom
DENO Investment Company, Inc. Michigan
Mueller de Mexico S.A. de C.V. (1) Mexico
DENO Holding Company, Inc. Michigan
DENO Acquisition EURL France
Mueller Europe, S.A. (2) France
B & K Industries, Inc. Illinois
Mueller Copper Tube Products, Inc. Delaware
_l_

List of Subsidiaries
State or Country

Subsidiary* of Incorporation
Arava Natural Resources Company, Inc. Delaware
United States Fuel Company Nevada
King Coal Company Utah
Canco 0il & Gas Ltd. Alberta, Canada
Aegis 0il & Gas Leasing Ltd. Alberta, Canada
Bayard Mining Corporation Delaware
Washington Mining Company Maine
Amwest Exploration Company Delaware
USSRAM Exploration Company Maine
Richmond-Eureka Mining Company (81%) Maine
Ruby Hill Mining Company (75%) Nevada
White Knob Mining Company Idaho
Arava Exploration Company Colorado
Summit Systems, Inc. Delaware
Kennet Company Limited Bermuda
Mining Remedial Recovery Co. Delaware
Carpentertown Coal & Coke Company Pennsylvania
USS Lead Refinery, Inc. Maine
Leon Water Enterprises, Inc. (50%) Texas
Macomber Construction Company Ohio

Macomber Incorporated Ohio



Macomber Building and Land Corporation Delaware

DENO Investment Company II, Inc. Michigan
MII Financial Corporation Michigan
Mueller Streamline Holding S.L.U. Spain
WTC HoldCo I, LLC Delaware
WTC HoldCo II, LLC Delaware

Mueller Comercial de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (3) Mexico

NICNA Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (4) Mexico

NICNA Mexico Servious S. de R.L. de C.V. (4) Mexico

NICNA Mexico Proyectos S. de R.L. de C.V. (4) Mexico

NICNA Mexico Comercial S. de R.L. de C.V. (4) Mexico

NICNA Mexico Maquinaria S. de R.L. de C.V. (4) Mexico
Mueller Streamline II, LLC Delaware

Changzhou Mueller Refrigeration Products Co. Ltd. (5) China

Mueller Streamline Trading, LLC Delaware
Mueller Streamline China, LLC Delaware

Jiangsu Mueller-Xingrong Copper Industries Limited (50.5%) China

* All subsidiaries are 100% owned, except as shown.
(1) Owned by DENO Investment Company, Inc. (99.8%) and Mueller
Streamline Co. (.2%).

(2) On March 3, 2003, Mueller Europe S.A. filed a petition for liquidation
with the Commercial Court of Provins Province, France and, on March 4,
the Court declared the entity to be in liquidation. Less than 1% owned
by non-affiliated individuals.

(3) Owned by Mueller Streamline Holding S.L.U. (1.55%),

WTC HoldCo I, LLC ( 91.45% ), and WTC HoldCo II, LLC ( 7% ).

(4) Less than 1% of the outstanding common stock is owned by
WTC HoldCo I, LLC.

(5) Owned by Mueller Streamline II, LLC (95%) and Mueller
Streamline Holding S.L.U. (5%).



Exhibit 23.0

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Annual Report on Form
10-K of Mueller Industries, Inc. and in the following Registration
Statements of Mueller Industries, Inc. of our reports dated February 26,
2007, with respect to Mueller Industries, Inc.'s consolidated financial
statements and schedule, management of Mueller Industries, Inc.'s assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Mueller
Industries, Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year
ended December 30, 2006:

* Form S-8 No. 333-138413 pertaining to the Mueller Industries, Inc. 2002
Stock Option Plan

* Form S-8 No. 333-113214 pertaining to the Mueller Industries, Inc. Stock
Option Agreements for William D. O'Hagan, Michael O. Fifer, and
Robert J. Pasquarelli

* Form S-8 No. 333-91238 pertaining to the Mueller Industries, Inc. 2002
Stock Option Plan

* Form S-8 No. 333-72726 pertaining to the Stock Option Agreements for
Harvey L. Karp and William D. O'Hagan

* Form S-8 No. 333-52325 pertaining to the Mueller Industries, Inc. 1998
Stock Option Plan

* Form S-8 No. 33-54705 pertaining to the Mueller Industries, Inc. 1994
Stock Option Plan and the 1994 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Memphis, Tennessee
February 26, 2007



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, William D. O'Hagan, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mueller Industries,
Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules

13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)), for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such

disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or

caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure

controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

-1-

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the

design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or

other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

February 28, 2007
/s/William D. O'Hagan
William D. O'Hagan
President and
Chief Executive Officer






Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Kent A. McKee, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mueller Industries,
Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)), for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such

disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or

caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure

controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
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The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based
on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of
the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the

design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or

other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

February 28, 2007
/s/Kent A. McKee
Kent A. McKee
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer






Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.s.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Mueller Industries, Inc. (the
"Company") on Form 10-K for the period ending December 30, 2006 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
"Report"), I, William D. O'Hagan, Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/William D. O'Hagan
William D. O'Hagan
Chief Executive Officer
February 28, 2007



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.s.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Mueller Industries, Inc. (the
"Company") on Form 10-K for the period ending December 30, 2006 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
"Report"), I, Kent A. McKee, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Kent A. McKee

Kent A. McKee

Chief Financial Officer
February 28, 2007



